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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House or CoMMONS, 3
February 25, 1944. | i

Resolved—That a Select Committee be appointed on radio broadcasting
to consider the annual report of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation and
to review the policies and aims of the Corporation and its regulations, revenues,.
expenditures and development, with power to examine and inquire into the
matters and things herein referred ‘to and to report from time to time their
observations and opinion thereon, and to send for persons, papers and records;
and that the said committee shall consist of the following members: Messrs.
Bertrand (Prescott), Boucher, Casselman (Mrs.) (Edmonton East), Coldwell,
Diefenbaker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hansell, Hanson (Skeena), Hazen,
Isnor, LaFléche, Laflamme, Macdonald (Brantford City), McCann, Martin,
Matthews, Mullins, Picard, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp, Veniot, and that
the presence of at least nine members shall be a quorum of the said committee
and that Standing Order 65 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

Frmpay, March 10, 1944.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be empowered to print, from day to
day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French, of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence, and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

_ Ordered,—That the said Committee be given leave to sit while the House
is in session.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

3355—13%



2 The Specml Committee on Radm Bmadcastmg b@ tu
.‘ng as its

~ First REPORT el
Your Committee recommends:— , : e

1. That it be empowered to print from day to day 500 copies in Eng
and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and emdeme
and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

2. That it be given leave to sit while the House is in session. A A
All of which is respectfully submitted.

J. J. McCANN, B
Chairman. o

i (Concurred in on March 10, 1944.)
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Fripay, March 10, 1944.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 o’clock.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman (Edmonton East), Messrs. Boucher,
Coldwell, Diefenbaker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hamon (Skeena), Isnor,
LaFleche, Laflamme, Matthews, MecCann, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp and
Veniot. (16).

The Clerk of the Committee proceeded to the election of the Chairman.

On motion of Mr. Tripp, Dr. J. J. McCann was unanimously elected
chairman of the Committee.

Dr. McCann expressed his thanks for the honour just conferred upon him
for the third consecutive year. He hoped to receive the same hearty assistance
and co-operation.

On motion of Mr. Isnor, seconded by Mr. Matthews,—
Resolved,—That Dr. Veniot be vice-chairman of the Committee.

The Chairman read the order of reference dated Friday, February 25, 1944.
The Committee decided to print its minutes of proceedings and evidence.

On motion of Mr. Hanson (Skeena), seconded Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s),—

Resolved,—That the Committee ask permission to print from day to day
500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

On motion of Mr. Hanson (Skeena), seconded by Mr. Isnor,—

Resolved,—That the Committee obtain the authority to sit while the
House is in session.

On motion of Mr. Tripp, seconded by Mr. Hanson (Skeena), the Committee
agreed that Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Coldwell, Hansell, Isnor, Ross (St.
Paul’s) and Mrs. Casselman (Edmonton East) do compose the Agenda Com-
mittee to assist the Chairman.

The Chairman invited suggestions from the members of the Committee
and a discussion followed.

It was agreed that the Minister of National War Services, Major General
the Honourable L. R. LaFléeche be heard at the next meeting. He will be
followed by the Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation and by the Acting General Manager.

At 11.28 o’clock, on motion of Mr. Coldwell, the Committee adjourned
until Wednesday, March 15, when two meetings will tentatively be held at
11 a.m. and 3 o’clock p.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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WeDNESDAY, March 15, 1944.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 o’clock,
Mr. J. J. McCann, the Chairman, presiding.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman (Edmonton, East), Messrs. Bertrand,
(Prescott), Boucher, Coldwell, Diefenbaker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher,
Hansell, Hanson, (Skeena), Isnor, LaFléche, Laflamme, Macdonald (Brantford
((J'i(t)g)/), MecCann, Mullins, Picard, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp and Veniot.

20).

As agreed at the previous meeting, Major General the Honourable L. R.
LaFléche, Minister of National War Services, was invited to make a statement on
Radio Broadcasting and matters connected therewith.

At the outset of his remarks, the witness expressed his thanks to the Chair-
man of the Parliamentary Commlttee, Dr. J. J. McCann. He paid tribute to
the Chairman and Governors of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation and had
a word of commendation for the officers and personnel.

General LaFleche replied to questions.

The following were ordered produced:

1. The Report of the Royal Commission on Radio Broadcasting (1929),
presided by Sir John Aird.

2. A list of appointments to the C.B.C. personnel made within the last
six months.

At 1 o’clock, the Committee adjourned until 3 p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting resumed its enquiry at 3
o’clock p.m., Mr. J. J. MeCann, the Chairman, presiding.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman (Edmonton East), Messrs. Bertrand
(Prescott), Boucher, Coldwell, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hansell, Hanson
(Skeena), Isnor, LaFléche, Laflamme, Macdonald, (Brantford City), Martin,
McCann, Picard, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp and Veniot. (19).

Dr. René Morin, Chairman of the Board of Governors, was called. He read
a statement and was examined thereon.

The following correction was made on page 30 of the Annual Report of the
C.B.C.: Under the heading of expenditures, the figures for Station Network (Wire
Lines) should read $777,307.60.

Replying to a question, Dr. Morin gave the dates on which the Board of
Governors held its meetings since March 31, 1943.

The Report of the Royal Commission (1929) was produced and copies will be
forwarded to the members of the Committee.

A revised edition of the C.B.C.’s policy was respect to Political and Contro-
versial Broadcasting was available and copies distributed to the members present.

On behalf of the Committee, Mrs. Casqelman thanked Dr. Morin for his
comprehensive statement.

Witness retired.

At 5.15 o’clock, on motion of Mrs, Casselman, the Committee adjourned until
Wednesday, March 22nd, at 11 a.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commaittee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,

March 15, 1944.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 o’clock
a.m. The Chairman, Dr. J. J. McCann, presided.

The CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Casselman and gentleman: We have a quorum and
we shall proceed with the business of the meeting. Following the custom of
former years with reference to procedure we have invited Major-General the
Hon. L. R. LaFléche, Minister of National War Services, under whose direction
radio broadcasting comes, to be the first witness and to make a statement with
reference to radio.

Hon. Mr. LaFukcae: Mr. Chairman, Mrs. Casselman and Gentlemen:
This is the second time I have had the pleasure of addressing this committee. I
well recall the close attention with which each member of the committee last
year approached the many matters which were brought before us, and it is evident
that membership on this committee is taken by all as a serious duty. The report
of last year’s committee reflected progress on the part of the Canadian Broadcast-
ing Corporation with, generally, satisfactory conditions prevailing in the Cana-
dian broadcasting field. As in previous years, the report left one with the clear
impression that radio broadecasting in Canada, both state-owned and privately-
owned, is a new, changing activity. It is realized by all that radio broadecasting
is a new science or a new art, about which there is much to learn, whether it be
on the technical or commercial side, or in respect of public relations or public
taste. Never-ending and new problems will continue to challenge us.

Canada is still engaged in a life or death struggle against certain nations
which attacked our civilization, our way of life, and our ancient freedoms. This
struggle for freedom continues to be our all-absorbing purpose and activity,
leaving but one sharply defined objective in the minds of all true Canadians—
the achievement as quickly as possible and with the least loss of life, of a vie-
torious peace with measures taken to prevent any possible recurrence of attacks.

If T speak of the existing state of hostilities, it is because the importance of
radio broadcasting is infinitely greater in time of war than in time of peace. It
follows that if radio broadcasting is a weapon, those who deal with it must
prot.ect the weapon which helps us to carry on successful warfare. Such is my
intention, Mr. Chairman, as I believe it to be the particular duty of each member
of this committee.

Mr. Chairman, may I offer you congratulations upon your being reelected to
preside at the meetings of this committee. I think I speak in the name of all
In paying tribute to your ability and impartiality. The results of the delibera-
tions of this committee, Mr. Chairman, can greatly affect one way or the other
that piece of property which has been paid for by the Canadian people and
which belongs to the Canadian people—I speak of the Canadian Broadeasting
Corporation. May I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that the actions of this committee
can also have a great effect upon a broader field, that is to say, the entire radio
broadcasting facilities and resources of Canada.

The meetings of this committee offer very proper occasions to make certain
that Canada’s position in the radio world is developed with the greatest interest
of the greatest number in mind. To help in finding the correct policies for the
development of the taxpayer’s property and fair dealing with privately-owned
radio broadcasting stations, keeping in mind that Canada’s total radio resources
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are made up of both publicly- and privately-owned stations, is the suitable
course for this committee to follow, I respectfully suggest.

Since last I had the privilege of addressing this committee, a change in the
fortunes of war has occurred. Misfortunes of the early years of this world-wide
struggle have given place to allied successes on all fighting fronts. Four years
and six months ago Canada turned from peaceful pursuits to the forgotten science
of waging war. Under our great war leader, the Right Honourable W. L.
Mackenzie King, Prime Minister of Canada, our country has already been
1?rg(;l.¥1 responsible for the turning back of the enemy,—Canada has helped turn

he tide. :

I submit that radio broadcasting, being an integral part of our national life,
demands our most careful attention to the end that there shall be no weakening
of morale. The strength of Canada as a nation is not to be sapped by any
person or group of persons.

Until we shall have built a better Canada upon the sacrifices of those whom
we shall commemorate as the glorious fallen, one cannot be without concern at
the thought that too great a strain is being placed upon any thread of the fabrie
of our national life. Let me suggest that during the war years there has been
criticism which has tended to weaken rather than strengthen Canada in the
broadcasting field. That is one reason why I was eager to see this committee
set up. It would seem that the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation has been
the object of much attention which has not been profitable to the corporation
or to its work. Granted that the right to criticize is fundamental to our
democracy, it should nonetheless be remembered that criticism focused largely
at a publiclv-owned corporation, in a field where its privately-owned counter-
parts also operate, places upon it an unfair and heavy burden. Each one of us
should do his best to see that the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation operates
with a minimum of disturbance. It is asking very much indeed of the members
of the Board of Governors, the officials and employees of the corporation to carry
on efficiently under the sting of unfair or gratuitous criticism.

It has been said that the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation has lost
the confidence of the people. This I do not believe. I would rather believe
that for some much smaller reasons than the national interest, or because of
indifference, some have tried to place the corporation under a cloud. The
Canadian Broadecasting Corporation now gives greater and better service than
at any other time. Reckless or selfish attacks on the property of the Canadian
people are as deplorable as they are reprehensible. It may be taken for granted
that publicly-owned radio in Canada is here to stay, not, I believe, as a
monopoly but to fill a very important part of Canada’s radio requirements.
Given a readiness on all sides to play fair and work in the general interest
of Canada, I can also see a satisfying future for all radio stations.

Recently it was my privilege to attend for the flrst time a convention of
the Canadian Association of Broadeasters. The members of this association
own and operate about eighty radio stations as compared to ten long-wave
stations operated by the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.  The first-
mentioned stations cover local or regional fields as compared to larger areas
covered by Canadian radio broadcasting stations. Eighty stations constitute
an important part of the whole Canadian radio set-up. The owners of these
stations have their own interests at stake and they also have responsibilities
to the Canadian people. I am convinced that these gentlemen realize and
want to live up to their responsibilities. It was impressed upon me that the
members of the Canadian Association of Broadcasters feel that they need a
better working arrangement in view of the provisions of the Canadian Broad-
casting Act, 1936. I heard at that convention the suggestion which has been
echoed elsewhere that there be created a new and separate commission, _board
or body somewhat along the lines of the Board of Transport Commissioners
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for Canada with appropriate and analogous powers but in respect of the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation and of the private broadeasting stations.
There may be merit in the suggestion but upon reflecting that the Board of
Transport Commissioners deal with very few railroads and that a new body
to deal with radio problems would have before them the submissions of a
large number of different radio stations, the parallel is not as close as it
seems to be at first glance. '

Should it be the case that the private broadeasters have not that simple
and easy means of discussing things of interest to them with the Canadian
Broadeasting Corporation, then it might be well to encourage both to work
out a mutually acceptable plan to the desired end before setting up what after
all would be still another board. It is not machinery which makes it possible
to achieve good results—mutual confidence, faith and good-will around a
conference table bring - satisfaction and proper working arrangements. Given
these factors, if dissatisfaction were to remain, then at least all concerned
would have met and no person could say that he had not had a full opportunity
of bringing out the merits of his case.

It has been stated that the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation has “ gone
commercial.” Tt would be more to the point to say that the corporation has
some interest in the commercial field. I may add since the very beginning
the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation is not—and 1 trust never will be—
controlled by commereial interests nor unduly influenced by such considerations.
Revenue from this source has made slight progress throughout the latter years
—I speak proportionately—enough to indicate that the corporation’s radio
stations are held in respect by those who are ready to pay out good money
to advertise their products. The proportion of “ commercial ” to total revenue
is now a fraction over 24 per cent. Cannot the situation be properly summed
up by saying that the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation needs some com-
merecial advertising and also that advertisers need the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation?

The wartime censorship which is applied for security reasons, though in
such a manner as to inconvenience the public as little as possible, obtains for
radio as it does to other means of communications.

I have been informed that the utilization of the radio channels which have
been allotted to Canada receives the ecareful attention of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation.

Mention of the new shortwave station near Sackville, N.B., was made
in the report of this committee last year. While it seems probable that there
will be a few months’ delay in commencing operations at that point, due to
difficulties in obtaining equipment, the fact remains that every possible
endeavour has been made and is being made to secure preferred priorities
in this connection. I understand that the delay may be less than at first
anticipated. Certain changes in the design of the station have been made
which will ensure to Canada an installation quite in keeping with most modern
stations in other countries. The cost will be greater than first estimated; this
possibility was reflected in the last report of this committee.

Since the last meeting of this committee the projected pension scheme in
favour of the employees of the corporation has been implemented, giving them
the desired financial security. The new pension scheme should make for
stability in regard to staff personnel.

One cannot speak of staff without thinking of young Canada now overseas
in our defence. Radio should offer opportunities of employment to a good
number of the Canadian armed forces and it is to be hoped that the corporation
and the private broadcasting stations will offer employment wherever possible
when young Canada comes marching home. After our sailors, soldiers and air-
men have finished their job, Canada must prove to them how very deep our
gratitude is and how much we want them to enjoy the fr++< of their victory.

i nec,
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It is believed that the Board of Governors of the Canadian Broadeasting
Corporation has given further consideration to the question of political or contro-
versial broadcasting, but their deecision is not known. ,

There remains one vacancy on the Board of Governors of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation and while it has been my desire and hope to submit
a recommendation to His Excellency the Governor General in Council recom-
mending an appointment, it has not yet been my privilege to do so. It would
seem that many fail to realize that considerations as to geographical representa-
tion, qualifications, experience and character must be taken into account and
above all, that at a time when Canada is engaged in an all-out war effort
against the enemy, many persons who in normal times could easily be found are
now so busily engaged in war work that it would not be in keeping to invite
them to join the Board of Governors. In my estimation the vacancies on the
Board of Governors have been filled by patriotic Canadians who have brought
excellent qualities and strength to the Board. The appointment of a Canadian
of the same high qualifications as the other governors will be made. The Act
provides for what is in fact, a part-time Chairman of the Board of Governors;
the General Manager is, of course, a full-time officer of the board. He is the
chief executive; in other words he is there to carry out the policies, not to lay
down policies. The Canadian Broadeasting Corporation has now reached the
stature of big business and I think it is proper to say that the head of the
corporation, i.e. the Chairman of the Board of Governors might, with advan-
tage to the business of the organization, devote his full time to the affairs of
the corporation. It is for serious consideration whether necessary action should
not be-taken to create the position of full-time Chairman. The Chairman repre-
senting the Board of Governors would then be available at all times.

The General Managership of the corporation has not been vacant inasmuch
as provision was made long ago to the effect that the Assistant General Manager
would exercise the powers of General Manager in the latter’s absence.

Permit me, Mr. Chairman, to express thanks to the Chairman, and the
members of the Board of Governors of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation,
for their devotion to duty and to the interests of the corporation. They have
the responsibility for the policies, aims, finances and operations of the Corpora-
tion which is an independent body, all according to the Act. My thanks go also
to those who are now serving and to those who have completed their term of
appointment.

The following gentlemen have joined the Board of Governors since this
committee last met:—
F. J. Crawford, Esq., of Toronto;
W. J. Parker, Esq., of Winnipeg.

The Reverend Doector J. S. Thomson, after completing the year for which
he had been appointed, resigned from the position of General Manager and
returned to his university, the University of Saskatchewan. You, Mr. Chairman,
and the members of this committee will recall the very splendid presentation
Dr. Thomson made of his report last year. I am sure that all will wish him
every possible success and all happiness.

Dr. Augustin Frigon, the Acting General Manager will appear before the
committee and I am sure will be welcomed as he has been in the past. The
members of the committee fully appreciate Dr. Frigon’s great and exceptional
qualifications.

Unfortunately I cannot speak with knowledge of the individual members

of the corporation’s staff but whatever success the operations of the corporation
may have, the members of the staff will and should share in the commendation.




o s i o

RADIO BROADCASTING 5

During my remarks made to this committee, Mr. Chairman, on June 9,

11943, I made mention of the fact that representations which should have been

addressed to the corporation came to me. This has continued and has led me to
the belief that a considerable number of persons are not fully aware of the
position of the Minister in relation to the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.
Requests for information of all kinds, applications for positions and many others
are mistakenly addressed to me, all of which do keep me fairly well alive to
public opinion and to the problems of the corporation. In fact, the position
of the Minister in relation to the corporation is quite limited. Under the
provisions of the Act certain matters must be submitted to the Minister, such as
any agreement involving an expenditure in excess of $10,000; proposed leases
for a period exceeding three years; the release of funds from the treasury to the
corporation; approval of the recommendation of the Board of Governors for
appointment to the position of General Manager of the corporation for submission
to His Excellency the Governor General in Council, and other matters.

Better and wider knowledge of the duties imposed upon the Minister by
the provisions of the Canadian Broadeasting Act, 1936, might serve to dispel
misapprehension concerning the real autonomy of the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation.

It remains for me to mention with pride that the corporation has arranged
to send some members of its staff far up to the fighting line, there to see and
to report back to Canadians the exploits of our fighting men. The demand for
manpower has undoubtedly caused great difficulties to the corporation occasioned
by loss of staff and the difficulty of replacement.

Before making way for others who may speak for the corporation, may I
Mr. Chairman, emphasize the value of radio broadcasting in the vital matter
of winning the war, bringing Canadian news to young Canada overseas, news
of them to their dear ones in Canada, the promotion of national unity, harmony
and concord which must prevail if Canada is to attain that prominent position
in the councils of the world to which for the second time her contributions
to the salvation of humanity will have entitled her. The listening public is
Canada. This committee and the Parliament have the duty of maintaining
free the air waves controlled by Canada for the free voices of free Canadians.

The CmamrMAN: Thank you, General LaFléche. Is it the wish of the
committee that the statement of General LaFléche be considered at this time?
Are there any questions to be asked or is there any clarification of it that
any members want? If so, that may be done now.

Mr. DiereENBAKER: General LaFleche, the other day in the house a question
was asked in regard to the salaries of certain officials connected with the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation and the news distribution service. The
answer that you brought down at that time, as I remember it, was that it was
not in the public interest to give that information. Would you amplify that
answer, please?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcae: With pleasure, Mr. Chairman. That has been the
attitude adopted in replying to questions as far back as I was able to go. When
I asked the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation to give information so that
those questions might be answered, that is what they said. I knew also that
this committee would be coming on, and I recalled that in previous years
such detailed information as that would be available here. When we come
to that, I hope to be present in the committee; and I may have a question or
two to ask those who are speaking for the corporation on that point.

Mr. DierenBaker: I should like to go a little further in that regard. Do
you agree with the principle that while the information might be made
available to a committee, it should not be made available to the membership
of the house and to the country in the House of Commons?
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Hon. Mr. LaFrEcue: Mr. Diefenbaker will recall that I said that I had
remembered that such questions were put and the questioners satisfied in this
committee. I do not know whether that information is given here publicly;
I do not know how it is given. But I thought it would be a good time to discuss
the matter when this committee was in session. As a matter of fact, the
gentleman who did put the question raised no objection to that answer.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Oh, no. But that is rather beside the point.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcue: Not entirely, because he put the question and he
never said anything to me. He appeared to be satisfied. I think the reason
for that answer or for that attitude on the part of the corporation is that they
have reason to believe that their competitors should not have such intimate
details of the operations of the corporation. There is something to be said for
that. One might also ask the question, could not those interested have the
information otherwise? 1 cannot answer that question.

Mr. DierenBakir: What do you mean by “competitors”? Who would be
the competitors?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: The privately-owned stations.’

Mr. DieFENBAKER: In the matter of news distribution and editing?

Hon. Mr. LaFLizcae: No. It was not a matter of news editing. It was a
matter of salaries paid to certain employees.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Yes.

Hon. Mr. LaFriicue: I think that has been the attitude talgen by the
corporation right from the beginning. I have been told that many times.

Mr. Dierenaker: Following that through, you said that you had looked
back over the years, and as far back as you could go the attitude that has
been generally accepted is that it is not in the public interest for that information
to be given. How far back did you go?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: Oh, T have had a number of occasions to make inquiries
into that matter; and I tell you that I have learned on those several occasions
that the corporation has always taken the attitude that it is not fair to their
business operations to give out publicly details of salaries paid and other details
concerning the intimate operations of their business.

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: So that is what the public interest means?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLicHE: That is what it means, yes. If there is any thought as
to anything else, then I want to thank the honourable member, Mr. Chairman,
for giving me the opportunity of saying that as far as I know it does not apply
to any other thing. That is the “public interest”.

Mr. BoucHER: Do you not think—and I think it is reflected by your state-
ment here to-day—that there is in the minds of the public of Canada a very
faulty knowledge or a lack of knowledge of the affairs of the C.B.C.?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: That is right.

Mr. BoucHEr: And that being the case, do you not think that, for the
welfare of the C.B.C., greater information should be given to the public as to
the working arrangements, the management, the control, even the salaries and
the costs of the C.B.C.?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: Well, that is a very interesting question, Mr. Chairman.
My thought there is that the public would not care two pence for what so and
s0 is paid; and the public does not know anything about the salaries paid to the
employees of privately-owned stations.

Mr. DierENBAKER: But they are paying a licence fee each year. Surely
they have the right to know how part of their licence fees is being dispersed,
and whether or not salaries are being paid which are in accordance with fair and
reasonable business practice.
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Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: I think, before we make an issue of that, we will wait
and get further explanations from those who are in a position to give them;
and it is their duty to make known their views on this policy.

Mr. BoucHER: Are there not two points to be considered in that connection:
(1) the publics’ interest in their own institution and (2) the position, on a
competitive basis, of the government-owned institution against privately-owned
institutions? There are two aspects, are there not?

Mr. Prcarp: It is the same as the railways.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicae: What is that again, Mr. Boucher?

Mr. BoucHER: Are there not two aspects to be considered in looking at this
thing: (1) the viewpoint of the public as to their own organization and, (2), the
situation where public ownership and private ownership compete to a degree,
with public ownership having some privileges and some rights that “private
enterprise has not?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicae: What is the point?

Mr. Tripp: If the committee is going to have the benefit of this knowledge,
it might be pertinent to ask if we are going to have the privilege of inquiring
from the private owners when they come before us as to what salaries are paid
to their employees.

Mr. BoucHEir: There is no difficulty in securing that, because their returns
to the government indicate that. ]

Mr. Picarp: They are not public. The returns of the private owners made
to the income tax office are not public.

Mr. DurocHER: It would not be a matter of sound business practice to go
out and tell everybody what you are paying this man and that man. That is
nobody’s business except the employer’s. What do you care whether a man is
getting $10,000 or $8,000, or what do I care? All we are looking for is results.

Mr. DierENBAKER: The people of Canada are paying licence fees.

Mr. Durocuer: That is quite all right.

The CuammMan: Order, gentlemen. Kindly address the chair.

Mr. DurocHER: But they are not interested in the salaries of every
individual employee of the corporation.

Mr. Ross: In that connection, there is a controversy going on at the present
time in Toronto about a certain commentator who is paid by the broadcasting
corporation and paid a fairly good salary. The broadeasting corporation have
evidently gone to the War Labour Board to have that salary 1n(rea¢ed That is
public information at the present time. Just while we are on that may I ask if
we have not, in the past, been accustomed to asking the salaries of—I do not say
everybody in the corporation—certain high officials. I think we have had that
information given to us before now.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: MF. Chairman—

Mr. Ross: Why would this be released?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicHE: I do not know what this is.

Mr. Ross: I beg your pardon?

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: Just what is this?

Mr. Ross: The War Labour Board allowed the salary to be released under
the regulations which we have at the present time.

Hon. Mr. LaFLiicae: May I point out that T am very sorry but I do not
know to what case you are alluding. I do not know to what case you have
reference.

Mr. Ross: I beg your pardon?
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Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: I do not know to which case you have reference.

Mr. Ross: I am referring to a case that has been prominent in the news-
papers and has had a certain effect on the public.

Hon. Mr. LaFriticar: If there is no secret about it, what is the case?
Mr. Ross: Well, the case is strongly protested. Here is this case—

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: I know, but what is the name of the person? Of whom
are you speaking?

Mr. Ross: The name of the person is Claire Wallace, as far as I know; and
the salary was raised from $170 a week to $200 a week. The reason given by the -
War Labour Board was that she was in an uncontrolled occupation or something
like that.

Heon. Mr. LaFricaE: Who pays the salary?

Mr. Ross: Well, I understand that the C.B.C. pay the salary. If they do
not pay the salary, perhaps it would be well to let the people of the country
know that, because here is a letter which I do not intend to read, or rather an
interview which appeared in the paper from a man who says that if they are
going to allow that sort of thing to occur, he is not going to be bothered getting
any more war savings stamps. That is only one case the public know about.

Mr. HanserL: Mr. Chairman—
The CuamrMAN: Order, please.

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: Wait a moment. I do not think that should be allowed
to stand there.

Mr. Ross: I do not think it should be allowed, as far as that is concerned;
but it is there and the public know about it.

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: Anything having to do with the success of our war
loans—and without the money raised by war loans Canada cannot carry on her
war effort—1I think should be discussed right now, it having been mentioned in
this committee. I know nothing of—what is the name again, please?

Mr. Hansern: Claire Wallace.

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: I know nothing of Miss Claire Wallace. 1 have
heard of that case and I have inquired. I have received no information. I think
it would be well that we should know for whom that lady-is working.

Mr. HaxseLL: Mr. Chairman, might I suggest that we may be a little ahead
of ourselves.

The CuARMAN: Exactly.

Mr. HanserL: I do not think we can expect the minister to know all the
details of the business management of the corporation, such as the salaries of
individuals. I would ask that we take this matter up when the appropriate
official is before us.

The CuarMAN: Exactly.

Mr. HanseLL: As far as this particular article is concerned, and the criticism
in respect to Claire Wallace, I do not want to discuss it now, but I do think
that all the details should be known to the public. I am under the impression
that her salary would not have been increased unless there were pretty good
reasons for doing so. But the public are always wanting to know what they get
for their money. The man who gets only $25 a week looks with some suspicion
on the person who gets $100 a week. It is just human nature to do that. It may
be found that Claire Wallace’s expense account is tremendous. Maybe that comes
out of her own pocket. I do not know. Those things should be cleared up. I
am suggesting that before we get into such details as those, we wait for the
appropriate officials to come before us.
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Mrs. CasseLMAN: Mr. Chairman, may I just remark that this matter of the
salary of Mrs. Claire Wallace Stutt has been the occasion of a news release from
the Department of Labour, of February 26, 1944, or from the National War
Labour Board. I do not intend to read the whole of it, but it sets forth the
reasons for dealing with this matter; and there is this one sentence that it
would perhaps be worthwhile to put on the record: “Having established that back-
ground, we are all of the opinion that she is an artist and a very fine artist
indeed.” I quite agree with Mr. Hansell that later on we should go into this,
but I would not think that the minister would have all the details of it. But
evidently this is a matter of public property, because this is a release to the
newspapers and it was given out under date of February 26.

The CHAIRMAN: Just a minute, please. I suggest, for the sake of orderly
procedure, that the discussion this morning or at least this part of the morning
be confined to the statement which the minister has made. There is going to be
plenty of opportunity to bring up any matter before the appropriate officials
when they come here. There does not appear to be any particular necessity for
haste in bringing the matter of Miss Wallace’s engagement or salary up at the
present time.” For the sake of orderly procedure in the committee, let us confine
our discussion at this time to the statement which the minister has made.

Mr. Ross: Mr. Chairman, I have just one thing further to add in connection
with this matter. This matter has been one of controversy, and it has been a
matter of editorials in our Toronto papers.

The CuatrmAN: Yes. But is it necessary that it should be discussed to-day?

Mr. Ross: Mr. Chairman, would you just let me go on? It is a matter
which concerns the broadcasting corporation very much. It is a matter which
I think should have been brought to the attention of the minister, if he had
not already known of it, and some such statement should have been issued in
connection with the matter. I do not know the details of the thing. I do not
know about Miss Wallace’s expense account or whether it is justified; but the
public evidently do not seem to think it is.

Mr. CorpweLL: Mr. Chairman, I was going to refer to the report itself.
The CaAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. CoLpweLL: There is a paragraph in the report that says this: “Better
and wider knowledge of the duties imposed upon the minister by the provisions
of the Canadian Broadcasting Act, 1936, might serve to dispel misapprehension
concerning the real autonomy of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.” You
will find that on the last page of the minister’s statement. I think, Mr. Chair-
man, that since a number of points concerning the principle of national
broadcasting have been raised by the minister in his report this morning, it
would be interesting if the committee could have available to it a copy of the
Aird Report which was made in 1929. Then we can go through the other com-
mittee reports that have been made from time to time since then. The Aird
Report is to a very large extent the foundation of the broadeasting corporation
as we know it to-day. By the same token, there are certain duties imposed on
the minister, and conversely there are certain limitations placed upon his author-
ity by parliament, and I want to ask the minister some questions relating to
the use of that authority and the limitations put upon it. I should like to ask
the minister regarding the question of the Citizens Forum last November. At
that time the minister made a statement in which he said that the program
announced had been “laid aside pending study of the plan by competent C.B.C.
authorities.” What I want to know is under what authority he made a state-
ment on behalf of the corporation cancelling a program which had been under
consideration for some time. I wonder if the minister would answer that
question first?
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Mr. Isvor: Did he say that he cancelled it?

Mr. CoupweLL: He said it had been laid aside. I said that he gave notice
to the public that the program had been laid aside pending study of the plan
by competent C.B.C. authorities.

Mr. IsNor: Yes?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Which meant that the program had been cancelled tempor-
arily at least.

Mr. Isxor: What you want to know is under what authority he cancelled it?

Mr. CoLpweLL: No. I want to know what authority the minister has for
making any statement regarding the policies of the broadcasting corporation.
~ Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: My reason was a very practical one in fact. I had
had many inquiries directed to me, and I mentioned the many things that have
been mistakenly addressed to me in my statement this morning. It was necessary
for me to dispose of these inquiries as best as I possibly could. I want to point
out that the program in question was carried on and any inference to the contrary
is wrong.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Well, I am asking this: what authority did the minister
have for making this announcement?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: The authority of any free Canadian.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Oh, that is not the point. There are certain duties laid
upon the Board of Governors under the Broadeasting Act. I think if you
will look at section 22, subsections (c), (d), and (e), those duties are very clearly
defined ; and one of them is that the Board of Governors shall have full control
of the policies and programs of the C.B.C.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicHE: Let us clear that up right now. The policies con-
cerning the program in question were dealt with solely by the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation.

Mr. CoLpweLL: By the Board of Governors?

Hon. Mr. LaFuEcHE: It was ultimately, yes.

Mr. CorpweLL: Oh, no, I do not mean that.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicur: But it had never been to the Board of Governors at
the time of which you speak.

Mr. CoupwrrLL: Then what authority had the minister to make the
announcement which he made?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: To re-assure public opinion.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Oh, no. That is no authority. There is a statute which
governs your authority, Mr. Minister.

Hon. Mr. LaFuiicaE: Oh, well; is there anything in that here which says
that I may not make a statement?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes, there certainly is. The authority to deal with pro-
grams and policies is clearly laid down in the Act; and the minister on this
occasion made an announcement which was entirely beyond his authority, and
indicated that there was some interference on the part of the Minister with the
broadcasting corporation, a very serious matter having regard to the autonomy
of the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation.

Hon. Mr. LaFricur: There was no interfernece on the part of the
minister.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I would say there was.

Hon. Mr. LarLicur: You can say what you like, but I am telling you
there was not. Is that categoric enough for you?

Mr. CorpweLL: No.
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Hon. Mr. LAFLECHE Then I cannot do more.

Mr. CoupwenL: I say to the committee that the minister made this
announcement, and that there is no authority anywhere for the minister inter-
fering with the policies or programs of the corporation.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: 1 repeat again, Mr. Chairman, that I gave out the
statement because too many inquires were being addressed to me.

Mr. CorpweLL: Who were the inquiries from?
Hon. Mr. LAFLicuE: A little from everybody.
Mr. CopweLL: I beg your pardon?

Hon. Mr. LaFiLicHE: A little from everybody.

Mr. COLDWELL: Can the minister produce the correspondence dealing with
that‘?

Hon. Mr. LaFrecue: No. I will look it up.
Mr. CoupweLL: You will look it up?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: Yes. I will look it up. Inquiries are not always
made in writing, you know.

Mr. CorpwerLL: No, I know they are not.
Mr. HanseLnL: What was the statement which was made, Mr. Coldwell?

Mr. CoLpweLL: I just have part of the statement here, that he announced
that the program had “been laid aside pending the study of the plan by
competent C.B.C. authorities.”

Hon. Mr. LaFiicue: If you wish, I should like to read the whole
announcement into the record.

Mr. CopweLL: I think it should go on the record in full. If the minister
has it there, I shall be very glad to have it.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: A press release dated November 16, 1943, reads as
follows:—

“The acting general manager of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation
recently discussed with me an item ‘Of Things to Come’ which had been
proposed for the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation program. The acting
general manager stated that this item had not progressed satisfactorily and,
indeed, that it had never been submitted to the Board of Governors. He
added that he deemed it necessary to refer the matter to his board and therefore,
in the meantime, this item would be considered closed until the proposal had
been properly surveyed and approved by competent Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation authority. What the acting general manager told me was his
own decision and that of no other person.”

N 11}’Ir. Haxserr: I would not regard that as interfering with the corporation
at all.

Mr. CorpwerLL: Oh, yes. May I ask this question? Why did the general
manager discuss this with the minister instead of with the board?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: I see the general manager periodically; and on the
occasion in question, that question came up, as many other questions come up
having to do with matters in which I am called upon to act in my ministerial
capacity in relation to the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.

Mr. Hansenn: May I ask a further question? Is it the duty of the
Board of Governors to arrange programs, to cancel them or decide to put
them on?

33565—2
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Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: In my estimation, whatever happens in the Canadlan
Broadcasting Corporation, the directing authonty—that is, the Board of
Governors—is the responsible authority for everything that is done. I take it
then that the programming and everything that is done by the corporation is
a matter for legitimate study and decision and control by the Board of Governors.

Mr. CouoweLL: May I ask the minister what was the nature of the ob]ec-
tions to this particular program?

Hon. Mr. LaFiicHE: As I recall it the matter had not been before the
Board of Governors, and that was the main objection. There was no authority to
carry on with it.

Mr. CorpwerL: Did all the people who approached you have that same
objection?
Hon. Mr. LaFuiicae: Most of them, yes; most of them asked that.

Mr. BoucHEr: In regard to that paragraph that Mr. Coldwell just repeated
where you stated that “better and wider knowledge of the duties imposed upon
the minister by the provisions of the Canadian Broadcasting Act, 1936, might
serve to dispel misapprehension,” have you any recommendations or suggestions
to give to the committee as to any difference in the relationship of the minister
to the C.B.C.? In other words, would you be prepared to give us any suggestions
or recommendations as to whether or not your relationship with the CB.C.
Board of Governors and the C.B.C. should be varied in any way or changed?

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: The real difficulty here is that many people who want
to make representations or inquire about matters having to do with the business
of the corporation mistakenly send their requests in to me, and no one will take
it amiss if T say that many members of parliament ask me questions about what
is being done.

Mr. BoucHER: You did not get my point. The relatienship of the Minister
of War Services to the C.B.C. is set out with certain controls and limitations.
Having been minister for some time have you any change to recommend in that
relationship? Should you be given more of a listening part in the picture of
the C.B.C.? Should you be given more authority? Should you be given more
power, more responsibility? Should you be given closer contact or is it too
close?

Hon. Mr. LAFuicue: It would not be too close were it not for these inquiries
coming in to me. I am sure they have come in to my predecessors, but whenever
there i1s a difficult point, such as the point raised by the hon. member for
St. Paul’s, people inquire of me and I cannot answer. I must refer the matter
to the corporation. If the inquiries were first addressed to the eorporation I think
the results generally would be better. As to a change in the relative position of
the minister to the corporation I have at different times thought either that the
minister had too much to do with it or did not have enough, but I am not prepared
to make a recommendation and T would never attempt to do so without discussing
it with the Board of Governors of the corporation. I have never discussed the
point’ with them.

Mr. Boucuer: Do you not think that it would help the committee’s deli-
berations if you were to make certain suggestions or submissions along those
lines?

~ Mr. Macponarp: I think, Mr. Chairman, it is more the duty of the com-
mittee to make recommendations, to consider what is in the best interests of
the corporation, and after hearing all the evidence to make recommendations.

Mr. BoucHEr: Surely we have the right to make use of the minister as a
person giving evidence to us upon which we can make recommendations. Al I
am wanting him to do is assist us on this particular point.

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: T would be very glad to discuss that with the Board

of Governors.
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Mr. MacpoNALD: My point is this, that recommendations should be made
after all the evidence is heard. We should not ask the minister at the first meeting
to make recommendations before we have heard the evidence.

Mr. BoucHEr: The minister is giving evidence.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: He will be at most of the meetings of the committee, and
when all the evidence is in then we can ask his opinion, but I think this is the
wrong time to start at the top before we have heard any evidence and ask
him to give an opinion.

Hon. Mr. LaFiLicuE: I think that is very kind, but I have no objection
to the question. I will at the first available opportunity see what the Board of
~ Governors have to say about that. There is no doubt that the corporation is
growing and the situation is changing, and why not go into that matter just as
much as any other? 3

Mr. BoucuEer: 1 say I thought that as minister over the department through
your contact with the C.B.C. you might be able to give us some suggestions that
we can weigh in the balance or continue research on.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: Quite right.

Mr. Boucuer: I am asking you now have you anythng to give us in that
regard?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcuE: Not that T am prepared to give at the moment, and
I would not give it without first discussing it with the Board of Governors.

Mr. CopweLL: I wanted to ask the minister if when he receives com-
munications regarding programs, policies, appointments or anything else in
connection with the corporation does he not pass those on to the Board of
Governors? -

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: Yes, of course.

Mr. CopwerLL: And the Board of Governors make the decision?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcuE: I ask them to deal with it,

Mr. CorpwerL: Do you have anything to do with appointments at all?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcuE: Not a thing, neither firé or hire.

Mr. CorpweLL: You have never made any inquiries about the appointment,
of any individual as a press man or news editor or journalist or employee of any
description? v

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: I do not quite get your question. Have I ever
what?

Mr. CorpwerL: Have you ever made inquiries regarding the opinions or
otherwise of men who are about to be employed?

Mr. DurocHER: You mean politically?

Mr. CoLpwELL: Any opinions.

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: You will have to be more specific. I do not get your
question.

Mr. CorpweLn: I am simply asking this question, if on any occasion you
have made inquiries regarding a possible appointee to the staff of the corporation.

Mr. MacponaLp: What does Mr. Coldwell mean?

Mr. CorpweLL: I am just asking in a general way.

Hon. Mr. LaFriicar: In regard to appointments mistakenly again I am

asked on a number of occasions to try to get a job for somebody, and I pass it on
to the corporation.

Mr. CorpweLL: With any recommendation?
Hon. Mr. LAFLEcuE: No.
33556—23%
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Mr. CoLpweLL: You do not make any inquiries about the individual your-
self before you pass it on?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuHE: I pass on nothing to the corporation.

Mr. CopweLL: You pass on nothing to the corporation?

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: I pass on no such suggestions to the corporation.

~ Mr. CoupweLL: You do not make any inquiries about any appointments that
are likely to be made by the corporation?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: Certainly not for the purpose of trying to affect the
appointment or firing of the individual.

Mr. CorpweLL: But do you make any recommendation at all or any
suggestions?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicHug: I pass on, as I told you before, such things as requests
for positions and inquiries and everything I get from the publie.

Mr. CorpwerL: You do not hear of the possibility of an appointment being
made and you yourself make inquiries regarding that individual as to his suit-
ability, and so on?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: No, no.

Mr. HanseLn: Maybe the minister is remiss in his duties if he does not do
S0.

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: I do not take up such matters with the corporation.

Mr. CorpweLL: With the broadcasting corporation or the acting general
manager?

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: No.

Mr. MacponALp: I think that if the minister knows of a good man or woman
for appointment there would not be anything wrong on his part if he passed that
information on to those who are responsible for making appointments. He does
not dictate to the governors what appointments should be made.

Hon. Mr. LaFiicuE: I certainly have at heart the success of the corpora-
tion. You can take it that I try to act on all occasions from that point of view.

Mr. Durocuer: I think private members occasionally do make recommenda-
tions to the corporation. 3

Mr. CoupweLL: Regarding appointments? I would say that they were
exceeding their authority altogether.

Mr. DurocHER: Not a bit; if T know somebody who is worth while I think
it is my duty to recommend that person to the C.B.C. You might do the same
thing; anybody might do the same thing.

Mrs. CasseLMAN: You have a duty as a private citizen as well as a member
of parliament.

Mr. DurocHER: I do not see anything wrong if I do make a recommendation
any more than you would or anybody else. I have made recommendations but I
do not use my influence. I made recommendations because of the fact that I
thought the person whom I was recommending was a good citizen to be engaged
by the department, who would show good results, and would be an asset to the
corporation. You can do the same.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: I think I had better say another word. I do not
want to leave any misapprehension. I have not told the corporation or anybody
in it that they must take so and so or drop so and so. The nearest I have come to
dealing with cases of employees of the corporation is when the individual himself
has appealed directly to me. In those cases I have sent it back to the corporation.

Mr. DierENBAKER: A moment ago I understood the minister to say that he
did not. Now he says there are some cases.

Hon. Mr. LaFuiicaE: Oh no, please, Mr. Diefenbaker.
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Mr. DigreNBAKER: I may have misunderstood. Now that we have it clear
that the minister recollects that he did pass on certain names to the corporation
will he tell us some of the names he passed on within the last year?

Hon. Mr. LaFriiceE: I would look it up. I recall a couple of names now
but I do not know whether it would be fair to those persons that I give their
names.

Mr. Boucuer: Is it not fair that this committee should know who recom-
mends anybody? :

Hon. Mr. LaFiLicHE: All right.

Mr. Picarp: We may have to get a whole list. .

Hon. Mr. LaFuicur: I will give you the classifieation. I had a telephone
call a couple of weeks ago from a lady, an artist with an international reputation.
I learned later on that lady had applied to the corporation for employment. I
passed on the inquiry and in passing it on I was told that the lady had applied
to the corporation. I do not know whether she has got employment or not. Now
Mr. Diefenbaker will not ask that I give the name of the lady. Years pass in so
far as artists are concerned as they do as far as you and I are concerned and with
their inevitable effect. I recall right away two cases like that. I do not mind tell-
ing you that it would have been a matter of pleasure to me had I found later on
that employment had been given the lady, but you may rest at peace you would
have done at least as much as I did and you would have not done anything wrong.

Mr. BoucHer: Is it not a matter of common sense that any man making
recommendations in his official position either uses too much or not enough
influence? That is all it is.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: I do not attempt to use influence.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: The minister has been so very fair. Is this correct,
that outside of two cases of artists whose qualifications he passed on to the
corporation no official or any other person in the corporation has been appointed
to any position, the suggestion coming from him?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: I do not know. First I do not limit the number of
suggestions that have come to me and I have passed on to the corporation.
I do not limit the number to two. I do not know how many there have been,
not a great number, and I do not recall whether any of those persons were given
employment. That I do not know, and I did not follow up these cases to find out
whether employment has been given. I disposed of those requests which should
not have come to me. I disposed of them by passing them on to the proper
people.

Mr. CoupweLL: I was not thinking of artists, I was thinking of persons
who were employed by the corporation on the regular staff. Has the minister
made inquiries concerning any appointee of that description from any other
person and then passed on the information to the corporation?

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: No.
Mr. HanseLn: There may be times when that has to be done.

Mr. Picarp: T do not think it would be beyond the duty of the minister.
I think it would be his duty, if he knew somebody who was not fit according
to his own views, that he should express them.

Mr. CowpwerL: I think quite clearly there are limitations upon the
minister, and one of his duties is not to have anything to do with recommenda-
tions or appointments to the staff; otherwise we shall find a political machine
is being built up.

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcuE: T want to scotch that right now beecause that leaves
an inference. There is no justification for such a thought.
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Mr. DierENBAKER: Would the minister not consider that in order to keep
the corporation above any such suggestion or suspicion he should not pass on
any applications to him, he should refer the individual to the corporation?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: That is what I do. That is my answer back. I say
that is what I tell the person, that 1 have passed it on to the corporation. May
I make my statement? I do notify the person who writes me that I have
passed it on to the corporation, and either that I have asked the corporation
to communicate with them, or should there be further communications would
they please address them to the corporation. Latterly to save time I have been
adopting the routine of sending a copy of my reply to the inquirer with the
inquiry that has come to me when I pass it on to the corporation. b

Mr. CorpweLL: I wonder if we might have a list of the appointments that
have been made to the staff of the C.B.C. during the last six months when the
appropriate official is before us. I want to do a little checking.

Mr. Isvor: I want to go back to the question raised by Mr. Coldwell in
reference to this program, “Things To Come”. He made a statement that the
program was cancelled by the minister. I am just trusting to memory but
my recollection is that quite recently within two weeks I heard a program
under that title, “Things To Come.” I would ask the minister if he knows
whether that program is still being carried on, “Things To Come”?

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: I recall that program was to have gone on until
later, it seems to me, later on in the year than this.

Mr. Isnor: Then we can ask the program manager. I am interested in
that because I have heard criticisms. I do not know what the nature is of the
criticisms that reach the minister but I have heard criticisms in connection
with that program. I made a note of it, and I have it'in my file here. The
note was to the effect that I intended to bring that matter up and find out
who arranged the program and some other questions. I think we should follow
it through particularly in view of the fact that Mr. Coldwell has raised it and
more or less charged the minister with interference which the minister has denied.

Mr. CoLpweLL: And which T repeat. :

Mer. Isvor: And which you repeat. I think it is just another case of Mr.

Coldwell being wrong again and for that reason I think we should follow it -
through, if not to-day, at a later date.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I do not mind being wrong occasionally but I think this
morning the minister has himself admitted that he made this statement.

Mr. Isnor: No, he has not.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: Now, Mr. Coldwell—

Mr. CoupweLL: You are the person who stated—

Hon. Mr. LaFLicue: Do not try your usual game there of putting words
into other people’s mouths.

Mr. CoupweLL: I am not putting words into your mouth.
Hon. Mr. LaFuitcae: That is my conception of what you are trying to do.
I am telling you straight to your face that you cannot do that with me.

Mr. CopweLL: I am putting your own words into your own mouth. You
know that I am.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: Would it be that you are disappointed in the outcome
of “Things To Come”?

Mr. CoLpweLL: No, I am not disappointed.

Hon. Mr. LaFricae: Would it not be that you were a disturbing influence,
or your friends were a disturbing influence in that matter from the beginning?

Mr. CoupweLL: Mr. Chairman, I object to the minister making that state-

ment. I knew nothing about the program “Things To Come” until it was
arranged.
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Hon. Mr, LaFricns: Neither did I.

Mr. COLDWELL: And I was invited to speak on it.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: Neither did I until so many people were asking ques-
- tions and I had to dispose of it.

Mr. CoLpweLL: It is a forum discussion.

Mr. Isnor: What do you mean “until it was arranged”?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Until I was invited to speak, and then I saw the program.

Mr. Isxor: The list of speakers?

Mr. CoLpwerL: I saw the list of speakers.

Mr. Isxor: Where did you see it? -

Mr. CoLpweLL: Of course I saw the list of people who were going to discuss
the subject with me. As a matter of fact, this was a forum discussion. If I am
invited to speak on a particular program I want to know with whom I am going
to speak. I saw a list of the gentlemen who proposed to speak with me.

Mr. Isxor: Did you see a list of programs to come from night to night?

Mr. CoLpweLL: No, I did not.

Mr. MacoonaLp: Did you know anything about the speakers before they
were arranged?

Mr. CorpweLL: Did I know about the speakers?

The CuamrMAN: Mr. Coldwell is not the witness.

- Mr. MacpoNarp: Mr. Chairman, at this point may I interject—

Mr. CorpweLL: I am willing to answer that question because it is a fair one.
1 would say this, that organizations were asked to submit lists of persons who
might speak on these programs. I believe the Progressive Conservatives, the
Liberals, the chambers of commerce and we were asked to speak. I saw that
list, but I did not see a list of the programs as adopted. I think that is clear.

Mr. Isnor: Do you recall when you saw that list, about what date it
would be?

Mr. Coupwern: I should think it was probably some time in November
before the program was going on. .

The CuARMAN: Any further questions?

Mr. Isxor: Coming back to the report there is just one question arising out
of an observation made by the minister dealing with the question that has been
raised by Mr. Hansell and others as to placing the operations of the C.B.C. and
radio broadcasting in general under a commission. He states:—

There may be merit in the suggestion but upon reflecting that the
Board of Transport Commissioners deal with very few railroads and that
a new body to deal with radio problems would have before them the
submissions of a large number of different radio stations, the parallel is
not as close as it seems to be at first glance.

Could the minister state as to whether he looked into the operations of the
Canadian’ Pacific Telegraphs and Canadian National Telegraphs to see as to
whether they come under the direction of the transport commissioners?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: Answering Mr. Isnor, I did not look into that situation
for the purpose of attempting to throw any hght on this suggestion that I had
here. I did not go into that aspect of it.

Mr. Isvor: Do you know if they control the operatxon\ of the telegraph
companies?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: 1 am not certain just to what extent they do.
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Mr. Boucuer: Mr. Minister, you state here:— , ;
I have been informed that the utilization of the radio channels which
have been allotted to Canada receives careful attention of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation.

You have also stated that it was impressed upon you that the members of the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters feel that they need a better working
arrangement in view of the provisions of the Canadian Broadcasting Act, 1936.
Generally speaking in your report you have not made any recommendations
whatever. Do I take it that you do not feel that you should make any recom-
mendations to this committee?

Hon. Mr. LaFritcuE: T do not feel that at all.

Mr. Boucuer: Have you any recommendation either on those two points
or anything else? ;

Hon. Mr. LaFricug: I mentioned these matters for the very purpose of
doing what I could to make certain that these questions would receive the
attention of this committee. You have two questions there. In regard to the
radio channels I wanted to know whether our position ‘'was being protected and
I am told it has been protected.

Mr. BoucHER: Are you convinced it has been?
Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: I am told it is. ;
Mr. Boucuer: You would not go so far as to say you are convinced?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuaE: Now, Mr. Boucher, I have given you a very straight
forward answer there. I made inquiries or I was told Vol}lntanly—I do not
know which—that “yes, we are keeping abreast of that situation”.

Mr. BoucuER: Mr. Minister, I am not trying to mislead you.
Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: I am not trying to let you do it either.

Mr. BoucHEr: Quite evidently, but I am of this opinion that as minister
you might have some recommendations that would be of value to this committee
and I want to give you the opportunity of affording us the benefit of your
opinions.

Hon. Mr. LaAFLicue: Thank you.
Mr. Boucuer: Have vou any suggestions or recommendations?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicaE: In regard to the first question I am not fully aware,
I am not fully up to date on the air channels to permit me to make a recom-
mendation, but my very purpose was to have all possible information brought
to the attention of this committee. Then I would know as you would knqw.
In regard to the other matter, the feeling, if you like, of the Canadian Associa-
tion of Broadcasters that they would want a better opportunity, a better piece
of machinery whereby they could make known their own problems I think I have
gone as far as one could be expected in saying what I'did this morning to this
committee. They brought up a concrete proposal. I am preaching caution. I
say that I do not think we had better jump into a new board until we see
whether by mutual agreement the C.A.B. and the C.B.C. cannot contrive to
meet each other more often or to set up an informal committee between them-
selves. I believe that it is proper to give the members of the C.A.B. all reason-
able opportunity of making known their problems, and I have said that in here
very distinetly.

Mr. Boucuer: Do you take it that part of your duties as minister is to
foster better co-operation between the two, and have you done anything in that
regard?
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Hon. Mr. LaFuiicae: I think I have. I went down to Quebec city on,
I believe, the 14th of February. I met, as I said, for the first time the members
of the C.A.B. in convention. I stayed there two days. I saw many of them.
T heard their deliberations. They were kind enough to invite me to attend their
meetings. I addressed them. I was very eager to know their problems. I do
think it is my duty, and I take it as my duty, to help all of those with a
legitimate place in radio, certainly, but just how that is going to be done
I do not know enough about it yet.

Mr. Boucuer: Having that opinion of your duty then can you tell us
what steps you have taken to get a better working arrangement, or a better
feeling if you like, between the two organizations?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: Yes. I told the C.A.B. in Quebec last month very
- much what I have said to this committee, and they, I think, are working on
that. I know they are coming to Ottawa within the next few days and I know
they are going to call on me. I will then get their considered reactions and at
the same time I mention it to this commitee and I hope that this committee will
ponder and deliberate on what, if anything, is required of that nature.

Mr. Boucuer: Then, having said that, have you not any suggestions or
recommendations to give to us indicating what is the cause of the feeling of the
Canadian Association of Broadecasters that they want a better working arrange-
ment?

Mrs. CasseLMAN: I would object to the minister making any recommenda-
tion to this committee because it is the duty of this committee to draw its own
conclusions. I thihk that would be interference on his part with this committee
to make a recommendation at this stage.

Mr. Boucuer: Would you say the same thing about the various officials
of the C.B.C. from whom you get evidence?

Mrs. CasseLman: I would say that you get your evidence and draw your
conclusions and make your recommendations as a committee. That is my opinion
of a parliamentary committee.

Mr. Boucner: Because the minister is before us and because we are a
committee and because we have every right to use our own judgment as to
whether we accept or prosecute or continue his suggestions does not mean to
say that getting suggestions is going to enslave us.

~ Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: Mr. Chairman, may I point out that I brought up
this question. I mentioned this point in my address to you this morning, very
much in the light of the attitude expressed a moment ago by Mrs. Casselman.
I did not presume to come and say that we should do this or that we should
do that. I did make certain that the committee would be seized of the necessity
of thinking it over.

Mr. Ross: The minister, then, does not feel that it is his duty. In the
one case he says he does not interfere with the C.B.C., and then he tells us he
has tried to do something.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: Just a minute. Will you pardon me just a minute?

Mr. Ross: Yes.

~ Hon. Mr. LaFLicae: Mr. Chairman, I have not spoken to the C.B.C. about
this matter.

Mr. Ross: All right.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: They now know about it.

Mr. Ross: Yes.

~ Hon. Mr. LaFuiicue: They heard of it this morning. They had representa-

tives of the C.A.B. convention in Quebec city where I addressed the C.A.B.
They know of it in that way. They had their own representatives there.
I have not gone to the C.B.C. and said, “You should do this and you should do
that.” I bring it to this committee.
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Mr. Ross: I want to ask the minister one further question on that matter.
Does the minister feel that it is his duty to see that the recommendations of this
committee are implemented by the C.B.C.?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicue: 1 think actions speak louder than words. Unless I
am mistaken, the recommendations of this committee have been carried out by
the C.B.C.

Mr. Ross: Mr. Chairman, what about this: “ That the independent
stations be encouraged to improve their facilities and that they be permitted
to increase their power and to arrange for multiple station hookups, and
generally to do anything that makes for better broadcasting in the public
interest; that the independent stations should have the opportunity of
participating in the development and use of all new phases of broadcasting
as such developments become feasible”? Have those two recommendations
been carried out?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicue: What are you referring to there? Was that last
year’s report?

Mr. Ross: Those are two of the recommendations of last year.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicuE: Yes, I know that the C.B.C. has had that under
careful consideration. I know, but not the details of the situation, that the
C.B.C. officials are awaiting some development before giving decisions on
those two points.

Mr. Ross: May 1 ask one further question. I have a question on the
order paper, which was on it last Friday. If, as the minister says here in
his statement, “ I have been informed that the utilization of the radio channels
which have been allotted to Canada receive the careful attention of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation”—and those are his words—why is my return not
down now? It would not take any time to get that return of mine down.
I doubt very much if there is much information in the matter or the return
would be here now.

Hon. Mr. LaFiicue: I do not know whether there is much or little
information. I have not had the information. Were I in my office, I would
have a note there as to just what action has been taken by way of getting the
information.

Mr. Ross: I will ask the minister whether any stations have been given
the privilege of experimentation in connection with television or frequency
modulation. ;

Hon. Mr. LaFukcue: I have seen evidence that the question has been
considered by the board, but you would have to cite the particular application,
and it is only the C.B.C. who could give you a detailed answer. I could get it,
but it is much better for them to give it to you.

Mr. Ross: All right. Our final report last year was dated July 22. It is
now what date? '

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: This is the 15th of March, 1944.

Mr. Ross: This is the 15th of March. It is quite a long time since then.
I should like to know if these things have been done. I am asking the minister
whether he considers it his duty or not his duty to see that the recommendations
of this committee are carried out?

Mr. MacpoNaLp: That is the duty of parliament.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes, it is the sole duty of parliament.

Mr. Ross: Do we not instruet the minister who is in charge?
The CuAmrMAN: No.

Mr. Macpoxarp: No.
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Mr. Picarp: The minister reports to the house.

Mrs. CassELMAN: Our report is to the house, not to the minister, is it not?

~ Mr. Ross: Our report is to the house. But there is a minister in charge;
and on the minister surely devolves the duty of seeing that the recommenda-
tions of this committee are carried out.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Is it not a fact that the minister is not in charge of the
corporation? He is simply the channel of communication and no more.

Hon. Mr. LaFuiicee: That is what it says.

Mr. Boucuer: He is the megaphone of the corporation.

The CaarrMAN: Order. This is not a debating society.

Mr. Ross: I just want to follow my argument a little further.
The CuamrMan: All-right.

Mr. Ross: The minister says he is doing everything he can to satisfy the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters. Yet he says he does not do anything
to interfere with the C.B.C.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicae: Do not say what the minister says and what the
minister does not say.

Mr. Ross: That is what I understood the minister to say.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicae: You are liable to make mistakes; and I am sorry
to say that you made a mistake now.

Mr. Ross: T am simply saying what I understood you to say.
The CuAmrMAN: What is your question?

Mr. Ross: I just want to know what the position is. Perhaps the minister
may implement his own remarks here where he says, “ Under the provision
of the Act, certain matters must be submitted to the minister.” I may not
have the right Aect here. I do not know whether or not there is one later than
the 1936 Act with amendments, but I cannot find many things that the
corporation has to submit to the minister, besides financial matters. Where
does the minister come into the picture? As we said before, we have one
minister and we do not really know what he does in connection with the
broadeasting corporation. We have another. Then we have the minister of
transport who comes into the picture. There are two or three. Then we come
back to the same old thing, a lot of management or a lot of control.

. Hon. Mr. LaFricue: The matter that you raised there, or the point you
raised is one for the C.B.C.

Mr. Ross: I beg your pardon?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: The question you put is one for the officials of the
C.B.C. to answer. '

Mr. Ross: Then we will ask the officials.
Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: I told you that a moment ago.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Mr. Chairman, I am now referring to page 3 of the
minister’s statement, the third paragraph, which deals with the private stations.
It reads: “Eighty stations constitute an important part of the whole Canadian
radio setup. The owners of these stations have their own interests at stake
and they also have responsibilities to the Canadian people.” 1 should like to
ask the minister whether, having regard to the facilities that are now available,
the public and the private facilities, he is satisfied that there is ample coverage
for all parts of Canada?

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: Mr. Chairman, we heard last year, I think, that 98
per cent of all of Canada was covered by radio. I think we felt last year that
that was coming along pretty well. ;
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_ Mr. DierenBARER: All right. Then I want to ask the minister this question.
Is it a fact that recommendations have come to him, or has he received informa-
tion to the effect that licences to new radio stations broadcasting the French
language exclusively are being considered in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan,
Gravelbourg, Saskatchewan and St. Boniface, Manitoba? Has the minister
heard of that? ]

Hon. Mr. LaFuicaE: T has not come through me.

Mr. DierENBAKER: You have not heard of it?

Hon. Mr. LaFricHE: I have heard something of the St. Boniface situation
where a bilingual station was asked for. But you will get those details from
the proper people, the officers of the C.B.C.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Yes; but you have not heard of the establishment of
exclusively French stations in Prince Albert and Gravelbourg?

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: No.

Mr. DierEnNBAKER: Or anything like that?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: No.

Mr. DierENBAKER: And you know of no applications now being considered
by the corporation in that regard?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcuE: I have heard of one application for a bilingual station
at St. Boniface. :

Mr. DierExBAKER: But nothing else?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicae: I do not think so. Certainly it has not come
through me.

Mr. Picarp: We know that there is not at the moment enough coverage
in French in that district.

Mr. DierenBARER: I was speaking about Prince Albert.

Mr. Picarp: I mean Prince Albert and St. Boniface.

Mr. BErTRAND: Speaking on this particular point, I think I took a certain
amount of interest as far as that question was concerned last year. I think
we should read the portion of our report to parliament, relating to this matter.
It reads: “Your committee has been pleased to learn that the corporation has
been very eonsiderate with reference to its services over the French network
to the minority in the province of Quebec, and that its policy is to extend the
similar consideration to the minority in other parts of Canada.” So that if
at the present time, that is under consideration, it would only be a fair question
to be dealt with.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I am asking if it is being done. I asked that question.

Hon. Mr. LAFLiicae: I have replied.

Mr. DigrENBAKER: I want to know the situation.

Hon. Mr. LaFrLicHE: I have replied that those applications have not and
should not come to me or through me.

Mr. BertraND: Seeing that Mr. Diefenbaker said, “exclusively in French”,
I may say that there is a table shown as an appendix to that report, where it
shows that radio station CBM, Montreal, broadcasts exclusively in English,
where there is no French at all in the province of Quebec.

The CuarrMmAN: That is a matter which Dr. Frigon will be able to deal with.

Mr. BerTrAND: Yes. But I did not want to let that pass without
answering it.

Mr. Boucuer: Do I take it, Mr. Minister, that for reasons probably of your
own, and probably because of your being the minister, you do not feel that
you should bring any suggestions or any recommendations before this committee?
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Hon. Mr, LaFiicue: No, not at all. If I felt like bringing in a recom-
mendation, I would bring it. But I have not felt like doing so in this case. I
have made certain that certain points will be discussed by this committee.
Surely that is enough.

Mr. Boucuer: Do I take it that you have no recommendations to bring
before the committee?

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: I have made my address this morning and that is
what I wanted to say.

. Mr. DieFENBAKER: Have you given consideration to the suggestion I made
that, in order to co-relate the press and radio, one of the appointees to the Board
of Governors should be a representative of the Canadian Newspaper Association?
Have you given any consideration to that?

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: Yes; and I hope it will not hurt you if I say that
consideration was given before you were good enough to make that suggestion.

Mr. DierenBAKER: That may be. What was the decision?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: I have not yet announced the appointment of the
remaining governor. :

Mr. DierenBakER: Then do I take it that he is going to be a representative
of the newspapers associations?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicur: Take what you like. It is for you to take what you
like. You will have to wait and see who he is.

Mr. Ross: May I ask another question, Mr. Chairman? The minister stated
that we were not without a general manager at the present time because we
had an assistant general manager, and that the Act or the bylaws provided that
the assistant general manager act in his place. It is some considerable time since
that position became vacant; and the duties defined in the Act and in the bylaws,
of course, are rather different for the general manager and the assistant general
manager. Do I take from that, seeing that the position has been vacant for so
long, that we have no need for a general manager?

e %—Ion. Mr. LaFricae: No. I do not think you are justified in holding that
elief.

Mr. Ross: Why has there been such a delay in appointing a general
manager?

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: I do not know. I have not had a recommendation from
the Board of Governors.

Mr. HanseLn: Do I understand, Mr. Minister, that no appointment is
made except by recommendation of the Board of Governors?

Hon. Mr. LaFiEcuE: May I say, Mr. Chairman, to Mr. Hansell that the
Act provides that the general manager shall be appointed by His Excellency the
Governor in Council upon the recommendation of the Board of Governors.

Mr. HaNSELL: Yes.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: But to get to privy council, it has to come to me for
my signature,

Mr. Hansern: Would you or the government have the power to veto that
recommendation?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: That is a bit hypothetical, I do not mind telling you.

Mr. HanseLL: I mean to say, there is no sense to the thing if you have not
that power.

Mr. CorpweLL: You mean refuse to accept the recommendation?
Mr. HansELL: Yes.

Mr. Picarp: The minister has said that he has received none.
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Mr. HANSELL Yes. But I am ]ust getting the setup You could refuse to
accept the recommendation?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: I could refuse to put my name to any piece of paper
if I wanted to, yes. I am sorry but I cannot give you any other answer than
that. It is obvious. ,

Mr. BoucHer: Mr. Minister, you said also, “It is believed that the Board of
Governors of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation has given further consider-
ation to the question of political or eontroversial broadeasting, but their decision
is not known.” Could you enlarge upon that statement?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicue: No, I cannot. That has been in the newspapers.

Mr. BoucHEer: I know. But we, as a committee, should like you to enlarge
upon it, if you would.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: I have nothing more to say than that. I much prefer
to have that out at this committee than to see in the press what are, as far as
I know, unauthorized statements. I do not know the origin of the thing. I have
not heard a thing about the article, except that I saw it in the press.

Mr. BoucHEiR: Do you feel that the regulations of the C.B.C. on that should
be given consideration by this committee with a view to improving them?

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: I feel that it would be in the interests of all concerned
if no person ‘were to attempt to take advantage of the regulations as they now
stand; whether those regulations should be changed is a matter for consideration
by the Board of Governors. They deal with those matters, not I.

Mr. BoucueRr: Would you not think that this committee should go into that
matter and assist the Board of Governors in making recommendations for
improvement in the situation which, I think you will agree, is not quite
satisfactory?

Hon. Mr. LaFrLicue: Well, because of the abuse, condltlons are not satis-
factory.

Mr. Boucuer: Well, abuse by whom? You may as well come all the way,
Mr. Minister.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: Well, I am thinking of the incident when Mr. Bracken
was speaking, I think in Hamilton. I would not believe that Mr. Bracken was
responsible, but as I said in the house— « :

Mr. BoucHER: But you think—

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: Just a minute. As I said in the house, that was a
slick piece of work and if you will permit me to say so, beneath the dignity of
your party.

Mr. BoucHEr: I will permit you to say anything, so far as that is concerned.
But we should like you to say what your own individual opinion on this situation
is, without reference to Mr. Bracken, or with reference to 'him as far as you may
see fit to give it.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: 1 am giving you the reason for anything that I may
believe. To me, any situation which permits of such doings should receive
attention by the competent authorities.

Mr. Boucuer: Do you think, as a minister or as a private individual, as

the case may be, that the leffulltmm against political broadcasting in the C.B.C.
18 a sane 1e«ru1 mun or a wise regulation in a democratic country?

Mr. Trrep: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me—

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: Well, if T feel that they are not wise, then I am up
against this proposition. 1 understand that those regulations were made with
and by the consent of the several political parties. I am not sure that the
Liberal party participated in the deliberations. As I say, I am not sure about
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' that. But I have been told that the other parties did meet with the officials of

the C.B.C. and they came to an agreement. Then I think the success of the
regulation must depend upon the manner in which it is carried out and the
manner in which the spirit of the regulation is respected by all concerned.

Mr. BoucHEr: And the manner in which the regulations are administered
by the Board of Governors, or otherwise.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicae: That is right.

Mr. Ross: There is one remark which the minister made a few moments
ago to which I take exception and that is one when he called the application for
Mr. Bracken to speak “a slick piece of work”. I do not think it was a slick piece
of work at all. He may perhaps think that it will turn out well for the party,
but it was not a slick piece of business.

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: I do not think it did very well.

Mr. Ross: I take exception to the minister’s words.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: I am sorry. I did not mean to offend the feelings of
any person.

Mr. DierENBAKER: The minister would not want to set himself up as an

‘authority on slickness. I think that was a most uncalled for remark.

Mr., Tripp: It seems to me that the sentiment of the committee this
morning—

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcuE: May I say that I am but echoing what is the current
opinion, as I have had it, of the publicity fraternity of Canada.

Mr. BouchHer: As I take it, you gave your personal opinion on it in calling
it slick. I have been trying to get your personal opinion on certain things, to
get certain recommendations from you and certain complaints from you as to the
existing state of affairs, but I cannot do so.

Hon. Mr. LaFriEcuE: I have answered your questions very correctly, very
carefully, and to the best of my ability.

Mr. Trrep: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that certain members of the
committee this morning are trying to place the minister in a position which he is
not in. They are trying to force him into being the head or totum of the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation. I think we as members of the committee
know that he is not in that position and that he is not supposed to answer or
could not answer all the questions that have been asked. I think that a lot
of the questions that have been asked of him this morning should have been
more properly addressed to officials of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.
On the one hand they try to tell the minister that he is not the head of the
corporation, and on the other hand they try to infer that he is and ask questions
that he should not be called upon to answer. I think, Mr. Chairman, that we
should consider this report which the minister has made in which he asked this
committee to give him certain consideration and certain recommendations, and
that we should not be forcing upon him the position of coming here and making
recommendations which I do not think he is in a position to make.

Mr. Ross: 1 do not agree with the honourable gentleman, Mr. Chairman.

The CHARMAN: -Order.

Mr. Ross: I do not agree with—

The CuAlrMAN: Just a minute, please. T agree with Mr. Tripp. I think the
outline he has given is the one which I would desire the committee to follow.
But as far as questions go, I leave that to the discretion and the good judgment
of the members of the committee. 3 ;

Mr. Boucaer: Mr. Chairman, do I take it then that the questions that I

particularly have asked, when I asked the minister for suggestions, should not
have been asked before this committee?
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The Cramrman: Not at all. I have made no objection to that.

Mr. Boucuer: Apparently Mr. Tripp is objecting to it. But I still feel
that when any witness comes before this committee, it is my duty as a member
of the committee to try to get all the beneficial information I can from him;
and I resent any implication to the contrary.

The CHAmRMAN: Quite right. But we shall make better progress if we
attempt to follow the line of questioning with reference to what is contained in
the minister’s statement.

Mr. Macponarp: I think we would make better progress if we entered
upon this inquiry in a spirit of co-operation. This is the first time I have
attended a meeting of the radio committee, and it occurs to me that this is more
of a trial than an inquiry, that the witness appears to be on trial. I do not think
that should be the purpose of any parliamentary committee. We are here not
to try any witness. We are here to try to get information and then to make our
recommendations. I do not think we shall make very satisfactory progress if
we come here with the idea that we are going to condemn some witness or get
some evidence on him that will hurt him. I do not think that should be our
purpose. It is rather our purpose to get information which will be of benefit
to the Canadian public.

Mr. Boucuer: If there is any suggestion that, when we ask a witness for his
own opinions or his own recommendations, we are trying to get something to hurt
him, I rather sympathize with the witness.

Mr. MacponaLp: I might say that I was not referring to Mr. Boucher. I do
not know why he should think I was. I was just giving my impression of the
evidence which was submitted and the manner in which it was brought out.

The CuarMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. Ross: Yes, I have one.

Mr. Isxor: Mr. Chairman, I have a question arising out of the observation
made by the minister in connection with a full time chairman of the Board of
Governors. He said: “It is for serious consideration whether necessary action
should not be taken to create the position of full time chairman. The chairman
representing the Board of Governors would then be available at all times.” My
question, Mr. Chairman, is more or less directed to you, as to whether the term
of reference permits us, if we so desire, to make a recommendation in connection
with a full time chairman of the Board of Governors.

The CuarMAN: I think so, Mr. Isnor, because the reference says, to review
the policy and the management. How this management is set up would be part
of the policy, I think.

Mr. Isxor: I do not care to pursue it further now.

The CuAamrMAN: The order of reference reads: “To review the policies and
aims of the corporation and its regulations....” Perhaps the matter of the
general managership would come more particularly under “regulations”.

Mr. Isnor: I do not wish to pursue that further at the present time. How-
ever, in view of the fact that the minister has embodied it in his report, I believe
that we should not lose sight of the fact, but rather should give it serious
consideration when we are making our report.

Mr. CorpwerL: Is that not a matter which comes under the Act, though?
Is that not a matter of reconsideration of the Canadian Broadeasting Act itself?
It reads, “There shall be a general manager.”

The CuAmMAN: It is specifically stated in the Act. His powers are
determined.

Mr. Isxor: I was dealing with the chairman of the Board of Governors, not
with the general manager.
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Mr. CoupwerLL: If you are dealing with the chairman of the Board of
Governors, you will have to define his authority and you may find that it means
that you will have to divide the authority between the general manager and the
chairman of the Board of Governors.

Mr. Isnor: There is another question I should like to ask the minister in
connection with the paragraph dealing with the commercial aspect. It is true
that a great many feel that the C.B.C. have entered the commercial field in a
larger manner than was intended. Whether that thought is justified or not is
something I am not now disputing or discussing. But I should like to ask the

_minister whether there is any further avenue left open for advertisers who wish

to carry on a national network other than the C.B.C.?

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: National advertising would ordinarily go to the
corporation that has the transcontinental systems.

Mr. Isnor: It is the only avenue that is left open. Is'that right?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcuE: Oh, I have heard it said that it could be arranged
otherwise, but it would be somewhat cumbersome. It could be done. It would
not be more difficult, in my estimation, than the placing of advertisements in
the nine hundred or one thousand weekly newspapers of Canada. You would
have to be dealing with each one of them individually, though.

Mr. Isnor: No, it is not quite like that. I am looking for information and
trying to get it. I should like to know whether it is not the policy set up by the
C.B.C. which prevents private stations from joining up in a network and then
taking advantage of broadcasting throughout the dominion any particular
advertising scheme that might be placed before them.

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: I think that is held by some to be one of the
difficulties.

Mr. Isnor: Then in other words, they at the present time, in so far as
national advertising is concerned, hold a monopoly in Canada?

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: Yes. But the C.B.C. does use the privately-owned
stations for that.

Mr. Isvor: And withhold, roughly speaking, 50 per cent of the advertising
rates?

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: They withhold something. I do not know exactly
how much.

Mr. CoupwerL: The private stations have done pretty well financially, even
under that arrangement, have they not?

Mr. Isnor: That is not the angle I was approaching it from.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicuE: It is believed that there is money in the radio business.

Mr. Picarp: It would appear that there is.

Hon. Mr. LaFricae: But I have not seen the balance sheets of the different
privately-owned radio stations.

Mr. Isxor: Perhaps we shall be in a position to pursue that a little later on.

Hon. Mr. LaFrLEcur: With pleasure.

Mrs. CasseLman: I move that we adjourn.

The CaarRMAN: Are there any further questions to be asked of the min-
ister? It was proposed that this afternoon we should have a statement from
the chairman of the Board of Governors, who has come here from Montreal. I
think perhaps we should proceed with that anyway at 3 o’clock.

Mr. CopweLL: What about the minister? Can we recall him?

S The.CHAIRMAN: Yes. We can recall the minister at a later date, whenever
it is decided. The minister is available at any time; but the chairman of the

Board of Governors is here from Montreal, and at some inconvenience.
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Mr. CopweLL: I am not objecting. We can have the minister on again
after the chairman of the Board of Governors has completed his evidence.

The Cuamrman: Then we shall meet this afternoon at 3 o’clock.
The committee adjourned at 1 p.m. to meet again at 3 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The committee resumed at 3 o’clock p.m.

The CuamrMAN: Gentlemen of the committee, we have before us this after-
noon, Mr. Rene Morin, Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation.

Rene Morin, Chairman of the Board of Governors, Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation, called.

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, Mrs. Casselman and Gentlemen: May I
open my remarks by saying I appreciate the privilege of appearing before you
once more and having the opportunity of giving an account of the way in which
we on the Board of Governors have carried out the responsibilities imposed on us.

I should like, too, to express my gratification, and my satisfaction with the
general approval given to the corporation’s activities by the final report of last
year’s committee. I was particularly glad to notice the committee’s reaffirmation
of the nine principles governing national broadeasting in Canada. May I say,
100, that the staff of the corporation greatly appreciate the tribute paid to them
in the concluding paragraph of the report.

My remarks here will be very brief, because I do not wish to take up too
much of the committee’s time.

Since March 31 of 1943 the board has met eight times, or about once every
six weeks on an average. We have had some very important matters to deal
with, and T shall begin by speaking of that one which has been much in every-
body’s mind—I mean the appointment of a general manager.

Dr. James S. Thomson was the general manager of the C.B.C. when its
activities were reported upon to the 1943 parliamentary committee. His appoint-
ment dated from the 1st of November, 1942, when at the request of the board,
after having obtained a leave of absence from the university of Saskatchewan
ofwhich he was president, he agreed as a contribution to the war-time effort of
Canada, to assume the management of the corporation for the period of one year.

He appeared before the 1943 parliamentary committee who had then the
opportunity of appreciating the talent and ability with which he fulfilled the
duties of his office as well as the character of his leadership. Dr. Thomson’s pro-
fessional life has, however, been devoted to higher education and scholarship, a
field in which he has attained an honourable distinction as evidenced by the
important, position which he oceupies at the university of Saskatchewan. With
such a background it was not unnatural that, after the difficult, troublesome and
often ungrateful task of directing a national broadecasting service in Canada, he
should feel a longing for the peace and quietude of his study and a desire to
revert to his academie and seholarly life. So, in the summer of 1943 he intimated
his intention not to carry on as chief executive of the corporation beyond the
term during which he had agreed to serve, that is to say, beyond the 1st of
November, 1943.

At that time the corporation suffered another shock in the untimely death
of its Vice-Chairman, Mr. N. L. Nathanson, who had been sitting on the board
since 1936 and had always taken a deep interest in its work. His keen mind,
his sound judgment, his business experience had been of great help to the
board.
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On November 1st the term of office of two other members of the board,
Messrs. Rowe Holland and Edwin Charleson, came to an end, and the govern-
ment, though I feel sure fully appreciating the services which these two members
had rendered, took advantage of these circumstances to follow the directives
of the parliamentary committee and to appoint on the board representatives of
special classes of the population.

Mrs. Sutherland, a newspaper editor, had replaced Mrs. McClung; Mr.
Howard Chase had been appointed as a labour representative; Mr. F. J.
Crawford, a business man, succeeded Mr. Nathanson and Mr. William James
Parker was chosen to act as spokesman of the farmers. These appointments
were excellent ones but naturally it took some time before they could be made.

On the 1st of November the board was faced with the task of making
recommendations for the appointment of a new General Manager to succeed
Dr. Thomson. The by-laws of the corporation provide that the assistant
general manager shall exercise the powers of the general manager in his absence.
Dr. Augustin Frigon, the Assistant General Manager, has been with the corpora-
tion since its inception; he had been a member of the Aird Commission which
investigated radio broadeasting in 1928 and made a report on which the present
legislation in Canada is largely based. There was no doubt that he fully
possessed the qualifications to manage the affairs of the corporation, at least
until a successor to Dr. Thomson might be appointed.

Nevertheless the board studied the situation keeping in mind, on the one
hand the recommendations of the 1942 parliamentary committee as to the quali-
fications which the chief executive of the corporation should possess and on
the other the expansion of the services of the corporation since its inception.

The activities of the chief executive of the corporation embrace two fields
which are very wide apart. These activities demand widely differentiated
qualities and qualifications. ;

At present the chief executive has charge of the general program policies of
the corporation, under the direction of the board, and must assume the respon-
sibility for all broadecasts respecting political, religious, economic, social, educa-
tional and other controversial matters. He is also in charge of public relations
as well as of the relations between the corporation and private stations and will
soon have to supervise the operation of the government short wave station now
under construction.

Further the corporation owns and operates ten broadcasting stations
throughout Canada and operates two networks connecting these stations with
a large number of private stations; the commercial operations of the corpora-
tion have become quite extensive; the relations with a large staff involve many
delicate problems and its annual budget now amounts to nearly $5,000,000
involving a strict control of its finances.

One function calls for imagination, a broad culture, a comprehensive
understanding of our national problems and an enthusiastic faith in the future
of our country whilst for the other, business experience, administrative sense
and a positive mind are required.

The members of the board asked themselves whether such divergent
functions could properly be filled by a single person, and whether the set up of
the corporation would not be improved and a better control exercised should
two separate officials, a full-time chairman and a general manager, each possess-
ing the best qualifications possible in the particular field allotted to him, be
charged with the carrying out of the provisions of the Canadian Broadecasting
Act.

It may be argued that this would involve a dual authority, but each one

of them would have his own definite field of action and normally their respective
3355—3}
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functions should not involve any conflict and, should one arise, the authority
of the chairman might be predominant or the board might easily settle such
differences. :

Such a set up would call for the appointment of a salaried chairman giving
all his time to the corporation and the maintenance of the general manager and
of his assistant in their executive functions. )

These views were referred to the government but it is evident that no
action was possible without an amendment to the Act and without possibly a
reference to this parliamentary committee.

It would be almost impossible to find a person possessing all the qualifica-
tions needed to fill such divergent functions as those outlined. If we succeeded
in discovering such a person, the amount of work to be done and the attention
to be given to widely different duties would require almost complete delegation
of power to another person who could take care, on his own authority, of
certain phases of the work.

FINANCES

The balance sheet for the financial year ending March 31, 1943, is printed
in the annual report which you have before you. May I first point out for the
sake of keeping the records straight that on page 30 of the annual report, there
is a printer’s error. Under the heading expenditures the second item station
network (wirelines) reads $777,507.60; this figure should read $777,307.60. This
balance sheet was presented to the parliamentary committee last year and the
then general manager, Dr. Thomson, gave an analysis of it which is on record in
the printed proceedings of last year’s committee on pages 58 to 61.

In recent years the committee have not begun their sittings until May or
June, and consequently we have been able to submit to the committee at any
rate a very closely estimated balance sheet. Our books do not close until the
31st March, and consequently I am unable at the present time to give you
anything like a balance sheet.

I understand that the house will recess from Mareh 31 until April 17. By
that time we could have ready for you a very closely estimated final balance
sheet, and I should be very glad to come back at that time and present it to you.

I confess that I myself would much prefer to wait a few weeks until I can
give you a balance sheet which will accurately represent our financial standing
and which you ean compare with the figures submitted for previous years.

I may say this, however, at the present time I am satisfied that we have
lived within our estimated budget, and I have reason to believe that our revenue
for 1943-44 will exceed our expenditures by over $200,000.

CONTROVERSY AND NEWS

I expect you will wish me to say something about political and controversiql
broadcasting and commentaries. The policy of the board in these matters is
clearly laid down in the white paper. It is based on the following prineiples:—

1. The air belongs to the people who are entitled to hear the principal points

of view on all questions of importance.

2. The air must not fall under the control of any individuals or groups

influential by reasons of their wealth or special position.

3. The right to answer is inherent in the democratic doctrine of free speech.

4. Freedom of speech and the full interchange of opinion are among the

principal safeguards of free institutions.
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The board believes that these principles can be furthered by the provision of
free time to competent speakers to present, without let or hindrance, varying
points of view on questions of the day. The best safeguard of freedom of discus-
sion is a policy which permits opportunity for the expression of varying points
of view. - :

The only censorship we recognize is that imposed for security reasons by the
official censorship directives which apply generally to press and radio alike. Our
officials do, as a general principle, read through the scripts of talks and commen-
taries in advance of the broadcast, in order that they may give to the speakers
advice and guidance and in order to see that they comply with C.B.C. regulations
and practice, and national censorship directive. I am told it has occasionally
happened that in the case of experienced broadcasters who are thoroughly
acquainted with C.B.C. regulations and censorship directions, this precaution has
been omitted. <

The whole question is one which bristles with difficulties, and you may
take it from me that the C.B.C. is not the only body which faces these difficulties.
The B.B.C. allows to speakers a very wide liberty of expression. I recently read
in the Listener the text of a radio debate or forum on the future of the empire,
during which views were expressed which I am sure would not meet with the
approval of all British listeners.

The Columbia Broadeasting System has lately had diffieulties in the matter,
which were widely publicized in the United States press and on the air. They
removed one of their commentators and imposed what was called a “gag”,
or some form of censorship which would limit commentators to the expression
of purely objective news. On the one hand it was said that C.B.S. was only
directing news analysts to keep their personal opinions to themselves. On the
other hand it was charged that commentators were being prevented from saying
anything that might offend the big radio advertisers and that in effect
freedom of speech was threatened. Perhaps the two points are best summed
up in statements by Paul White, Director of C.B.S. newscasts, and James
L. Fly, Chairman of the American Federal Communications Commission. Mr.
White said: “We say to these broadcasters: you and a small group of other
analysts could, if you opinionated your broadcasting, exert a dominating power
over public opinion, and such power in the hands of a few would destroy all
fairness on the air, and in a democratic world there’s no freedom without
fairness”. =

Mr. Fly drew attention to the tremendous power wielded by the single
man who exercises this breadth of diseretion for a great broadcasting system
in lodging that power over the whole output of news analysis and opinion, and
went on to say: “The fact is, of course, that radio does have some of the most
competent commentators and analysts on earth and it would be a pity if the
rules of the very medium which brings their voices to the people prevents their
opinions from reaching the people. Any policy that requires these men to
mouth second-hand opinions serves no purpose. The public is looking to these
men at the moment. I wonder if it is not the best method to select the most
competent men and give them their rein, bearing in mind, of course, there
should be an overall general balance on the part of the company”.

The policy of our board is as I have outlined it above, and we stand
behind that policy. The interpretation and administration of this policy are
carried out by the management and I have no doubt that Dr. Frigon will have
something to gay on the subject and I think you might also, with advantage,
so far as English programs are concerned, hear from Mr. Bushnell, the General
Supervisor of Programs.

As for party political broadcasting, the board has approved a new and
revised edition of the white paper, and this the acting general manager wilk
lay before you for your consideration.
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A certain amount of ecriticism has been directed lately against the
impartiality of our news service. The Board of Governors examined this
matter very closely at their last meeting, and after hearing from those concerned
with the supervision of our news, we came out of the meeting convineed . of
the integrity and impartiality of our news editors. It is realized that in
summarizing a large volume of news for radio bulletins, it is not always
possible to give complete reports on all developments. An editor has to
make an arbitrary choice of items, and news judgment is a matter on which
all may not agree, especially as news writers have a natural tendency to
emphasize the stories that they think will be most interesting to listeners.
I should like to recommend to this committee, if I may be permitted to do
s0, that they call the chief news editor as a witness and question him as fully
and as closely as they wish. I should like to say in addition that we have
at one time or another received from members of all parties in the house,
complaints that their particular party was being discriminated against. I am
inclined to think that this is evidence of a healthy state of affairs.

COVERAGE

As 1 was able to tell the committee last year, the corporation has
endeavoured to extend its services so as to give complete national coverage. We
are very close to that goal. If I may use the analogy of an engine, you will
understand that when once you have achieved a certain high degree of efficiency
or speed, each successive increase costs a little bit more per unit of efficiency or
speed and is more difficult to achieve. I think I may say that we have reached
that point in increasing national coverage. To use the same comparison again,
I do not think there is any more chance of increasing our coverage to 100 per
cent than there is of constructing a mechanical engine with 100 per cent
efficiency.

Late last fall we completed field strength surveys and the coverage statistics
based on these surveys are at present in the process of revision. It will be a
matter of some months before this work is in final form.

According to the latest available figures the C.B.C. national network
covered 90-5 per cent of the total population of Canada and 96-1 per cent of
those homes in the dominion which had radio receiving sets. Our national net-
work, of course, includes a number of private stations and the coverage of our
own ten stations was 80-9 per cent of the population and 85-4 per cent of the
radio homes.

During the year under review we have taken some steps to bring the possi-
bility of radio listening to some places which were unable to get reception.
We have installed relay transmitters which will bring C.B.C. programs to Prince
George, B.C., with a population of 3,500 and 220 radio homes; to Quesnel, B.C.,
with a population of 1,000 and 75 radio homes; to Williams Lake, B.C., with
a population of 1,000 and 133 radio homes and to Sioux Lookout, Ontario, with
a population of 2,000 and 541 radio homes.

I think that when the final results of the survey that I have mentioned are
available it will be seen that there is some increase in coverage but I do not
believe that any additional coverage that may be achieved in one way or another
will substantially affect percentages I mentioned earlier on. As I said before
to increase your coverage from 96 per cent to 100 per cent is a very much
more difficult task than to increase it from 48 per cent, which it was when
the C.B.C. started, to the figure at which it stands to-day.

DOMINION NETWORK

In March, 1939, some six months before the war, the Canadian Association
of Broadcasters, in a memorandum presented to the Board of Governors of
the C.B.C. suggested that a second national network be set up which would be
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on the air for four evening hours, two and a half hours of which would be sus-
taining programs, the remainder commercial. Among other reasons given by
the Canadian Association of Broadcasters at that time was that such a net-
work would give many stations not then affiliated with the national network
an opportunity to obtain programs of first quality and would provide listeners
during its operating hours a choice of good programs.
During the parliamentary committee hearings of 1942 the then general
manager said:—
We should have alternative facilities—planned alternative facilities,
in order to meet this point of being able, at any given moment, with a
reasonable signal strength, to give the average listener a choice of two
programs in accordance with the average mood. We have not got that
..... 1t is definitely a need; that is, the planned alternative program.
~ The final report of the Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting of the
House of Commons 1942 reported as follows:—
Your committee further recommends that every effort be made to
obviate duplication of broadeasts in the same area and provide listeners
with alternative programs.

Ever since 1942, when the parliamentary committee recommended that dupli-
cation of broadcasting should be obviated and listeners provided with alternative
programs, the demand for time on the national network of the C.B.C. has
become increasingly insistent. This demand has not arisen from commercial
interests alone. There have been many demands for programs sponsored and
otherwise, from government sources. Almost every department of the govern-
ment has required additional time for the fulfilment of its obligations in con-
nection with the war. Unfortunately a radio network is not like a newspaper
or magazine. It cannot add hours to its schedule as newspapers and magazines
have been able to add pages until very recently. There are only so many hours
in a day and only a small percentage of those hours is available for maximum
listening.

These circumstances made it imperative that additional facilities should be
provided for suitable time to promote the war effort, to present C.B.C. public
service broadecasts and to satisfy, even partially, the demands for network
outlets to sponsors. Incidentally, a great deal of sponsored time is now devoted
without charge by sponsors to the promotion of numerous war efforts.

It was also necessary in accordance with the recommendations of the
1942 Parliamentary Committee to make a real start in getting away from the
duplication existing in many parts of Canada, notably on the prairies and in
the maritimes. Moreover, there was considerable inequality in the treatment
of privately owned stations. Some as members of the C.B.C. national network
(now the Trans-Canada network) were in a much better position than those
not so fortunate. The situation could not be remedied by attaching these
latter stations to the existing national network. That would have further
aggravated the over-duplication.

The operation of a second or alternative network actually commenced in
July, 1941, on an occasional basis only. However, it was decided in August,
1943, to proceed with the organization of a second network on a regular basis
during evening hours. The co-operation of the privately owned stations was
sought and secured. A number of stations previously associated with the
Trans-Canada network, especially in Saskatchewan, agreed to transfer to the
new network, and operations of that network commenced on January 1, 1944.
Many problems have to be met but progress has been satisfactory.

Sixty-five out of seventy-nine privately owned stations in Canada now
receive network service (Trans-Canada or Dominion) either as affiliated or
supplementary stations of the C.B.C. Most of the stations still without C.B.C.
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network affiliation are located in centres already served by two other stations.
The service thus provided through the new Dominion network has reduced
duplication, improved program standards, is building up larger and more con-
sistent station audiences and bringing satisfaction generally to those stations
associated with it. Further, and this is the most important point, the general
service of the C.B.C. to the Canadian public has been materially increased and
i(;ur'}xalieans of reaching all parts of the dominion have become very much more
exible.
CONCLUSION

The operation of a national network of broadecasting stations is not an
easy task.

Its service reaches practically every home in Canada and is therein
available sixteen hours per day. It has to conform to the tastes and desires
of all classes of the population, labour, farmer, middle class, business men and
intellectuals, whose tastes differ materially.

It has to meet the program competition of private stations and, in some
sections of our country, that of stations operating in the United States, a
more populated and wealthier country than ours, where are gathered the most
prominent musicians, singers and artists of the world and where operators of
networks of stations have practically unlimited resources at their disposal.

Radio and the press have at least one feature in common; they both draw
income from advertising and, in this field, they are in a sense competitors;
hence the newspapers feel justified in looking at this new instrument of
propaganda with some concern, although it must be acknowledged that the
press and the news agencies have in many respects given radio a fair and
generous treatment and have thus helped in its development.,

Under the Broadcasting Act, the corporation has been entrusted with
regulatory powers over private stations. Operators of these stations are granted
the exclusive and extremely valuable privilege of using one out of a relatively
small number of wave lengths available for use in our country, wave lengths
which are public property and are used by the licensees, primarily for profit
motives, whilst the C.B.C. operates its stations and networks exclusively in
the public interest.

Under these conditions, it is natural for private stations, or at least some
of them, to resent the limitations imposed upon their activities by these
regulations, in spite of the fact that the board has used its regulatory powers
only sparingly and in accordance with its conception of public interest and of
the letter and spirit of the Broadeasting Act.

Apropos of some remarks made this morning, I should like to mention here
that since the C.B.C. started in 1936 the governors have enjoyed close contact and
cooperation with the Canadian Association of Broadcasters. In fact, I scarcely
remember a meeting of the Board at which representatives of the C.A.B. were not
present to discuss with us their views and their problems.

Operators of private stations may look upon the C.B.C. as a competitor;
the reverse is not true. The C.B.C. does not operate for profit, it merely tries to
serve public interest as efficiently as possible and with that purpose in view, it
has imposed upon itself a number of restrictions which are not applied to private
stations. It has, moreover, helped many private stations to improve their
services to the public by feeding them programs which they could not have easily
duplicated.

None will deny that the programs of the C.B.C. have improved though the
corporation does not look upon them as having reached the acme of perfection.
All of them are appreciated by some people, some of them by all listeners,
but it cannot be hoped that all of them will appeal equally well to all listeners.

Criticism is to be expected, and if of a constructive character it is invited and
whenever possible used to improve the service. y
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The board in its policies has been guided by the principles enunciated in the
reports of the Parliamentary Committees which investigated the activities of the
corporation in past years; it hopes that these principles will be upheld by this
committee, but on the other hand, it will welcome any recommendation which
may aim at the improvement of radio broadcasting in our country.

The CrARMAN: Thank you, Mr. Morin. Are there any questions arising out
of the statement made by Mr. Morin?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Mr. Chairman, I think we can congratulate the chairman of
the board on the report which he has just presented to the committee. I think we

all appreciate the work that the C.B.C. is doing in improving the programs;-

but I was going to ask him this question with regard to the proposal for a full-time
chairman and general manager. Is that not going back to the former setup in
the organization which parliamentary committees found did not work and of
which they disapproved?

The Wirness: Well, that existed with the old Radio Commission.

Mr. CoLpwELL: Yes.

The Wirness: But the field of action of the Radio Commission was alto-
gether different from the present field of the C.B.C. There is no comparison.
You have no idea of the amount of work that falls under the exclusive juris-
diction of the general manager at the present time, and in fields so divergent that
it is practically impossible, or at least very difficult, to find a man who will have
the special qualifications needed to fulfil all of the functions and duties which
would fall upon him.

By Mr. Coldwell.

Q. I have in mind, of course, the long diseussion we had here subsequent to
that, two or three years ago, on divided authority when we found that that was
more or less disastrous—A. I realize that it has that objection. But there are
advantages on the other side. Keep in mind that the functions of the chairman
would be so different. He would not be bothered with the internal management
of the corporation. Consideration of finances, and consideration of staff. He
would attend to the policies, to the control of all the difficulties which arise over
the matters of programs, broadecasts and public relations. It is very important
that we should have a man able to popularize the work of the corporation. That
is a job which is surely big enough for the capacity of one man. If occasionally
conflicts should arise between the two, I would have no objection to giving the
predominant authority to the chairman of the board, and the board might
easily settle any diffiiculties. We have discussed that problem at great length.
We have taken no action on it since we have felt that it was not within our powers
to do it. On the other hand, we came to the conclusion that it would be better
that the problem should be placed before the parliamentary committee and that
the decision should rest with that committee.

Q. You have gone into this pretty thoroughly, have you?—A. Yes.

Q. I mean, the board?—A. Yes.

Q. The board is pretty well unanimous on it?—A. Yes. There was a
unanimous resolution,

Q. You have a resolution to that effect?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Could you go into a little further detail as to the functions of both
these positions? You have intimated it, but I think further elucidation of that
would help.—A. T thought I had pretty well covered the point in my statement.
The function of the chairman would be, first, the direction of the policies of
the corporation; constant supervision of all the programs to ascertain that these
programs are in accordance with the policy of the corporation; settling all the
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differences which may arise in the matter of the broadeasting of political and
controversial matters, popularizing the services of the corporation, and exereising
control or direction of private stations to the extent to which the board does
exercise control or to which it possesses regulatory power. In contrast to that,
the function of the general manager would be the internal management—to see
that the programs are carried on in accordance with the directions of the
chairman, control the finances, settle relations with the staff, and have direction
of the technical operations of the corporation. We have more than $1,000,000
worth of commercial operations, which is something. °
By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Two years ago you had a manager, a general manager and an assistant
general manager?—A. Yes.

Q. And you did divide the functions then, it strikes me, very much along
the lines you are suggesting now. If I remember rightly, Dr. Frigon had the
finances and the technical end and so on.—A. The reasons why that had been
done are not the same to-day.

Q. Oh, I know that. But I just wondered if you could cite any business
corporations with this kind of establishment.—A. In the former amendment
which we had made to our by-laws in order to give certain powers to the
assistant general manager, the assistant did not deprive the general manager
of his powers at all. He still had them. It did not work properly because
certain actions were taken by the assistant general manager whilst on the same
matters the general manager would take different action.

Q. Is there not a danger in what you propose that the same thing might
happen again?—A. Well, not if we have the proper man.

Q. I have an open mind on the subject. I am asking these questions merely
to clarify my own point of view.

By Mr. Isnor:
Q. Mr. Coldwell asks as to whether or not you can point to any commercial
large firms which are carrying on a policy such as you suggest?—A. Yes..
Q. I think that is easy to do—A. I would say that, to my mind, it is
practically the general rule.
Mr. CoupweLL: I know of some.
The Wrrness: The Bank of Montreal, for instance, has two general managers.

By Mr. Boucher: ;

Q. Have you given thought to the advisability or the practicability of
forming regional advisory boards to the Board of Governors? The thought has
occurred to me that the Board of Governors could very well seek the assistance
of volunteer regional advisory boards representing the interests and the welfare
of various regions across Canada, all of the regional advisory boards being set
up to include men concerned with the public interest and having public experi-
ence, and representing an area such as say, roughly, British Columbia, the
prairie provinces, central Ontario and eastern Ontario, all reporting to and
advising the Board of Governors on the general policy and practice of radio.—
A. This policy of having a regional advisory committee has been tried in the
past. Advisory committees were appointed in the prairie provinces; the plan
did not produce the results we expected, and finally the people became dis-
interested and it fell of itself. .

Q. Has a full, all-out effort been made to build up proper advisory boards
in that regard?—A. I think the appointment of the advisory council or the
advisory committee in the prairie provinces was made with the sincere desire
to make it a success. I am informed that we also had one in British Columbia.

Q. Of course, the advisory board would not be good unless it worked in
close co-operation with the Board of Governors and the members of the Board
of Governors worked in close co-operation with it?—A. No. But they are so
far apart.
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Q. Why should they be so far apart?—A. Because the Board of Governors
n meet, let us say, once every two months or once every month.

Q. Is it not a fact that the Board of Governors meets so seldom that they
do not play a very important role in C.B.C, affairs?—A. I do not think it is
a fact. You should attend one of the meetings to find out whether we play
a role or not.

Q). Well, the few meetings you hold and the little publicity given to any
meetings you do hold might indicate that.—A. We are not trying to give publicity
to our meetings. :

By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. Would you say you have met every six weeks during the last year?—
A. Yes.
Mr. Isnor: & ’ :
Q. Could you give us the dates?>—A. I will have to have them looked up.
Q. In other words, there were eight separate meetings?—A. Yes, eight
separate meetings.

By Mr. Coldwell:
Q.. How long do the meetings last, as a rule?—A. As a rule, it is two or
three days. We had one of three days recently; previously, one of two days.
It all depends. I have these dates here.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Do you conceive that, under the existing law, you have not power yourself
to appoint a general manager apart from the chairman?—A. Oh, yes; we have
that power to make a recommendation to the government.

Q. To make a recommendation to the government?—A. Yes; the appoint-
ment is made by the government.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. What is the objection to appointing a general manager?—A. There is no
objection.

Q. What is the objection to having a general manager and an assistant
general manager?—A. I should say that the decision as to the choice of the
person will not be the same if a full time chairman is appointed; because at
the present time, if we appoint a general manager who is the chief executive
and has charge of all the operations of the corporation, we have to look for a
man possessing the qualifications to fill the job. If there is a permanent chairman
appointed and he is chosen for his particular qualifications in a particular field,
then the general manager will have to be chosen for his qualifications in the
other field.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Does that argument apply with regard to the manager and the assistant
general manager?—A. Except that the assistant general manager under the Act
has no authority, no power, except to assist the general manager.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. The only thing is that the powers of the general manager and of the
assistant general manager would be set out in the by-laws of the corporation.
—A. Well, the by-laws might probably be changed. They have been changed
once, and the parliamentary committee reported against those changes; so we
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reverted to the original by-laws giving all the powers to the general manager
and attributing to the assistant general manager merely the function of assisting
the general manager.

Mr. CoLpweLL: You remind us just now that there were special reasons
why the by-laws were changed last time.

Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: May I ask'a question, Mr. Chairman?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes. '

By Hon. Mr. LaFleche:

Q. Is not the line of demarcation between the chairman and the general
manager the fact that, in the first place, that gentleman is the head of the
body which lays down policies whereas in the second case—that is the general
manager—he carries out the policies? Is that not the great difference between
the two?—A. Well, there is this difference. I would not agree that the chairman,
if he was appomted would be the one to define the policy. That would belong
to the board.

Q. I did not say that. T said he is the head of the board.—A. Yes.

Q. Which lays down policies.

By Mr. Martin:
Q. He is head of the policy-making body?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. LaFléche:
Q. Whereas the general manager is an officer of the corporation who carries
out the policies laid down for him by this body?—A. Yes.
Q. In other words, the body of which the chairman is A. Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Excuse me a moment. Mr. Isnor asked a question with
reference to meetings of the board. Do you want an answer to that now, Mr.
Isnor?

Mr. Isnor: I think it would be well to have it on the record.

The Wrrness: We held a meeting on the 12th and 13th of April; another
on the 14th and 15th of June; a third on the 10th and 11th of August; another
one on the 28th and 29th of September; another one on the 22nd and 23rd of
October; another one on the 22nd of November; another one on the 24th of
January and another one on the 20th of February. We are holding another
one on the 27th of March.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I was going to follow up that question by the minister. As I understand
you, Mr. Morin, you were talking about two men, one the chairman and the
other the general manager, and the chairman would have control over programs,
policy and that kind of thing?—A. Yes. ,

Q. He then would become an executive officer of the board as well as the
chairman of the Board of Governors. Is that not so? He would be, as it were,
a manager in that particular field?—A. Yes. His work would consist of control
or direction of the program policies or seeing that the programs are in accordance
with the general policies indicated by the board.

By Mr. Boucher:

Q. Do you suggest that he also sit on the executive committee or on the
Board of Governors as a member?—A. Yes. I would suggest that the meetings
of the board be presided over by him, that he be chairman of the board as well as
president of the corporation.
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By Mr. Hansell:
Q. Would he do anything more than crystallize what the Board of Governors

~ is doing now?—A. The Board of Governors can lay down the general policies,

but when it comes to the application of them, there must be some one to see that
these policies are being properly applied; and that would be the function of the
chairman. it

By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. Is not that the function of the general manager now?—A. Yes, it is the

“function of the general manager at the present time. But as I said, the field of

action of the general manager at the present time is so wide that I think the
services of the C.B.C. would be improved if we had a chairman to attend to

those particular duties, leaving the internal management to the general manager.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. What you really want to do is to take part of the function of the general
manager now and put that upon the shoulders of a full-time chairman of the
board?—A. Yes.

Q. You would still continue to have your assistant general manager, would
you?—A. Yes. ‘

By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. With regard to the day to day administration, the chairman would be
supreme in certain matters?—A. Yes.
Q. Otherwise the general manager would go directly to the board with his
problems?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. You have in mind the same kind of division as prevails in most corpora-
tions. The general manager is the man who carries on the technique of the
business, and he is always subject, of course, to the Board of Directors in respect
of what is done. The manager that you have in mind is a man who will
know the technical side of radio, the engineering features, the business side of
programs and that sort of thing. The chairman will be a public relations officer
dealing with the public as well as laying down policy?—A. Yes.

Q. That is the type of division you have in mind?—A. That is the idea we
have in mind.

By Mr. Veniot:

Q. Are there a very great number of problems which arise from one meeting
of your board to another?—A. Oh, T should say very many.

Q. Quite a number?—A. Yes.

Q. And you have a fair-sized agenda each time you have a meeting of the
board?—A. Generally a very heavy one.

Q. And your thought would be that a permanent chairman would be able
to give some consideration to these problems as they arise and have some sug-
gestions to submit to the board each time that you would meet?—A. We would
expect that of him.

Q. And probably you would have more frequent meetings of your board if
you had a permanent chairman, because he would be in a position to prepare
the way, so to speak, for your board meetings?

Mr. Boucuer: You might have less.

Mr. Hansern: T would say you might have less.

The Wirness: It is extremely difficult to have more than a meeting per
month, when you have to bring in members from Halifax and Vancouver. The
trip takes a long time; and unless they are willing to stay in Ottawa all the
time, it would be very difficult for them to come more often than they do.
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By Mrs. Casselman:
Q. Are you getting good representation at your meetings? I mean, are your
members coming in?—A. Oh, yes; practically at all of them.
Q. Practically at all of your meetings?—A. Practically at all our meetings.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. The position now, I suppose, is that the general manager, desiring to.
consult on a certain thing really has to wait until there is a board meeting. Is
that so? What I have in mind is if there were a general chairman, he would not
have to wait until there was a board meeting.—A. No.

Q. There could be continuous collaboration between the two?—A. Yes. I
think there is a great deal of that. I might add that the chairman, attending the
meetings of the board, would have more authority than a general manager who
is necessarily a subordinate officer; and the activities or the problems which arise
are so varied, so intricate, that it takes a man regularly in the function to be able
to advise the board properly as to what to do, and a man enjoying the same
authority as the other members of the board.

By Mr. Boucher:

Q. If that setup was adopted, where you had a chairman of the Board of
Governors salaried, and the head of the Board of Governors, and you had a
general manager also salaried and also an executive officer of the Board of
Governors, have you any recommendation to make to the committee as to the
personnel of the general manager or of the chairman of the Board of Governors.
—~A. I will tell you frankly, I do not feel—

Mr. Marrin: I doubt very much if that is a proper kind of question to put
to the chairman of the Board of Governors at this stage. That is a suggestion
that the thing is already determined, and all that sort of thing. I do not
think that is a fair sort of question to put to the board at this time.

Mrs. CasseLMAN: It is also difficult for the man who might be appointed,
because he might not be the first choice. It might be the man you could get
rather than the man you would choose.

Mr. BoucHER: Surely we are not going to take the position that we cannot
discuss it now because something like that might happen.

Mr. MacpoNALD: I do not think Mr. Boucher asked for any names. He is
just asking if he knew a man who could fill that position.

The WirNess: To tell you frankly, I have no idea as to who might fill the
position, personally; but I have discussed that with my colleagues and I have
asked them to try to find somebody who would be qualified to fill the job.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. You have considered this question because of eriticisms offered and the
suggestions made from time to time that there should be a full-time chairman.
Did you consider combining the two, the chairman and general manager, and
carrying on as you do at the present time with an assistant general manager?
—A. No. We did not consider that because I do not feel that it would be an
improving change under the present setup.

Q. It would give you what you are trying to get now, along with the
directing head, the general manager. You take the Canadian National Railways.
They have the first vice-president and general manager. Other concerns have
the same thing. The general manager or chairman of the board presides at
the meetings and carries out the policies as already mentioned by the minister.
He has no direct contact with the operations of the corporation. I do not see
why you could not combine the two and say the chairman and general manager,
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and thus bring about the result desired in a better degree and in a more efficient
manner than by having the offices separated—A. My idea is—and it may be
wrong; it is a matter of opinion—that there are duties which are too heavy
and too divergent in nature to be carried on by a single man, and that there
should be two men. '

Q. I am not talking about a single man. I am talking about two men;
one is the chairman and general manager. That is No. 1.—A. Yes.

Q. The second is your assistant general manager. I suppose, from the
statement you made previously, that you would not appoint a full-time chairman
of the board as No. 1, a general manager as No. 2 and an assistant general
manager as No. 3, would you? Is that your idea?—A. Yes. The assistant
general manager would remain and function as such.

Mr. Boucner: Have you fully answered my question? I think Mr. Martin
objected to you answering it, and I just wondered if there is anything more you
have to say or if you are going to give in to his objection?

The Wrrness: I will tell you frankly I have no suggestion to make as to
who might be appointed chairman, and I do not feel I am qualified to make a
choice of that kind because my field of relations in Montreal amongst French
Canadians is quite small, not sufficient to enable me to make an appointment

. which would apply to the whole of Canada. I do not know the English Canadians

in the other provinces, or a sufficient number of them, to feel that I could suggest
a proper appointment. I would hesitate to do it.

. By Mr. Boucher:

Q. Do you not think that before we decide the policy we should have a man
in view? What is the use of creating an office if you do not know whether you
will get somebody to fill it or not?—A. Once you know that there is a general
manager to appoint, or there is a chairman and then a general manager then
the choice would be restricted to some extent, and it would be easy to look for
persons qualified to fill those jobs.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. Do you wish to infer by that that that is the reason given that no general
manager has as yet been appointed?—A. I should think so, yes. My answer
would be yes. j

Q. Then I come back to the thought I expressed a moment ago. I think
you should seriously consider combining the chairmanship and the office of
general manager into one office. Otherwise I think you are going to have three
highly-paid officials doing work that might very well be done by two high-class
men. You have one high-class man at the present time in the person of your
assistant general manager. If you have a man equally efficient with a knowledge
of business methods and pay him the salary which I think should go with such
an office there is no reason why you should not combine the chairman and the
general manager into one person instead of adding another $15,000, $20,000 or
$25,000 to your payroll—A. That is a solution which certainly deserves con-
sideration.

_ Mr. BoucnEer: Is it not a case of taking practical men and putting thern
mto executive positions to a greater degree than you have done that you suggest?

Mr. IsNor:. As chairman of the board I believe that you must have a man
thoroughly familiar with business prineiples. You must have a man who under-
stands organization. This is a big organization doing $5,000,000 worth of busi-
ness. As I stated before I think you should combine the offices so that you
would have a chairman closely in touch with the governors, discussing policies
as the head of that Board of Governors, and then seeing that they are carried out
and put into real effect and operation.
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Mr. BoucHER: I appreciate youi' viewpoint, Mr, Isnor, but I wanted .to get
Mr. Morin’s view on that very point. :

Mr. Isnvor: I thought perhaps you were questioning it. ‘ ¥
The Wrrxess: Would you repeat your ‘question?

By Mr. Boucher:

Q. Is it not a case of your suggestion being one wherein you want a practical
man added to the practical men you already have on your executive body,
namely the Board of Governors?—A. To the question as put I would answer no.

Q. Then why would you want to have a chairman of the Board of Governors
and a general manager, both full time, both paid, both holding executive
positions instead of having the general manager and chairman of the board as one
man, and an assistant appointed to assist him as Mr. Isnor suggests?—A. It
comes to the same thing. If you give to the assistant manager the power which
under my proposal the general manager would have, and give to the chairman
the powers of the general manager it would come to the same thing. I do not see
any difference.

Mr. Isxor: Except that you would have one unnecessary head.
Mr. BoucHER: There is more probability of a conflict in policies.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. You do not propose to do away with the position of assistant general
manager as I understand it?—A. It was not in our plan.

By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. Does Mr. Morin think that the business of the corporation is large enough
to have these three head men, that is, a chairman, general manager and assistant
general manager?—A. At the present time there is plenty of work for the three
of them, and if each one worked in his separate field of action I think the service
of the corporation could only be improved.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. May I put it another way?—A. The question was asked as to whether
you think it is necessary to have three. May I ask do you not think two could
carry on as efficiently if the work was properly divided?—A. The work could
be divided as I outlined it between the chairman and general manager, or general
manager and assistant general manager. I think we might carry on like that,
provided, of course, that there would have to be a chief officer appointed to
control the French network.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Is this a fair statement that behind your suggestion and the unanimous
decision of the board was this kind of problem, that you found it difficult to find
combined in any one person the qualities that you would expect in the chairman
of a policy making board and the qualities of a person who would be expected
to have technical knowledge of radio operation? It is difficult to find one man
who has those two qualities to the desirable degree. Is that not about the
position?—A. That is exactly the position. There is too much work for one man.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Have you conveyed this opinion of the board to the government?
A. Yes, we did.

Q. 1 was going to ask you if the board will be left with only one man—
and you say that the work is too heavy for one man—for an indefinite length
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of time or whether there will be a decision on this by the government apart
from the committee or whether the government will wait for the committee
to make a decision because it is dragging along, and I agree it is too big a job
for one man.—A. It would be important for the committee to make a recom-
mendation on that point as soon as possible, perhaps before the end of its sittings.

Mr. DurocHER: Do you not think for the good of that institution it
would not be advisable to have a chairman whom you might call general
manager and have two assistants, one taking care of each department mentioned
a moment ago by Mr. Morin, one taking care of the technical department and:
the other one taking care of the financial department? They would be both
working under one head. There would only be one authority instead of two
as in the case of a general manager and a chairman who would have to divide
their authority. If the same person is both the chairman and the general
manager then he can give his orders accordingly to his two assistants who have
to act on instructions received. They both would be responsible to him.

Mr. Boucuer: You would have a two-headed Janus then.

Mr. DurocaiEr: He would have only one head but two assistants.

Mr. Hansern: It seems to me that we must not look at this picture as
though we had a corporation simply doing a business of $5,000,000 a year. The
fact of the matter is, as I see it, that the business of radio is a tremendously
expanding business. You do not know what the corporation may be facing a
year or two or three years from now. My opinion is we are only beginning to
touch the fringes of radio. I do not think we should be picayune in these things.

Evidently there has been some difficulty in trying to seek out the right
man. I do not believe the man exists that the Board of Governors want. He
may exist in some large corporation perhaps in some other country, and if he
does exist then I fancy he is getting a handsome salary of anywhere from
$20,000 to $50,000 a year.

The Wirness: More than that.

Mr. MarTiN: He is an incentive wages man.

Mr. Hansern: I think that is true. We cannot get that sort of fellow.
That is all there is to it. Nobody is going to leave a big corporation to come
down to a salary of from $10,000 to $15,000 a year. I think before this thing is
over that the corporation will be getting a man of that kind eventually because,
as [ say, it is such a tremendously expanding art and science.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. I should like to ask Mr., Morin a question. It appears to me that
perhaps the board has been looking outside for a man of these qualifications.
I should like to ask if the board has considered that perhaps a man be found
who is already in the corporation. What I have in mind is this; almost any
corporation works on a system of seniority. We have a man in the corporation
as mentioned this morning, Dr. Frigon, who has been with the corporation
ever since its inception. It does seem to me with the growing art and science
of radio that some of these men have grown up with it, and I am beginning
to question in my mind whether it is necessary to go outside the corporation
to find the man you want.—A. That is a question which has been discussed at
one or two of our meetings.

Mr. Ross: May I ask a question?

Mr. HanseLL: Just a minute, Mr. Ross.

The Wirness: The matter was discussed. No action was taken.

Mr. HanseLL: There is another point in this connection. Someone men-
tioned that we are taking a long time to get a general manager. I do not share
that view particularly. I do not think that the public are very much concerned

3355—4




44 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

about whether or not a general manager is appointed now or six months hence.
What they are concerned about is the results they get over the air. My im-
pression is they are getting the same result now as they got six months or a year
ago. I think that perhaps the Board of Governors and some inside the corpora-
tion are more concerned about getting a general manager than the public are.
I am not going to suggest that you hurry this thing just because it may appear
to be something that is aggravating some one or another. I think it is better
to wait and make sure that your policy is a sound one and then make your
appointment just as long as the corporation is carrying on satisfactorily as far
as results are concerned, and the public are the people who can tell you that.
The Witness: That is in line with my views.

Mr. Ross: May I ask a question? Mr. Morin has mentioned that the
work is getting very heavy for the chairman and the Board of Governors. It
has been suggested that there is some dissatisfaction on the part of private broad-
casters—I believe it has been mentioned in Quebec—that C.B:C. act in the
position of referee and competitor at the same time, and it has been suggested |
that an independent board be set up to take care of a great many of the
questions which arise in connection with broadcasting generally in Canada.
I am going to ask Mr. Morin whether the time of .the board and the general
manager is taken up with the management of the affairs of the broadecasting
corporation itself to this extent which he talks about or is it taken up to a
very large extent with the formation of the general policy of broadecasting
throughout Canada? It seems to me a good deal of the time must be taken
up that way. It appeals to me, too, that the people who are running the ‘C.B.C.
should spend their full time on the running of the C.B.C. and not have to bother
about general policies of broadcasting throughout Canada.

I should just like to mention one word in passing about Mr. Nathanson.
I think he did a very fine job for the broadcasting corporation and it might be
in order for the chairman to convey our sympathy to his family in connection
with his recent passing,

To go on, I think the people of Canada are entitled to the best direction
which they can have for the broadecasting corporation. I must say this, that the
broadcasting corporation has done generally a fairly good job. There are some
things that may be criticized, many of them that probably will be criticized, but:
I have the greatest regard for many of the employees who are working and
doing a good job in the corporation. I say that, but under the old set-up accord-
ing to the bylaws—I do not think I have got the recent ones—there was a
chairman of the board. In the normal course of events it seems to me that he
could easily do his work in connection with the laying down of policy and the
running of the corporation itself. The directions of the board in connection with
policy would have to be handed on to the general manager of the corporation
and there were certain functions that he carried out. The general manager had
an assistant. I think it is a very fine thing in a corporation like this that the
general manager should have an assistant because he wants an understudy, in
other words, He wants somebody coming on. Then, too, I think that the idea
of fostering promotion from within the corporation is a good one, as mentioned
by Mr. Hansell. Therefore it seems to me that this is not just a simple problem
that can be settled by making the job of the chairman of the corporation a
full-time job. I should like Mr. Morin’s comments on the things I have just said.

The WiTnEss: At the present time under the Act as it is the chairman is
merely one of the members of the Board of Governors. When he is appointed
chairman he is charged with presiding at the meetings of the board. You know
very well that the management of a broadcasting system is something of a very
technical nature, and members of the board attending meetings, let us say every
month or two months, are hardly in a position to pass judgment unless they have
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the information and the advice of a man who is in charge of the intricate
problems which the corporation has to face, and who is able to put up a case
before the board of directors. It is the same thing in the management of any
other company. The board of directors meet, you have a general manager who
comes in, and I say that nine times out of ten, if not ninety-nine out of one
hundred, he knows much more about the thing that is to be done than any of the
members of the board of directors. If is his job to put up a case before the
board and then the board passes judgment, but before doing so they have the
information from one who has inside knowledge of the problems with which they
are faced.

By Mr. Martin: :
Q. And would be there all the time?—A. And would be there all the time.

Mr. Ross: I understand that, but what I am trying to get at is, is the time
of the board taken up more with the management of the corporation itself or is
it taken up with the management generally of radio in Canada?

Mr. CoLpwerL: With sundry applications from private broadcasters.

The Wirness: I would say that we spend much more time on the manage-
ment of radio than on the details of inside management. As a matter of fact, the
board does not deal very much with inside management. At all of our meetings
we usually have delegations of five, six, seven, eight or nine coming before us to
present their cases. One may have something, another one wants a licence,
another one wants to increase their power, other ones to transfer licences. The
Association of Private Broadcasters has come up at practically all of our
meetings. They have supplied us with briefs setting out what they wanted.
Sometimes they raise six, seven, eight or nine points. Every one of those points
is subsequently discussed by the board. That is not internal management. The
board does not bother very much with internal management. It deals with the
policy of the corporation.

By Mr. Boucher:

Q. In other words, you say that the biggest part of the work is that of
public relations, the relation between the board and private stations rather than
the management of the C.B.C. network?—A. We discuss also general policies
and matters of programming. We always have at all our meetings a lengthy-
report on the programs and on suggestions made by the general manager as to
the programs which he has in view for organization. We discuss those programs..
We give directions. ;

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. Mr. Morin, this same problem which is facing you to-day as far as
responsibility of operation is concerned was the same problem you had on
March 24, 1941, by reason of which you set up an executive committee. The
same problem faced you at that time, division of authority and control of
operations, and you vested that authority in an executive committee?—A. Yes.

Q. My thought is if it was necessary on March 24, 1941, and that some
problem faces you to-day, that instead of vesting that authority in an executive
vest that authority in the general manager, or combine a chairman of the board
and general manager and you will be bringing about the results that you wished
to bring about when you set up that executive. TIs that not so?—A. The situation
which we had to face in 1941 was not exactly the same. We had then to deal
with internal management, and the idea of creating an executive committee was
to permit it to deal with internal management, not so much with general policy
which was to be left to the board. :

3355—4}
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Mr. CoLpwELL: In other words, you were setting up an executive committee
‘because there was lack of confidence in the former general manager.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. But the same problem faces you today in regard to division of authority
and operation? Read over your recommendation.—A. I cannot agree there
would be a conflict of authority between the chairman and general manager
if we have two good men for the job.

Q. Allow me to read:

“The executive committee shall have power:—

(a) to manage the affairs of the corporation, to control its finances and

to supervise its operations, in accordance with the general policies
laid down by the Board of Governors.”

Those powers you would assign to a chairman or general manager if

yvou had the right general manager.

“(b) To define the functions, duties and responsibilities of the officers and
employees of the corporation and to direct them in the performance
of their duties.”

A. The definition of the policies to the employee shall be made by the

board.

Q. But you are carrying them out?—A. The direction of the officers in

the performance of their work might properly be done by either a chairman
or general manager.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Assuming that your proposal was acceptable have you given any
consideration as to what financial outlay would be required in addition?—
A. No, but at the present time I think a salary of $15,000 might be considered
for the chairman.

Q. And the general manager would receive what?—A. At the present time
he receives $13,000.

Mr. Ross: The functions of the chairman of the board and the board
today are dual in purpose, that is, the direction of the policy of management
of the corporation itself, of the broadcasting of the corporation, and also the
management generally of radio in Canada.

The Wirness: Not the management of radio in Canada, the management
of radio through the C.B.C., and the regulatory powers exercised by the board
over private stations are relatively simple and we have passed regulations which
can be looked into by the members of this committee which were intended to
be in what we thought was the public interest.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. You have said that your time was taken up mostly with that sort
of thing, in connection with broadcasting, generally in Canada, not with the
operations of the broadcasting company itself?—A. No, no.

Q. For instance, you deal with the refusal of licencesee—A. Yes.

Q. Or with questions of increased power?—A. Yes.

Q. Or with applications for channels and all that sort of thing. The
majority of the time of you as chairman and of the board itself is taken up
with that aspect of the thing?—A. I would hardly say the majority of our
time. We spend some time on that but the private broadecasters have always
some request to make respecting the application of our regulations, changes
to our regulations. We study these problems and we study our general
broadeasting policy, and, of course, the control of our finances, the budget.
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Q. That is different; the control of your finances and budget is a
question’ which affects your corporation?—A. Yes.

Q. The actual work of your corporation, the putting on of programs, and
all that sort of thing, hook-ups and chains and so on, but the other part you
have just mentioned is the general policy that you put out for your private
stations as to what they shall do and shall not do, your regulations, and
so on.—A. It is difficult to answer this question by yes or no. At some meetings
we have spent a lot of time on the question of radio licences, but at others
we have spent time on our regulations. At others we have spent time in
discussing our program policies, our general work, our finances.

Mr. CoupweLL: I think what Mr. Ross is trying to get at is this; do you
think you spend such an amount of time on the matters that Mr. Ross mentioned
to the detriment of the internal management of your own corporation? I think
that is it. 4 _

Mr. Ross: It is not quite that. What I am getting at is you have a dual
function, and it seems to me that a company which does $5,000,000 worth of
business could certainly stand a board of directors. It certainly can stand a
board of directors, it certainly can stand a general manager and a chairman
of the board and it certainly can stand an assistant general manager. That is
where your organization goes. Then, it seems to me you should have some
other organization which does not take into consideration that part at all
but deals only with the general policy of broadcasting in Canada. As I under-
stand it from Mr. Morin a great deal of the time is taken up with deciding
general policies of broadeasting in Canada.

Mr. MarTin: What have you got in mind? Are you thinking of something
like a board of referees as was suggested in Quebec?

Mr. Ross: I am saying just as I said a few moments ago that they
acted as referees as well as competitors with the private stations. That is
exactly the position they are in.
~ Mr. Marrin: Just so that we will clearly understand what Mr. Ross has
in mind are you now proposing that there should be an executive body to
deal with the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation and another body to deal
with the general problems of radio including the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation, private broadeasters, and so on?

Mr. Ross: You can have it either way you like but I think that there
are two functions which are mixed up in the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation
as it is today. I think that is the cause of a great deal of the trouble we
have run into in the past. There are two functions mixed up there. It might
be of help if you had something like the Railway Commission which has been
mentioned, and which the minister mentioned this morning for the consideration
of this committee. It might be better to take it outside of the radio broad-
casting corporation altogether.

Mr. MacponaLp: They are all full time on the Railway Commission. All
the members of the Railway Commission are full-time members.

Mr. Ross: Well, in the United States, as you probably all know, it is
regulated by the Communications Commission.

Mr. Isnor: You are talking about two different subjects altogether.

The CrarmaN: Order. Have you a question for the witness, Mr. Ross?

Mr. Ross: Yes, I have. But everybody has been talking.

The CHARMAN: Address the chair, please.

Mr. Ross: I want to get Mr. Morin’s idea on this thing.

The CuAIRMAN: Ask the witness questions.




48 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

By Mr. Ross:

Q. What do you think about a separate body, such as that in the United
States called the Federal Communications Commission? What is your opinion
about having that?—A. I do not see the necessity of it, for the following reasons.
The first is that it has been so far the policy of these parliamentary committees
that it is of paramount importance to have a single national authority to control
all broadcasting in the public interest; secondly, if the C.B.C. was to be
dependent upon the authority of a tribunal or commission having authority
over both private and public stations, our function would be made much more
difficult; because we have in mind uplifting the character of our programs.
We have in mind having broadecasts of an educational character which do not
appeal to the masses of the population. They have to be invited or incited
to hear these programs for their own benefit. But if we were placed in this
position where we have to compete with the private stations to obtain the
popular ear, all those programs would have to be abandoned. There would be
no competition possible, in the field of educational broadcasting, with private
stations.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. In your view, this would strike at the very basis of the present broad-
casting system in Canada?—A. I think so. Then I may add that I know of
no particular reason why the private broadcasters would be justified in making
a demand of that kind. They have made it in their convention in Quebec, but

they have not stated any grounds upon which they were basing their request,
except perhaps in order to have greater freedom in making money.

Mr. Isnor: No; to have greater freedom of operation.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. Would you say that the full field of radio broadeasting could be properly
fulfilled in Canada under the present system?—A. Because, sir, we have no

interests at all in opposition to the interests of private stations. We are not -

paid. We are not getting any portion of the profits or of the money which is
made by the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. We are not competing with
the private stations at all. We are helping them as much as we can. But there
is nothing, if the Board of Directors is composed of the proper men, which
would justify the private broadcasters in rejecting their authority, because the
C.B.C. also operates its own stations. There is no competition possible.

Mr. CorpweLL: I think it would be a good thing for us to read again the
Aird Report of 1929, as I suggested this morning.

Mr. Ross: I have read it.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. I should like to ask this question again. Do you think that the full
field of broadcasting is being fulfilled under the present system, as well as it
could be fulfilled?—A. My answer is Yes.

Q. Then I am going to ask you another question. Have there been any
applications for the experimental use or otherwise of frequency modqlation or
television?—A. I think that licences for experimental stations by radio enthu-
siasts have been granted. Is that not right?

Q. Have they been granted?—A. I think so. But we have not granted,
80 far—and we think it is premature to do so—a licence to operate a frequency
modulation station for commercial purposes.

Q. Have any requests been made?—A. Yes.
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By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Are you doing anything of that sort yourself?—A. I beg your pardon?

Q. Is the corporation doing anything of this sort itself with regard to.
frequency modulation?—A. We had started before the war, and we had planned
to build a frequency modulation station in Montreal in conjunction with the
Marconi Company. Then the war came and, as you know, on account of
priorities we could not get the material, so we let the matter drop until after
the war. But I am rather inclined to believe, or rather am strongly of the
opinion that after the war there will be a considerable change in broadcasting
in Canada, and that frequency modulation will be called upon to play a very
important part.

Q. I think that is right.

By Mr. Ross:

Q.1 want to ask you one more question. Have any requests been made
for increased power since the last meeting of the committee, or rather since
our last report?—A. Yes. A lot of them.

Q. Have they been allowed?—A. No, sir.

Q. Have any been allowed?—A. Well, I do not think so, no.

Q. None have been allowed?—A. No. There are two reasons for that. The
first is that the material to increase the power of a station is not available on
account of the priorities; and the second is that there is at the present time
a convention sitting in Washington to discuss the distribution or the allotment
of wave lengths in North America, and this convention may change the present
setup. It was therefore felt that it would not be in the interests of the private
broadecasters to allow them to spend a lot of money to increase the power of
their stations when we know that right after the war everything may have
to be changed.

Q. Is that not a matter for the private broadcasting stations to make up
their own minds about?—A. Well, it is difficult to agree to one request and to
refuse the others. I think the problem is so wide that we must wait until we can
take a decision that will cover the whole field.

Q. Last year Professor Bayly was here and gave us a very interesting brief
on broadcasting. He made some very interesting statements in that brief. He
said that Canada had lost or would lose many of the channels which were allotted
to her. Was his statement correct? Perhaps this matter is one for the engineering
staff. But if his statement was correct, how could you justify not giving the
power requested to these stations? That is, if his statement was correct.—A. I
may say that we doubted the accuracy of the statement. Since that time there
has been this convention called in Washington to discuss that very situation,
which was another inducement causing us to refrain from taking action until the
matter would be cleared up.

Q. One other thing. You appreciate the fact, of course, that unless Canada
fills her channels by 1945, I think it is, when the agreement runs out, we are
liable to lose those channels?—A. Yes. We are taking care of that. We do not
forget that point, and it is not our intention to run the risk of losing those
wave lengths.

t lgr. MagrtiN: They do not run out in 1945. It is in 1946 that they run out, is
it no

The WiTnEss: 1946.

By Mr. Ross:

Q. Yes; but you have to be prepared before 1946.—A. Dr. Frigon has gone
to Washington and has discussed that situation with the F.C.C. officials and he
may be able, when he appears before this committee, to give you more accurate
information than I have.

B




50 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

By Mrs. Casselman: :
Q. I expect you have just answered my question. I was going to ask if
Canada was represented at that conference?—A. Yes.
Q. By Dr. Frigon?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Veniot:

Q. Dr. Morin, you recommend the appointment of a full-time chairman.
Presently you are functioning as chairman of the board—A. Yes. |

Q. Your function consists of presiding at meetings of the board, let us say, |
every six weeks?—A. Yes.

Q. Much of your time, you must devote to the affairs of the board in between
those meetings—that is, your personal time?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you not have to receive representations, and so forth, and so on, and ,
have cases presented to you in the meantime? Is it not as a result of this obligation
to receive presentations and devote a certain amount of your time to thinking
about C.B.C. problems, that there has grown the recommendation that you make
today?—A. That is a fact, sir. I must modestly confess that I do not give the
C.B.C. as much time as I should, because I cannot. I have not got it at my dis- 4
posal. But I feel that the situation would be improved if there were a permanent
chairman. T attend all the meetings of the board. Apart from that, I receive
daily correspondence, and once in a while some people will come to see me about
the affairs of the C. B. C. As to the correspondence which I ecan handle from my
office, I do not object. I do it gladly. But I have not the time to go deeply
enough into the problems with which we are faced, and that is one of the reasons
why I submit there should be a permanent chairman giving all of his time to
these matters.

By Mr. Martin:
Q. Your honorarium is how much a year?—A. $1,500 a year.

v By Mr. Ross:

Q. T have one other question. Can you tell us, Dr. Morin, what the general
opinion in Great Britain is today with respect to the control .of radio by the
B.B.C.?—A. T am sorry, I have no information on that. I have read an address
given by Brendan Bracken in which he seemed satisfied with the work that the
B.B.C. were doing; but I have not enough information to answer your question
otherwise.

Q. There was an article which appeared in the “New Statesman and Nation”
and also is reprinted in “The News” in Toronto of September 25, 1943. I believe
that most of the people of the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation have received
this. T wondered if you had received it and read th e articles that were in it?
—A. I am sorry, I have not seen it.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Mr. Chairman, might I ask one further question. I am not altogether
satisfied that the question has been fully answered as to whether or not the
responsibilities of the C.B.C. would be amplified in case there was a separate
body such as has been suggested, such as a commission, a board or something
elsa, to handle the radio policy throughout Canada. My feeling is that naturally
if the C.B.C. board had their responsibilities confined to the operation of the
corporation itself, their responsibilities would be less. I do not see that it
would prevent the C.B.C. from carrying out its cultural programs and attempt-
ing to do what ordinary private commercial stations do. I wish Mr. Morin could
give us some further light on that. Perhaps some further witness may do so.
I would fancy that most of the time or a good deal of the time of the Board of
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Governors is taken up in respect of general radio poliey, national policy, that
another board could very well handle while the Board of Governors could confine
their work pretty much to the operation of the corporation itself.—A. I do not
think it is proper to say that the Board of Governors is losing much of its
time in attending to the adoption or the enactment of the general regulations
applying to all broadeasting stations in Canada. As I have stated, if there was
an independent tribunal or commission dealing with broadcasting in Canada
over and above the head of the C.B.C., it would mean that the national broad-
casting system would fall upon the same regulations as the private stations;
and the result of this would be that the national system would enter into
competition with the private stations in respect of the means to obtain the
audience which it needs. I believe that the result of this competition would
lead it to appeal to the masses of the people with programs of a more popular
character than it wishes to do, and therefore that the interests of the Canadian
public would not receive better service in that way than they do at the present
time. :

Q. Could not a board or commission care for the welfare of the people just
the same?—A. Such a tribunal could not submit the national system to different
regulations than those applying to private stations. :

Q. Quite so.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. The regulatory power would simply deal with licences, wave lengths and
that kind of thing; it would not have any control over the character of programs.
I think that is what you mean. The C.B.C. would then be merely a broad-
casting organization competing for audience?—A. Yes. 3

Q. And for advertising and so on?—A. Yes.

Q. With the private broadcasters?—A. Yes.

Q. And the regulatory body would deal mainly with applications for
licences?—A. Yes.

Q. And wave lengths, and that kind of thing?—A. Yes.

Q. Is that what you had in mind, Mr. Morin?—A. Yes.

Mr. Ross: That is not necessarily so. It would depend upon what the
powers of the board were.

Mr. Hanserr: It depends on the duties.

Mr. Ross: I have just one further question.

The Wirness: If the private stations have reasonable grounds for com-
plaint against the regulations enacted by the board, I should like them to bring
them up; then if we have failed in our duty towards them, the question of
appointing a tribunal which would have jurisdiction in these matters might
be considered. But I do not think it would be proper to take a decision on a
matter of that kind merely on the word that the private broadcasters would
prefer to have it that way.

The CualRMAN: Are you finished, Mr. Hansell?

Mr. Haxserr: On that point.

By Mr. Ross:

' Q. Some of the private broadcasters have asked for an increase in power,
and they have done 1t for a definite purpose, namely to serve the people of the
country, the people they are broadcasting to. It is not a question of getting
very wide coverage, because power does not enter into that to any great extent.
But you get a better signal, and that is what they want.—A. That is a technical
matter, and I think that the assistant general manager may be in a much better
position to give you details, and may be able to amplify the answer to this
question better than I can. But we do not feel that we have hurt the private
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broadecasters in any way in delaying taking action. We keep in close touch
with the situation in Washington, and we have as much interest as they have
in preserving for Canada the wave lengths allotted to us under the Havana
Conference. We do not intend to allow them to be lost, unless we come to the
conclusion that it would be in the interests of Canada to abandon them. We
fought hard to get them. It is certainly not our idea to drop them.

Q. I am not speaking now for the protection of private stations. I am
speaking for the protection of the public of Canada.—A. Yes. That is what
we have in mind.

Q. That is the point; and I can see no reason at all why, if a station wants
to increase its power in order to increase the signal to its listeners, it should not
be allowed to do so, unless the C.B.C. is afraid of that competition.—A. You base
your stand now, I understand, on a statement which was made by Professor
Bayly last year. But there was no evidence in rebuttal of the statement which
he made before this committee last year. This year you may question our
technical officers on this point, and they will give you the answers.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. If you are through with that topic, I was going to ask you another
question. Does the Board of Governors review the proposals for new programs?
—A. T would say yes, we do.

Q. T am going to ask-you about the program “Things to Come.”—A. Yes?

Q. When was that first brought before the board? Have you any recol-
lection of that?—A. I think it was the end of October, sir; the end of October.

Q. And the board authorized that program, did it?—A. We did authorize
it; but the arrangements for those programs had been made by Dr. Thomson as
general manager. :

Q. Oh, he had made the arrangements?—A. He had made the arrangements.
Then we heard some criticism about this program and the board had a meeting.
We considered the situation and decided to go on.

Q. When did you first hear about the criticism of the program?—A. About
the end of October, I think. i

Q. The end of which?—A. The end of October.

Q. The end of October?—A. Yes.

Q. An announcement was made that the program would be deferred, post-
poned or temporarily cancelled, or whatever you like to say, through the minister,
I think, on the 17th of November. Was that statement made with the authority
of the Board of Governors?—A. No, sir.

Q. No?—A. No. By referring to the notes here, I see that the board took
cognizance of this program only at its meeting of November 22.

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. November 22, did you say?>—A. November 22.
Q. The latter part of November?—A. The 22nd of November.

By Mr. Coldwell: '
Q. This program was postponed without the knowledge of the board?—
A. T do not feel it was postponed. The statement was made that it might be
postponed, but I do not believe there was any postponement. All the programs
went on at the dates which had been originally fixed.
Q. I know. But the announcement was made by the minister that it was
to be postponed.—A. Yes. There was no delay so far as I know.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. May I ask a further question? Assuming now that perhaps an additional
post will be created and you will have a full-time chairman of the board, did
I understand you to say that part of his function would be to act as a sort of
a public relations officer?—A. Yes.
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«Q. Complementary to that, might I make this observation. The minister
this morning in submitting his brief to us suggested that some considerable
criticism has been made which tended to weaken rather than strengthen the
corporation. I feel that a public relations officer is very essential. I feel that
the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation has still to be sold to the Canadian
people. I do not believe the corporation has paid enough attention to that
end of it. I want to look at everything in the fairest light possible. I think
in a committee of this kind there should not be too much manoeuvring for
political position. All the public know is that they pay $2.50 a year. I should
not say that is all they know, but that is the big thing they have in mind. They
say, “I pay $2.50 a year. What am I getting for it?” They are never told
what they are getting for it. I feel that is a part of the business of the cor-
poration that has perhaps been neglected. How many times, for instance,
are we aware that some official of the corporation is giving a lecture to the
service clubs of Canada? I do not know of any. Perhaps they have. We
have a National Film Board, which produces a series of pictures called “Canada

_Carries On”. Well, Canada carries on in the field of radio broadcasting. I think

perhaps there is an avenue through which we can publicize our corporation
to the people of Canada. Some of these films are for rent. A good series of
pictures or a good film on the corporation, showing some of our people, some
of the equipment they have, how things are done and so on, I think would help
in publicizing the thing in Canada. I make that observation because I think
it is a very necessary thing.—A. I share those views, Mr. Hansell.

Q. There is another question I should like to ask. I do not know whether
Mr. Morin is the person to answer it or not. It is in respect to equipment
in the way of buildings, studios and so forth. Do the Board of Governors
decide on that, or is that left with the management? Suppose you want to
put up a studio costing $20,000. Who decides that?—A. Oh, the Board of
Governors decide on that.

Q. Has there been anything done along that line recently?—A. Well, yes.
We are enlarging our studios in Montreal and in Toronto, I think; in Quebec,
Montreal and Toronto. Those are decisions taken recently. :

Q. I am going to make this observation. I said a little while ago that we
should not be picayune in this matter. Perhaps the war has something to do
with priorities and so forth with respect to building. But I am of the impression
that our present building equipment, particularly with respect to studios,
does not give the picture I should like to see given. As a matter of fact, I may
as well say that I visited the studio in Toronto, and was very much surprised
to find that it was housed in a factory. As a matter of fact, I could not get
in there. I had the address. I went to the address, and all I could see under
that address was this factory. I could not even see the studios. Of course, I
expected to see some pretentious building.

Mr. Isnor: A Radio City.

Mr. HanseLL: Yes, a Radio City. We talk about the corporation doing
$5,000,000 worth of business a year. Naturally I expected to see quite a
Radio City. Instead I saw a big iron cage with a policeman standing there.
When I went to the policeman, I had the impression that I was trying to get
into a prison camp. Eventually I met the manager of the station who was very
very courteous to me, but I could not help feeling that our corporation deserves
more than they have got. I know that radio is still in its infancy. What
might be built to-day might be obsolete five or ten years from now. I do not
know, but I think we should pay some attention to that—A. I am in entire
agreement with you. The deplorable situation which you found in Toronto is
duplicated in Montreal. Before the war we had decided to build two buildings
for our studios and offices in Montreal and Toronto. In Toronto we purchased
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a piece of land at a cost of $50,000. In Montreal we obtained a free grant
of a very fine piece of property from the city of Montreal and we ordered plans
for a new building. The plans were completed and tenders were being asked for
the construction when war was declared. We had to borrow money from the
government and the government had agreed to lend that money to pay the
cost of these buildings but the war came on and then we were notified by the
government there would be no money available, and that the government was
opposed to the construction of these buildings during wartime. They wanted to
preserve all construction until after the war in order to give employment to
people coming out from the army or from the war factories. Therefore, our
plans were left in suspense but it shows that we realized fully as you do, Mr.
Hansell, the necessity of having proper studios and proper offices for our stations.

By Mr. Durocher:

Q. May I ask Mr. Morin if that location in Montreal is the one on Berri
street?—A. Yes.

Q. Because I know I was in the city council when it was handed over to
the government, but I thought there had been some change subsequently.—
A. No. The grant was made for the establishment of our studios. The studio
is not being built. We would have a doubtful title to the land at the present
time unless the grant is renewed.

Q. We must not wait until it has elapsed before asking for renewal.

Mr. Ross: I have one or two further comments.

Mr. HanseLn: Just a moment; in Toronto you have several studios and
they are spread all over the place. I understand that a considerable sum of
money has been laid out in the matter of repairing, painting and fixing up.
Could we have a statement in respect of that? 'Could one of the officials give
us that later as to what has been the outlay over the past several years since
the war, we will say, for buildings and equipment?

The Wirness: The cost of installing studios is very high, extremely high, in
whatever buildings we can get. Certainly you ean get this information but
you must not forget that knowing the character of the buildings in which these
expenditures were made we provided for their depreciation on a rapid scale.

Mr. Hansern: What I mean is this; you said a little while ago that the
government said no money was available for building but still we are paying
out money on the fixing up of old buildings which will soon be obsolete and we
will not use them any more. I have an idea—it may not be sound because
I am not a business man, I am not a business administrator—that that thing
could be done even in wartime, from now on, anyway. In the first part of
the war when we were speeding up production it was a little different. Now we
have reached a certain productive capacity and I think perhaps labour and
materials might be available, and that something of the nature could be built,
maybe not immediately but within the next few years, something that would
house all the studios in one building. I understand that many of these programs
have an audience admitted free. I do not see why some little charge might not
be made to those attending to help to amortize the loan or something of that
sort. I have not got all the details of it but I believe it is possible and that the
matter should be given further consideration at any rate.

Mr. Isxor: In other words, you would enter the field of amusement, enter-
tainment, which is subject to the amusement tax, and so on, in competition with
the theatres and shows.

Mr. Hansern: I do not know about that. There is no reason why you
should not. You can go into a show and stay there all day for 50 cents.
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‘Mr. Isvor: The sponsors of these programs usually issue tickets as a form
of advertising.
+ Mr. Ross: I have a couple more questions.

Mr. Haxspun: Some of these programs are worth listening to and worth
paying money to see.

Mr. Ross: I have a couple more questions. Dr. Morin said when I was
speaking about Professor Bayly’s evidence which was given here last year that
it was never controverted here in the committee. I would have thought that
evidence of such great import if it were not true would have been controverted
before now, but there has never been ancther word that I know of that it has
been controverted. The committee was here, and it seems to me that something
should have been done about it to take care of the situation if it is not so. I

do not only get my information from Professor Bayly’s words. I get it from-

other sources as well.

The Wirness: I would not say that Dr. Bayly’s evidence was not true.
I would not say that. I do not want that to be inferred from my statement, but
there are certain aspects of the question which were not considered because
the committee adjourned after the evidence given by Dr. Bayly.

Mr. Ross: That was given on the 13th of July.

The Crarman: It was the last public sitting, Mr. Ross.

Mr. Ross: I have one {further question to ask Mr. Morin. That is in con-
nection with our radio commentators. What supervision is given to the work
of commentators? Are their scripts looked over, how are they taken care of or
are they given a free hand, and if they do go beyond the bounds of what the
corporation suggests what is done about it?

The Wrrness: I have covered this question partly in my statement when
I said that:

“The only censorship that we recognize is that imposed for security
reasons by the official censorship directives which apply generally to press
and radio alike.”

We have discussed this question. It is impossible to expect that a news com-
mentator on the radio, preparing his address practically on the events which
have occurred up to the time he goes before the microphone, should have to
send his script over to the head office of the company, or one of the regional
offices, and have an officer of the corporation look into his text. Who would
be the officer who would be qualified to take, let us say, Mr. Willson Woodside’s
text, and say, “You will strike this passage out,” or do this or that. It might
be the superior officer of the studio where the broadecast is given but instead
of imposing such restrictions, which would be of a humiliating character, we
allow a free hand to our commentators in the expectation and on the direction
that they limit themselves in their comments within the lines of decency and
the regulations of censorship and regulations of the corporation; but we allow
thqn} to express their own opinions. It may very well happen that some of the
opinions they express do not coincide with opinions of certain groups of the
population but I do not think that would be sufficient grounds to prevent them
from speaking.

Mr. CotpwerL: Does that not oceur in all cases? You have a number of
commenators. I have listened to some of them sometimes. Sometimes I agree
with them and sometimes I violently disagree with them, but if you want the right
type of commentator, a man who is a responsible man, who is a thinker, surely
you cannot say to him, “you cannot say what you think.” If we are going to
have any measure of freedom in the country on the air surely people should be
allowed to express their own considered opinions. ! : ‘
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Mr. Ross: I quite agree with you but occasionally there are broadecasts by
commentators which I do not think are quite right. One broadcast that has
been in the public eye lately is one by Mr. Philpott. He can express his own
views, but I do not think it is right to create suspicion in the minds of the publie
to whom he broadcasts. Anybody can read the script. It has been tabled, but
I thought I would bring this to the attention of the committee: He says here:

I have not received second-hand access to the papers the Prime
Minister showed to the leaders of parliament.
It seems to me the Prime Minister showed these to the leaders of parliament in
secret, and surely they could make up their minds about the situation.

I have received reliable information on this case which shows me that it
raises some issues of deepest national concern. )
When a matter like that is before the leaders of parliament it seems to me that
any commentator should refrain from commenting in that way. Anybody can
read the script. I have not got the whole of it here. I just draw it to your atten-
tion, and I was wondering when a commentator does something like that is any-

thing said to him about it, or is he allowed to go on again?

Mrs. CasseLMAN: This is the first afternoon meeting we have had. Have
we no time limit or is it in order to move the adjournment, or would that mean
that Mr. Morin would have to come again?

The Cuamrman: I think, Mrs. Casselman, it would be quite agreeable to
move the adjournment at this time. I was just going to bring to the attention
of the committee that Mr. Morin could cateh the 5.45 train for Montreal, and
that if he does not leave now he would not be able to make it. Therefore, I would
suggest, that we adjourn now.

Mr. HanserLnL: We can deal with Mr. Ross’ question under programs.

The CHAIRMAN: Just a moment, please; just before adjournment I should
like to announce that I have for distribution the new edition of the white paper
on political and controversial broadcasting. If the members of the committee
will get that now they will have an opportunity of looking it over before the
next meeting. Is it the wish of the committee that Mr. Morin should appear at
the next meeting for further questioning?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Why not leave Mr. Morin to the call of the chair?

The CuarMAN: And hear from Dr. Frigon at the next meeting?

Mr. Isnor: That is satisfactory to me, except that I wanted to discuss the
question of CJFX, the Antigonish station, with Mr. Morin.

The CralrMAN: I think probably Dr. Frigon knows more about that.

The WirNess: Dr. Frigon knows more about it than I do.

Mr. Martin: The question of the news editorship and the alternative plan
can be discussed through another witness?

The CaalrMAN: We will bring the news editor here. i

Mrs. CasseLMAN: I think we should thank Mr. Morin for his attendance
here and for his report.

The CruamMAN: What is the wish of the committee with reference to the
next sitting? Is it agreeable that we sit a week from to-day, two sittings? All
rigcht; the committee stands adjourned until Wednesday, March 22, at 11
o’clock a.m.

The committee adjourned at 5.15 p.m. to meet again on Wednesday, March
22, at 11 o’clock a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

‘WEDNESDAY, (IV)Iarch 22, 1944.
4

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 o’clock.
Mr. J. J. McCann, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Boucher, Coldwell,
Diefenbaker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hansell, Hanson (Skeena), Isnor,
LaFleche, Matthews, McCann, Picard, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp—16.

Dr. Augustin Frigon, acting general manager of the C.B.C., was present at
the meetings of March 15 last, assisting the Chairman of the Board of Governors.

In attendance: Senator Arthur Beaubien.

Complying with a request of the Committee, the following were tabled:—
1. Appointments to the Staff of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation
(Sept. 15, 1944 to March 15, 1944).
(See Appendiz A to this day’s evidence.)
2. A breakdown of expenditures respecting alterations and improvements
to studios in Montreal and Toronto from 1939 to 1943 inclusive.
(See Appendiz B to this day’s evidence.)

The above were ordered printed as appendices to this day’s minutes of pro-
ceedings and evidence.

Dr. Augustin Frigon, écting general manager of the C.B.C., was called.

It was agreed that his examination be made after the conclusion of his
statement.

Dr. Frigon tabled the following documents:—
1. School Broadecasts for 1943-1944 (Young Canada Listens).
2. Radio-College for the year 1943-1944.
3. C.B.C. Pension Plan.

The above mentioned documents were distributed forthwith.

The witness proceeded with his statement relative to:—
(a) Program policy.
(b) School broadcasts.
(¢) Farm broadcasting.
(d) Overseas Unit.
(e) Controversial broadecasts.
(f) Of Things to Come.
(g) National News Service.
(h) Staff Councils.
(7) Pension Fund.

Witness retired.
At 1245 pm., on motion of Mr. Picard, seconded by Mr. Durocher, the
Committee adjourned until 3 p.m. this day.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,

Clerk of the Committee.
4005—1%
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WEeDNEsDAY, March 22, 1944.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting resumed at 3 o’clock. The
Chairman, Mr. J. J. McCann, presided.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman, Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Coldwell,
Diefenbaker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hansell, Hanson (Skeena), Isnor,
LaFleche, Martin, Matthews, McCann, Mullins, Picard, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp
and Veniot—18.

Dr. Augustin Frigon, acting general manager of the C.B.C., was recalled. He
continued with his presentation and was examined thereon.

The topics covered at this sitting were:—

1. Power Increases and Havana Agreement.
2. Network Operations.
3. Canadian Commercial Continuity.

At the suggestion of Mr. Diefenbaker, the witness agreed to produce a
list of the C.B.C. salary schedules for all employees showing the number of
employees in each category.

Referring to the C.B.C. income of $1,243,553.08 for commercial advertising,
Mr. Diefenbaker asked that the Committee be furnished with a general break-
down.

The case of Mr. Edouard Beaudry, killed over North Africa on his way to
the Casablanca Conference on a special assignment, was briefly discussed.

The Chairman transmitted to the members of the Committee an invitation
of the acting general manager to visit the Montreal and Toronto studios.

Witness retired.

At 5.15 p.m., on motion of Mr. Coldwell, the Committee adjourned until
Wednesday, March 29, at 11 am.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons, MarcH 22, 1944.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadecasting met this day at 11 o’clock
a.m. The Chairman, Dr. J. J. McCann, presided.

The CuarMAN: We shall proceed with the business of the meeting this
morning. The first business arising out of the last meeting has to do with some
returns which were ordered produced. A copy of the report of the Royal Com-
mission on Radio Broadeasting, 1929, commonly known as the Air Report, has
been supplied to each member of the committee. The next item has to do with
the request by Mr. Coldwell for a list of the appointments to the staff of the
C.B.C. in the past six months. That list is here and will appear as an appendix.
The next matter has to do with a question raised by Mr. Hansell. He wanted to
know how much money has been spent in recent years on improvements and
alterations to studios in Montreal and Toronto. We have the return here, and
that will also appear as an appendix to our proceedings. The business of to-day,
gentlemen, will be the presentation by Dr. "Augustin Frigon, Acting General
Manager of the C.B.C. Copies of Dr. Frigon’s presentation will be handed to
you immediately.

Dr. Avcustin Fricon, Acting General Manager of the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation, called.

The Wirness: After I have made some general remarks, I would like to
talk about our program policy generally. Then, with your permission, I shall
tell you about our school broadcasts, farm and labour forum and the work of
our overseas unit. Then will come some notes on controversial broadecasts,
followed by a discussion of our national news service. I may then give you
some information on our staff councils. Either to-day or at some future date,
I shall submit a discussion on the power increase of broadecasting stations,
followed by a progress report on the shortwave station. Then, my intention is
to cover the question of network operation and of our commercial department.
Finally will come financial matters and possibly some notes on the technical
side.

If you prefer, T shall be prepared to discuss these points in turn after I have
read my notes on each chapter, so to speak. Of course, I am entirely in your
hands as to the manner in which you propose to proceed with me.

As you already know, I have been acting general manager of the C.B.C.
since Dr. Thomson left us last fall and have really been in charge since the end
of September, 1943 Before submitting to you the statement I have prepared
on various phases of our activities, I would like to make it clear at this time,
first, that T am reporting on the affairs of the Corporation since another com-
mittee of the House made its enquiry last year; and, secondly, that there has
been no change whatever in our regulations or in our interpretation of the
regulations since that time. Indeed the same people are exercising the same
functions now as they did last summer, except that when in doubt they now
refer their case to me instead of to Dr. Thomson. As a matter of fact I have
tried not to upset our established practice as it has existed for some time.
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I do not believe it was my duty, as acting general manager, to attempt to
modify the policy and practice of the Corporation or to initiate any important
changes which I might think advisable in our administration or mode of opera-
tion. Furthermore, when I took over, most of the radio season was already
planned and under way. Therefore, even if I had wanted to change important
program decisions, it would have been too late for me to 'do so, except for some
minor details. Our new policy in respect to political broadcasts was made public
last week but has not been applied yet.

My duty was to carry on, and that is what I have done. I do not say this
because I want to duck responsibility; on the contrary. I am quite prepared
to stand by any decision I have made. I simply want to emphasize the fact that
there has been no change whatever in the manner of running our affairs since
I was given the responsibility of acting general manager.

May I point out to you that the duties of whoever is in charge of our
organization have become quite considerable in importance, complexity and
responsibility. Our budget will reach $5,400,000 for the coming year; our
employees now number 807. We have commercial dealings either through actual
program bookings or subsidiary network arrangements with the majority of the
79 privately owned stations to which line facilities are available, and are
responsible under the Broadeasting Act for the observance by private stations
as well as C.B.C. stations of the regulations made under that Act; we have
engineers designing radio equipment and engaged in extensive construction work;
we have a staff of war correspondents on the battle front; we employ ‘in our
own studios some seven or eight hundred radio artists every week; we hdve an
extensive news bulletin service; in conjunction with the radio branch of the
Department of Transport we are heavily engaged in the application of inter-
national agreements and we will soon do international broadcasting; we bring
broadeasts into schools; we encourage talent across the country; our own
commercial activities are important; we regulate programs on all stations;
we advise the government on the allocation of broadcast permits; incidentally
we struggle with controversial broadcasts. All this requires expert knowledge,
experience, background and so much attention and time that the load is indeed
very heavy.

One feature of our affairs is the spontaneity of decision which is required.
Our responsibility in respeet to program control, both for ourselves and for
private enterprise, results in a continuous series of crises which, at times, come
in such rapid succession that one’s mind has difficulty in adjusting itself to the
tempo. Problems arise all over the country, at the most unexpected moments,
which require a solution in a matter of minutes. Most frequently these have to
be submitted to the highest authority of the Corporation.

I have had quite varied experience in my life, at times in very important
fields of activities, but I do not know of any business which is so active and
complicated and which requires such sustained attention as that of the C.B.C.

With these preliminary remarks, I would like to give you a general view on
certain aspects of our program policy which, in my estimation, must be taken
into account by anyone who wants to analyze the service we give to the public.

In his address to the Canadian Association of Broadecasters in Quebec City
on February 14th last, Dr. Angell, Vice-President of the NBC, gave a very
clear picture of the background of broadcasting under different systems as they -
exist in Furope and America. He remarked that the aim of a privately-owned
system, living on commercial revenues, was fundamentally to sell to as many
people as possible the greatest quantity of low cost articles. For that purpose,
they must reach the homes of families with incomes in the lower or medium
bracket: they must produce programs which appeal to the great mass of their
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potential listeners. There is, therefore, a tendency to neglect minority groups
~ with possibly a higher intellectual background or a taste for the most refined
type of programs.

In the case of state-owned systems, as they exist in some European coun-
tries, the result is somehow the reverse, says Dr. Angell. There is a tendency
to neglect the great majority of people who like the type of popular programs
which, through the ages, have always been the joy of working classes and of
many others. X

Dr. Angell did not pursue his remarks further, but it must have been evident
to all those who heard him that had he continued the normal trend of his
reasoning, he would have been led to state that Canada enjoys the advantages
of both systems. May I be permitted to elaborate on that a little further, and
say a few words about our broadcasts properly speaking. After all, the things
that counts is what actually comes out of the radio loud speaker in the homes
of Canadian citizens. Items which, put together, constitute the C.B.C. weekly
schedule of radio programs, contain everything: news bulletins, actualities,
talks, addresses, discussions, church services, school teaching, official com-
muniques, commercial advertisement, music, drama, variety shows, sports news,
and at present war news and services of all kinds.

An individual listener would generally analyze the situation from his
own particular point of view. If he is a lover of high class music, he has no use
for the ultra-modern dance band; if he is a religious man, he has his own views
in respect to what drama should be; if he is a party politician, he would like
his friends to broadecast often and followers of other parties not so often. This
may be considered a normal attitude on the part of the individual. The C.B.C.
management, must, however, view the whole matter quite differently. Our
duty is to keep constantly in mind the interests of that rather indescribable
thing which is called the “Public”. To do this, we must envisage the problem
with a certain perspective, and in doing so we are faced with the most amazing
kaleidoscopic picture of human opinions and prejudices. It is unquestionably
our duty to try to meet, somehow, and as often as possible, the requirements
of each unit of that human kaleidoscope, often ignoring the predominance of
some desire at a given moment, in order to protect the interest of a minority.
This is not an easy task. It means that, at all times, whatever is decided will
meet with the mild, strong, or violent opposition of a great number of people.

To achieve our ideal of purpose we must consider not single program items
irrespective of all others; it is, rather, essential that we should constantly have in
mind the complete picture, that is, the program-day or even the program-week
and the future.

I am talking now from the point of view of the man who does things, not of
the critic who says: “You should have done s0”. Those in charge of the C.B.C.
must further have constantly in mind the very basic responsibilities which have
been entrusted to our organization; that is, to procure for the public the best
possible radio broadeasting service in the interest of the nation, not forgetting the
broad educational possibilities. This means that although we may live in large
centres, we must recognize that those who live in the most densely populated
sections of the country are less in need of an organization such as the C.B.C.
Spreading out across Canada all that is best in the most important centres is
possibly the major funetion of the C.B.C., so that Canadians from coast to coast
may share all the intellectual and artistic capital of the nation.

From time to time one hears people say that C.B.C. programs are not as
popular as other commercials. We do not accept that as a general statement; we
know that we can and do produce popular entertainment. However, the Corpora-
tion does not have, as its prime motive, the maintenance of a high over-all
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audience rating; if it tried to do so, it would be failing in its duty. Radio stations
or systems which are in the business for commercial and profit-making motives
have necessarily to do all that they can to secure a maximum audience all the
time—they have to be able to prove to a sponsor that their stations have a large
listening audience at any given time of day or night. The C.B.C., on the other
hand, is not a profit-making institution, it is not its business to appeal to a mass
audience for sixteen hours a day. It has cultural and educational responsibilities
as well as those of pure entertainment, and consequently many of its programs
will appeal only to limited audiences—though it is encouraging to note that the
size of those limited audiences is growing.

I am not suggesting that such big commercial systems as the NBC or
Columbia and the Blue, for instance, neglect such cultural programs; they .
have some very fine ones. But you will find that generally speaking they do
not tend to put this type of program into the good commercial hours, that
is, into the time between seven and eleven at night when most people are
at leisure to listen. We in the Corporation feel that it is our duty to put
some of our important programs with limited appeal into hours when the
people for whom they are intended have an opportunity of hearing them;
for this purpose we are perfectly prepared to give up a mass audience and
to sacrifice commercial revenue. We do not seriously believe that, as an
audience getter, a series of the complete organ works of Bach can compete
with Charlie McCarthy; but we do believe that there are a number of people
who would like to hear Bach’s works played by leading Canadian organists,
and we are determined that they shall have an occasional opportunity of
hearing such programs. And it muet be remembered that on the same evening
the people who don’t like Bach have a chance to hear “Fibber McGee and
Molly”—they do not have to listen to Bach all night. I might say, too,
that a very large number of people listen to both programs and enjoy them
both. Talks or lectures may be very boring to a great many listeners; never-
theless, some people are interested in learning more about everything and,
therefore, it is also our duty to see that these people are well served.

Let us consider a typical weekly schedule to see whether we succeed in
the aim I have just expressed. May I talk first of the Quebec network with
which I am more familiar. To save time, I shall deal only with evening pro-
grams. For instance, on Sunday evening we have at six o’clock half an hour
of good light music by an orchestra under Jean des Lauriers—a commercial
program. The next 30 minutes is filled by news, 15 minutes in French and
then the BBC news from London in English. At seven o’clock there comes
“Nos Colleges au Micro”, a competition amongst art students of the various
classical colleges, a program of high educational interest; it gets a very big
listening -audience. At 7.30 there is an actuality broadeast by Roger Baulu
summing up and illustrating the week’s happenings. From eight to nine we
have L’Operette. This is a weekly feature—a broadeast lasting one hour, of
a light opera, such as “The Grand Duchess” and “The Drum Major’s Daughter”
by Offenbach, “The Chocolate Soldier” and “The Waltz Dream” by Strauss,
“Monsieur Beaucaire” and “The Merry Widow”. This program is one which
appeals to a large audience including high brows, middle brows and low brows;
it has a nearly universal appeal. At nine o’clock we devote our time to that
thoughtful and more serious section of the public which is interested in
listening to a half-hour discussion of some of the more important problems
facing Canadians today. The program “Opinions” is a discussion type with
similar aims to those of the English program “Of Things to Come”. It is
followed by @ thirty minute commercial program with a high audience rating,
“The Album of Familiar Music”, catering to the tastes of those who like
restful music well performed. At ten o’clock comes Radio Journal (news in
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French), and then we join the English network to hear the Vancouver program
“Songs of Empire” and the harpsichord recital from Toronto. At eleven we
broadcast news in English, and finish the day with fifteen minutes of dance
music.

This, I submit, constitutes very good radio fare and it seems to me that
anyone who wants to listen to our French Network on Sunday evening should
be able to find at least one hour of enjoyment. And that will cost him not quite
three quarters of a cent, on a pro rata basis.

From Monday to Friday the hours from six to eight follow a more or less
set pattern. First fifteen minutes of music supplied locally by the various
stations on the network. Then news in French, including reports from our war
correspondents, followed either by a news commentary by Jean Louis Gagnon,
or R. A. Benoit, or a topical talk such as the one on dental hygiene on the
Friday of the week I have in mind. And every evening at a quarter to seven
we broadcast the B.B.C. English news from London.

At seven o’clock the regular program is that popular perennial “Un Homme
et Son Peche” which enjoys a very high rating; spoken in French-Canadian
French it has strictly local colour; it is unquestionably of a high literary and
artistic standard. At 7.15 a commercial serial drama “Metropole”, at 7.30 the
B.B.C. French newsreel and at 7.45 either an episode of the very stirring and
successful propaganda drama “La Fiancee du Commando”, or ‘“Melodies
Masquees”, a program of light music. That deals with the hours from six to
eight from Monday to Friday.

On Monday at eight o’clock we have Mart Kenney for half an hour and
then “Freres d’Armes”, the French equivalent of “Comrades in Arms”, a feature
program devoted to and arranged by the three fighting services. At nine there
is Romans Lyriques, a commercial program of concert music and at 9.30 a vocal
and instrumental recital of more serious music from Quebec. At ten followed
news in French, a talk, and a half hour of dance music, then news in English
and fifteen minutes of music; and to finish the evening we broadcast as usual
a brief summary of the latest news in French.

On Tuesday the hour from eight to nine is taken up by two commercial
programs with mass appeal—a mystery drama “Les Secrets du Dr. Morhanges”
and a premium giving quiz show “La Mine d’Or”. The next hour is devoted to

*the interests of those of quieter and more serious taste—a symphony broadecast
by Les Concerts Symphoniques of Montreal conducted by Desire Defaux of the
Chicago Symphony Orchestra, for the typical week I am referring to here. At
ten o’clock Radio Journal, a talk in the series Institut Familial, and at 10.30 a
Bach organ recital. Then news in English, some recorded music, and the usual
French news summary.

Wednesday evening, too, provides listeners with a wide variety of entertain-
ment and instruction. At eight o’clock the popular Serenade for Strings, a pro-
gram of really good musie, classical and modern, played by Jean des Lauriers
and his string orchestra with a soloist. This is followed by a discussion group
on post-war plans under the title “Preparons ’Avenir” on the pattern of “Of
Things to Come”. Then we have our weekly hour of drama, Radio Theatre;

. the play that week was “Yamile sous les Cedres”, a radio adaptation of the film
by Henry Bordeaux. This, by the way, is an interesting series, and furnishes
another example of the co-operation we seek and obtain from others interested
in providing entertainment. By a special arrangement with France Film, we
have been able to present radio versions of the best French films and have even
been given the privilege of using parts of their sound track. The rest of the
evening is filled with news in French and English, a fifteen minute talk and a
piano recital.
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Among the highlights of Thursday evening I may mention “Choec des Idees”,
a weekly “Farm Forum” for rural listeners and devoted to a discussion of the
problems of agriculture; the subject for that particular evening was agricultural
education. Then comes a program of light and popular music from Quebec “Iei
I’on Change”, a variety program and a program produced in London with the
armed services by our overseas unit “Sur le qui vive”. And I should mention
another program which would appeal only to a discriminating group—a viola
recital by Louis Bailly. Sl

On Friday night we have the very popular dance music of Mart Kenney
on tour through the camps and industrial plants of the Dominion, then a feature
program ‘“Je me souviens”. This is an exceptional and quite original program;
I do not believe that there is anything like it elsewhere. It is highly artistic in
presentation—quite a beautiful work of art and thoroughly French-Canadian in
spirit and background, dealing with life in old time Quebec; then the com-
mercial program “Waltz Time” with a big audience, and then half an hour of
more serious music from Chuhaldin of the C.B.C. Strings. At ten Radio
Journal, at 10.15 “Notre francais sur le vif”, a talk on the French language,
and at half past ten a program by Francois Rozet, diseur. The last half hour
of the evening followed the usual pattern of news and musie.

Saturday evening is almost entirely given over to lighter fare with hockey
taking up an hour and a half. But I should mention especially ‘“Questionnaire
de la Jeunesse”, a popular educational program with young people participating
from seven to seven-thirty. This has been on the air for four years and is still
going strong. All programs produced by us are of the highest quality. The
war effort is not only taken care of in programs specially produced for the pur-
pose but it is introduced in a great many others. Of the most important pro-
grams I have mentioned above, twelve were sponsored, and twenty-one were
sustainers produced by us with our own revenues to assure a proper schedule
balance.

These figures do not include a large number of sustaining programs of
minor importance. The overall picture is approximately 25 per cent commercial
programs and 75 per cent sustaining programs, over the week.

May I now say a few words about programs on our English networks. I
propose to deal with this very briefly, but if you should want to know more,
I am sure you will like to give Mr. Bushnell, our general supervisor of programs,
an opportunity to answer your questions. Let us, however, consider now one
typical week starting on February 20. On Sunday we had one-half hour of
music, a commentary on the news from our overseas representatives in London,
a short address by the Governor General on the opening of Boy Scout week, the
B.B.C. news, “L for Lanky”, a popular program about the RCAF; Charlie
MecCarthy, the Week-End Review, a special Red Cross story, Stage 44—one
of a series of radio plays written, produced and acted by Canadians, the “Album
of Familiar Music”, the National News Bulletin, “Songs of Empire”—a_ popular
program of British music originating in Vancouver, a recital on the harpsichord
and the B.B.C. Newsreel followed by a B.B.C. program called “North American
Guest Night”.

The hour between 6.00 and 7.00 o’clock follows the same pattern from
Monday to Friday and consists of fifteen minutes of old time dance music,
C.B.C. News, a brief program of light music and the B.B.C. News from London.
On Monday of the week referred to, we had a violin recital by Albert Pratz,
a variety program from the N.B.C., the C.B.C. News Round-up during which
we -bring our listeners comments and descriptive talks by war correspondents
with the Canadian troops at the battlefront and behind the front. We regard
this as an extremely important service to the public. Some of the battle
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descriptions accompanied by the actual sound of artillery and machine guns
have been done at the risk of our commentators’ lives. This series has had a
most gratifying response from the general public. There was a half-hour of
dance music from one of Canada’s leading dance orchestras which is touring the
military camps, then the Farm Radio Forum, the famous Lux Radio Theatre,
the ten o’clock news bulletin, and Canadian Round-up—a weekly program
which brings to listeners interesting first hand information from various parts
of Canada. Then “Information Please” and the B.B.C. Newsreel.

I do not want to bore you with a day to day review as Mr. Bushnell will
be at your disposal if you want more details. Let us, however, take one more
evening; Thursday, for instance, when we have the “Voice of Victor”, a
Canadian sponsored musical program of wide popular appeal; the Aldrich
Family, “Bing Crosby”, “Fighting Navy”, and the B.B.C. religious drama “The
Man Born to be King”, and the B.B.C. Newsreel and commentary from London.

I submit that our schedule presents a varied and well balanced diet for
the listener with something at some time or another to suit almost every variety
of taste. It was the same throughout that week; we have catered for the mass
audience and have devoted a reasonable amount of time to satisfy the more
discriminating palate of select groups. And it must not be forgotten that along-
side the Trans-Canada network we are beginning to build up the Dominion
network. The highbrow who cannot laugh at Fibber McGee on a Tuesday night
could twist his dial and bring in a concert by “Les Concerts Symphoniques” of
Montreal. On Tuesday, too, the man who doesn’t like Bach on the Trans-
Canada could hear “Portrait of a Woman”—a series of dramas on the lives of
famous women of history which is featured on the Dominion network. Similarly
on Wednesday the listener who prefers light music to serious music could find a
dance orchestra on the Dominion while the Trans-Canada broadecast a piano-
forte recital. :

On the Friday we offered a popular Canadian commercial drama “That
Brewster Boy” as an alternative to Mr. Chuhaldin and the C.B.C. Strings. On
Saturday night at 10.30 if you didn’t want to hear an organ recital you could
switch over to the other network for a dance orchestra.

I must apologize for having taken so much of your time to discuss this
matter point by point. I firmly believe, however, that it is not possible for
anyone to have a true picture of our problems without studying details. It is
all very well to talk about general policies, but the application of such policies
is reflected in the actual job of producing programs and transmitting them to
the listeners.

I hope you will find an opportunity to visit both Toronto and Montreal, as
I know that direct contact with our means of operation may completely change
the picture you may have of our activities. You may find, for instance, an
explanation for what seems to be the large staff that we require. You will
have to remember that we ourselves produce in our own studios, with our own
staff and with the listeners’ money, more programs, possibly better rehearsed
and in most instances more carefully organized, than the majority of private
stations whose capabilities are limited and whose responsibilities may not be
as great as ours.

‘We do not believe that every man who has paid his licence fee is entitled
to sixteen hours a day of just what he personally likes; but we do feel that so
far as possible every licence holder is entitled to have his tastes considered
some time during the good broadcasting hours. As I said before, we do not
seek a maximum audience all the time we are on the air. And I will say this,
the programs with a very high audience rating are not always the most edifying
or the most entertaining—they often are, but by no means always. There is
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one very ready means of securing a large audience; give them plenty of dollar
bills, and offer the outside listener a chance of having his name drawn out of a
barrel and of winning a large sum of money. When I hear that at one time we
have hundreds of thousands of people listening to a soap opera on our network,
and at another only a few thousand perhaps listening to the Parlow String
Quartet then, while I am glad that so many are getting such enjoyment, I am
more proud of the fact that the C.B.C. has given a first rate Canadian string
quartet an opportunity to get going, and that the relatively few people who
love chamber music have a chance of hearing it, if only for half an hour a week.

School Broadcasts

During 1943-44 the C.B.C. continued to collaborate with Provincial Depart-
ments of Education interested in using radio in the schools, on the basis of:

(a) Provision by the C.B.C. of time on the air, studio and production
facilities.

(b) Provision by the Provincial Department of Education of program
material, i.e., scripts, acting and music talent (if any).

On this basis, programs have been provided by the Department of Educa-
tion in six provinces; in the other provinces programs have been provided either
by the C.B.C. or by the Department of Education. Schemes of regional colla-
boration have also been established, in the east, among the three Maritime
Provinces; and in the west, among the four Western Provineces.

In 1942-43 for the first time we tried the experiment broadcasting an all-
Canadian series for schools on the national network, with the co-operation of
the nine Provincial Departments of Education and the Canadian Teachers’.
Federation.

As a result of this experiment a resolution was passed at the second
National Conference on School Broadecasting in May, 1943, recommending that
the program of National School Broadcasts should be continued and where
possible expanded during 1943-44. At the same time, a resolution was also
passed favouring a more formal recognition of the participation of Provincial
Departments of Education in the planning of these broadcasts.

To give effect to these recommendations the C.B.C. in August, 1943, estab-
lished an Education Department; and in September, 1943, worked out in
collaboration with the Canada and Newfoundland Educational Association a
plan for the setting up of a National Advisory Council on School Broadeasting.
This council consists of 18 members, together with a chairman nominated by
the C.B.C. The membership consists of one representative from each Depart-
ment of Education except Quebec which nominates two representatives; two
representatives each of the Conference of Canadian Universities; the Canadian
Teachers’ Federation and the National Federation of Home and School; one
representative of the Canadian Trustees’ Association and one representative of
Quebec School Trustees. The functions of the council are: to advise the C.B.C.
in the planning of national school broadcasts and to co-operate in the develop-
ment and use of these programs.

At the invitation of the Board of Governors of the C.B.C., Dr. R. C.
Wallace, Principal of Queen’s University, Kingston, consented to act as chair-
man of the new council, which held its first meeting on March 9 and 10, 1944.

During 1943-44, 39 National School Broadcasts were put on the air, of
which eleven were heard also on either N.B.C. or C.B.C. networks in the United
States. The subjects of these broadeasts included: “My Canada” (9 programs—
Canadian geography), “The Way of Free Men” (6 programs—history of
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democracy), “Proud Procession” (8 programs—contemporary Canadian achieve-
ments) ; also 4 dramatic readings from Shakespeare plays for senior students,
and a weekly news bulletin for schools.

A 60-page printed manual was issued by the C.B.C. to go with these school
broadcasts. The programs were carried on 46 stations, and were heard in about
4,300 schools across the Dominion.

The same careful attention is given to the question of educational broad-
casting on the French network with Radio College, but the subject is handled
somewhat differently. Our broadcasts are intended for high school listeners
rather than for children in the elementary grades.

By my own judgment and from the enthusiastic comment that I receive,
I am quite sure that Radio College is doing very fine educational work and that
it is widely appreciated. The programs include courses in Canadian history,
science and natural science, vocational guidance, geography, music, art, ete.

I might add here last fall we received almost 11,000 separate requests for
the booklet containing the year’s program, not lists of people but almost 11,000
individual requests for copies of the programs.

Associated with these directly teaching programs is a series of classical
dramas broadcast on Sunday afternoons, during which we present radio versions
of the Chefs d’ccuvre of Corneille, Racine, Moliere—our French equivalents of
Shakespeare and Sheridan.

I should like to mention, too, that we have inaugurated competitions for
listeners in connection with Radio College. -

Labour Forum

Some months ago our program department, with the approval of Dr.
Thomson, had planned a very elaborate set of broadcasts in the form of a
Labour Forum with listening groups somewhat on the same pattern as “Of Things
to Come”. When I took over last September no final steps had been taken to
implement that idea and indeed there was still a lot to be done.

It seemed clear to me that it would be impossible at that time to organize
properly for this season. The man we had actually chosen to take care of this
work was in ill health and, with the controversy which arose in respect to
“Of Things to Come”, I thought we had our hands full for the time being. After
consulting the Board it was decided to carry on with a Labour Forum designed
to give to labour the liberty to express their views to the Canadian public with-
out going into the extensive educational feature of widely organized listening
groups, with a correspondingly elaborate set-up. I know that some labour
groups would have liked us to proceed as had originally been planned, but on
the other hand I am sure that those who know the picture well enough under-
stood our position. As matters stand now, the Board of Governors has instructed
the management to consult labour organizations in this respect. Unfortunately
pressure of work and other matters have prevented me from taking any final
action in that respect. No doubt the general manager who will be appointed
to replace Dr. Thomson will proceed as the Board proposed.

Farm Broadcasting

The broadcast service for Canadian farm listeners has continued to expand.
Regional farm broadecasts continue to be heard in all regions during the local
noon hour.

National Farm Radio Forum is just completing its most successful season
and is recognized in Canada and the United States as a Canadian institution
that is unique. Several prominent Americans have participated in Farm Forum
this year and others have come to Canada to study the project.
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The French equivalent of Farm Radio Forum, Le Choc des Idees, is just
completing its first season. :

Weekly broadcasts for gardeners are in operation in all regions except the
Maritimes which will have a similar series in the near future.

Co-operation continues between the C.B.C. and all Departments of Agri-
culture and other organizations having anything to do with Canadian agriculture.

We regard these programs devoted to the interests of our farmers as of the
very greatest importance, and I can tell you that they meet with wide and favour-
able acceptance by the public.

Overseas Unit

There is a total of 25 people in the C.B.C. overseas unit, 16 men and 9
women—stenographers, secretaries and clerical help—at London C.B.C. head-
quarters under John Kannawin, C.B.C. overseas unit director, and in the field.
There are three sections—news, program and engineering. i

A. E. Powley is senior editor of the overseas news service, and under
him are the following war correspondents: Matthew Halton, Peter Stursberg
and Andrew Cowan on the English side; Marcel Ouimet, Paul Barrette and
Benoit Lafleur on the French side.

The program section consists of Gerry Wilmot on the English side and
Paul Dupuis on the French side.

The engineering section is headed by Arthur W. Holmes, Toronto, engineer-
in-charge; F. Paul Johnson, Edmonton; Alex J. McDonald, Kingston; Lloyd
Moore, Montreal; F. Harold Wadsworth, Ottawa; Joseph Beauregard, Mont-
real (French). All these men have the honorary rank of Captain in the Cana-
dian army and, when with the troops, wear the khaki uniform of Canadian war
correspondents with regulation war correspondent cap and soldier badges.

All through the Sicilian and Italian campaigns, C.B.C. war correspondents
have maintained a steady flow of voice commentaries covering every aspect
of the fighting in both French and English in which Canadian troops have been
engaged. Many of these commentaries have carried the actual sounds of battle.
Our units in the field, regardless of personal risk to both correspondents and
engineers, have by voice given Canadians at home a graphic picture of the
heroic part played by our men on the fighting fronts. These commentaries
have been—and still are—recorded at the actual front, flown to Algiers and
transmitted to Canada by short wave. They have been widely used by the
BBC for British listeners, as well as in Canada. We have reason to believe
that our radio war reporting has not been surpassed anywhere.

Arrangements were made to have copies of all cables from our overseas
correspondents sent to Canadian Press and British United Press bureaus as
soon as they were received in Montreal and this step resulted in many of our
stories being carried over the news wires and given considerable prominence
in many Canadian dailies.

I should like to make mention of some of what, in my opinion, have been
the outstanding broadcasts by our overseas correspondents:

1. Stursberg’s story by cable of the original landing in Sicily, this being

the first time Canadian troops had been in any big action since Dieppe.

2. Stursberg’s interview of July 15th with General Montgomery (Ross
Munro, Canadian Press, Toronto, was also at this interview).

3. Stursberg’s interview with Major General Guy S. Simonds, commanding
first Canadian division in British Eighth Army, on July 17. Simonds
later had this interview mimeographed and issued it in the field as an
order of the day.
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_ Halton’s voice reporting of the assault landing on the Italian mainland.
This was the first C.B.C. voice report to come from this theatre.

. Halton’s voice report of Canadian troops c-rossing.Sangro. River and
his description of the bridge being built by Canadian engineers under
fire.

. Voice report by Marcel Ouimet of a Canadian artillery barrage. Paul
Johnson’s “masterly” recording of this barrage is claimed by B.B.C.
experts as the finest recording of gun fire in existence.

. Halton’s inspired commentary in the interests of the Fifth Victory
Loan Campaign, recorded in Italy under fire. During the recording
of this voice report a shell exploded within thirty feet killing several
soldiers nearby. Johnson and Halton were lucky to escape with their
lives.
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. Marcel Ouimet’s scoop of Colonel Ralston’s visit to the Canadian troops
in Ttaly. First definite announcement that Ralston was in the front
line was made in Ouimet’s broadcast from Italy December 3, 1943.
On this broadcast Ouimet interviewed the Minister of Defence.

9. Halton’s outstanding voice report on the battle of Ortona.

The program side of the overseas unit has two primary functions: (a) to
keep the folks at home in Canada in touch with the Canadian troops overseas,
(b) to keep all Canadian forces in the United Kingdom and in battle theatres in
touch with the folks at home.

Ninety per cent of function (a) is handled by the C.B.C. overseas news
service and the other ten per cent is handled by the program section—mainly
through “Eyes Front” (in English) and “Sur le qui vive” (in French) which is
a weekly account of “stewardship” about our troops in Britain. Both programs
deal mainly with the activities of our armed forces in Britain and are largely
produced by members of these forces for the people at home.

Another function of the C.B.C. program section overseas is to report to
Canada through Canadian eyes what is happening in the United Kingdom and
Europe generally in wartime. Examples of this are Stursberg and Barette’s
interviews at a Scottish port with repatriated prisoners who were sent home
from Germany through Sweden.

Benoit Lafleur gave us extremely interesting interviews with Canadian
officers, French officials and others from Algiers. Kannawin has done various
reports in R.C.AF. work at bomber, fichting and coastal command stations.
Wadsworth flew on a Berlin raid in the Ruhr Express, a Lancaster bomber built
at Malton Airport (the first Lancaster built in Canada) and recorded the
commentary during the flight by Flying Officer Ray Mackness, R.C.A.F.,,
formerly C.B.C. Vancouver announcer. Flight Lieutenant Jack Peach, formerly
C.B.C. Vancouver program man did a linking commentary on the ground.

The job of keeping our troops in Britain in touch with home is done chiefly
over ’ghe B.B.C. Forces Service (this is the B.B.C. service which is broadcast
opposite the B.B.C. Home Service).

Seven nights a week from 7-7.05 p.m. British summer time (6-6.05 p.m.
GMT) a five minute news broadcast is carried, supplied by daily cable by
C.B.C. national news service in Canada. This is supplemented once a week
(Thursday 10-10.15 p.m. BST) by a news summary of the week’s Canadian
highlights, including sports.

The daily five minute news bulletin gives leading Canadian news headlines
and hockey results briefly, then specializes in regional and small town news,
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in the following order: Monday—maritimes, Tuesday—Quebec French, Wed-
nesday—Quebec English, Thursday—Ontario, Friday—prairies, Saturday—
British Columbia, Sunday—news for Canadian forces in Britain about Cana-
dian forces fighting in the frontline.

These news bulletins are read each day except Tuesday by Gerry Wilmot,
C.B.C. Overseas Unit Program Director (English) and Paul Dupuis, Program
Director (French) does the Tuesday bulletin.

Once a week (Monday night) a digest is sent to Italy on the B.B.C. general
overseas service by Gerry Wilmot to keep Canadian troops in that theatre
in touch with news of Canada. Our mobile van in Italy is equipped to receive
shortwave and medium wave broadcasts and it is not unusual to see one
hundred or more Canadian soldiers gathered around our van to hear this
weekly broadeast. Other troops, of course, can pick it up if their posts are
equipped with short wave or medium wave receiving sets.

Everyone of the 16 members of the C.B.C. Overseas Unit is available as
consultant to the B.B.C. in connection with all program material broadcast by
the B.B.C. dealing with Canada or Canadians. The B.B.C. takes constant
advantage of this service. Our Overseas Unit makes frequent contributions to
B.B.C. Radio Newsreel and other programs designed for the B.B.C. North
American Service. These activities have their origination in the work done by
E. L. Bushnell, C.B.C. General Supervisor of Programs, who early in the war
was seconded to the B.B.C. and whose work contributed greatly to the present
set-up and wartime operation of the B.B.C. North American Service.

The CuairMAN: You can see, gentlemen, that the next part has to do
with controversial broadcasts. I have no doubt it will perhaps be controversial
in nature. Would it be the wish of the committee to continue with the
presentation or would you like to discuss what has already been presented?
I am entirely in your hands.

Dr. Frigon has already been an hour now.

Mr. Ross: I think he might as well go on for another hour.

Mr. Hanson: I think we had better have the report and discuss it
afterwards,

Mr. CoLpweLL: It seems to me it is almost necessary inasmuch as there
is so much in the report that we should have an opportunity of reading it
before discussing it. Dr. Frigon reads rather rapidly.

The Wirness: I thought it would take too much of your time reading.

Mr. CoLpweLL: But, on the other hand, to continue for another hour is
pretty hard on Dr. Frigon.

The CuArMAN: It is quite all right with him, but we will take it now
that will be put on the record before it will be discussed. That is the point
that T want to make. We are not going to break into the next part of it for
a discussion on it.

Mr. CoupwerL: I would think it might be well to discuss the first part
because if we get into the controversial broadcasts section we might omit a
discussion of some of the important parts of this presentation.

The Cuamrman: That is just what I suggested. Do you want to discuss
what has already been given now or do you want to continue with the
presentation?

Mr. BoucHEr: It seems to me that we have not had time to check over
what has already been given. There is not only the aspect of what Dr. Frigon
has said in his comments on programs, but there is the aspect of what programs
might be substituted. I think it would take some considerable time to go
thoroughly into the matter he has discussed. We should consider it first
rather than start a discussion now when we have not made up our minds.
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The CuamMAN: Is it satisfactory to the committee that when the dis-

cussion does take place we do it in an orderly fashion starting from the

beginning of the report?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes, that is essential. ° ;

The CHAIRMAN: All right; that is the course we will follow. We will
continue with the presentation.

The WiTNESS:
CONTROVERSIAL BROADCASTS

There are programs which are the bugbear of all broadcasters in free
countries, especially of those in charge of broadcasting organizations who may
not be in the privileged position of private broadcasters who are regarded by
the public as quite free to run their business as they please within reasonable
limits. I refer to controversial broadcasts, including forum, discussion and
political broadecasts, ete. It may be useful to review here briefly what has
been the policy of the C.B.C. in respect to political broadcasts since the
beginning.

Up to 1939 there seemed to be no particular problem. We applied in the
matter of political broadcasting the system of examining each case on its
merits and in the light of the situation prevailing when it occurred. The only
existing regulation at that time was regulation 8 made under the Broadcasting
Act, which reads as follows:—

8. (1) Political broadecasts are governed by subsections (3), (4)
and (5) of section 22 of The Canadian Broadcasting Act, 1936, which
reads as follows:—

(3) Dramatized political broadcasts are prohibited.

(4) The names of the sponsor or sponsors and the political
party, if any, upon whose behalf any political speech or address
is broadeast shall be announced immediately preceding and immedi-
ately after such broadcasts.

(5) Political broadeasts on any dominion, provincial or muni-
cipal election day and on the two days immediately preceding any
such election day are prohibited.

(2) Each station shall allocate time for political broadcasts as

fairly as possible between the different parties or candidates desiring .

to purchase or obtain time for such broadecasts.

It soon became evident, however, that we needed some well defined policy
which could be applied during the time of general election. Therefore, in
the summer of 1939 a Committee composed of C.B.C. officials and representa-
tives of all parties in the House of Commons was set up to study the question.
After many weeks of discussion and consideration our statement of policy
with respect to controversial broadcasting was issued on July 8. This was
the first edition of the white paper. The basic principle of the white paper
is that, generally speaking, network party political broadcasting during a
general election is to be on a sustaining or free basis. The C.B.C. grants to
the various parties, at no cost, periods of time for the broadcast of political
addresses over the national network. Privately owned stations affiliated to
the network are required to carry these broadecasts; and other private stations
are invited to do so. During the election of 1940 all these free broadcasts took
place in reserved time, that is to say during hours which the private stations
have agreed to reserve for the broadecasting of C.B.C. network programs,
commercial or sustaining. So that during election campaigns the C.B.C. places
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its own stations at the disposal of political parties, grants the use of network
lines free of charge, and arranges for privately owned stations also to glve
free time for these particular broadcasts.

Of course, the first difficulty was to define what is a political party. It
is all very well to say that one politician should be allowed to speak and
another not allowed to speak, but those respons1ble for operating the network
must have a clear cut definition of what is or what is not a political party in
order that a proper allocation of time and speakers might be made. The
committee of 1939 adopted the following definition whlch was acceptable to
all:—

While it is impossible to lay down an exact definition, it is suggested
that such a party would be one which, among other things, would:

(1) have policies on a wide range of national issues;

(2) have a recognized national leader;

(3) have a nation-wide organization established as the result of
a national conference or convention; :

(4) seek the election of candidates in at least three of the
provinces, having a minimum number of 61 officially nominated
candidates in the field (being approximately one for every four
constituencies) ; and,

(5) demonstrate by the nature of its campaign that it had
attained national proportions and significance.

I will repeat that this definition was approved and adopted by the
committee on which all parties were represented in 1939. With this definition
as a background, a formula was adopted for the proper division of periods
available to all recognized parties. That arrangement was applied during the
federal election and proved to be entirely satisfactory. Paid political broad-
casting was left entirely to the private stations; the C.B.C. does not sell time
on its own stations for political broadecasting at any time, except in a limited
number of quite justified cases. Private stations may sell their facilities out-
side of reserved time as they wish, subject to Regulation 8 (2), which says
that time must be allocated as fairly as possible among the various parties or
candidates who wish to buy or obtain time.

As was reported to this committee last year, the policy with respeect to
dominion general elections has since been extended to cover general elections
for the provincial legislatures.

Up to the fall of 1942, no political broadcasts were accepted on our network
in the periods between general election campaigns, but private stations were
and are still free to accept such broadcasts as they may desire.

It is false to say that we do not allow criticism of the government on the
air. Those who spread this statement must do so with a political aim. If, up
to last year, we did not accept political broadcasts, it was simply to prevent
our network across the country from developing into a political forum. As a
matter of fact political speakers could have the use of the air at all times of
the day on any one of some 79 stations throughout Canada, except during the
two hours which are reserved for network broadecasts by the C.B.C. You might
object that this has to be done on stations individually and that we do not
permit the hookup of various stations for the purpose of broadeasting political
speeches between elections. Do I need to remind you that this is done for the
simple reason of preventing people with money from buying up groups of
stations to broadcast their views. It is true that recordings may be used and
that their use can achieve somewhat the same effect as network broadecasting.
This method, however, offers a barrier which is an efficient check against abuses
which may otherwise develop
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Regulation 19 (4) says:— : :

19. (4) No one shall by means of a mechanical reproduction or
otherwise broadeast any program which achieves indirectly by an evasion
what a regulation or ruling of the corporation prohibits from being
broadcast directly and which shall have the effect of allowing the
broadeasting of any program or speech, the simultaneous broadcasting
of which over a network or hookup is contrary to the regulations or
rulings of the corporation.

In the winter of 1943, it was decided to offer the use of the _national network
to political leaders so that they might give an account of their stewardship to
their followers and to other citizens who might be interested.

The Board of Governors at their February meeting approved of the issue
of a new white paper. The old white paper has been revised in detail and
brought up to date. We have distributed a copy of this to every member of
the committee so that you have had opportunity of studying it and, I hope, of
asking questions about it.

Outside of wartime, our restrictions in respect to party political broadcasts
are not intended to prevent people from expressing their views on such matters;
they are meant to protect us from any possibility of our facilities becoming a
political arena to the detriment of the general public. This is possible without
restricting freedom of speech because other stations in Canada can be used
individually for political purposes.

Amongst programs in the category of controversial broadcasts we may
include news commentaries. Because of public interest in the interpretation of
news, it is common practice on broadcasting stations everywhere to invite
persons who have special knowledge of various phases of national or inter-
national affairs to submit their comments on the news of the day. Their work
differs from that of the newscaster in that they are supposed to interpret the
news for the listeners in the light of their knowledge of the problems involved.
Each individual commentator is supposed to be an expert in his own field and
should know more than most persons engaged otherwise in broadcasting. On
that account they must be allowed great latitude in expressing their views, and
whatever they say is to be considered strictly as their own opinion and not as
that of those who engaged them. It must be remembered that their comments:
may be affected by last minute events immediately before the broadcast. For
these reasoms, it will be readily understood that it is not practical or even
feasible to expect that their manuscripts will be subject to general censorship.
As is the case with all responsible persons, they are expected to live up to the
laws of the country, and at this time in particular, to the provisions of the
Defence of Canada Act. If they were to disregard these laws they would be
liable to the usual punishment applied in such cases. The same applies to
C.B.C. regulations. If a commentator were to broadcast anything which might
injure individuals, which would be against good morals, etc., action would be
taken immediately.

When it comes to opinions, the question must be left entirely in the hands
of the commentator. It is to be expected that he will make mistakes, at least
in the opinion of individual listeners. If the C.B.C. management finds that a
commentator is too erratic in his statements or that he is liable to frequent
serious mistakes the obvious course is not to invite that person to broadcast
any more. However, occasional errors, if they are not too flagrant, have to be
more or less ignored; as a matter of fact, the commentator himself will soon
find out to what extent he is being criticized and whether his talks are accept-
able to his public or not. In actual practice one of the difficulties is to invite
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commentators to broadcast for a series long enough for them to establish them-
selves, and at the same time not to make their broadcasts a permanent feature
of the schedule. This is a problem which is not easy to solve. If a broadcaster
(and I use this term to mean a station or network owner or operator) has no
commentary at all, he will be accused of neglecting to inform his public. If he
has commentators and tries to exercise a close control of their manuscript, he
is accused of interfering with free speech. Again, if there is only an overall
supervision and the commentator says something which may displease certain
groups, he is liable to be criticized for allowing such statements on his station.

Like many other things in broadcasting, commentators’ broadcasts, although
an almost indispensable feature to a complete schedule, can never please the
majority of the people all the time. Indeed some of the most popular
commentators are very hotly criticized by a large section of the public. But
the colour they give to their broadcast, the personal and sometimes daring views
which they express, bring them popularity, in the same way as some newspapers
get circulation with highly coloured news. In the C.B.C. we frequently discuss
with our commentators the general trend of their broadecasts without inter-
fering with their personal opinions. Whenever we find that one man does not
completely meet our requirements, we change to some other. Indeed it may be
good practice not to keep the same person on the air too long.

OF THINGS TO COME

May I say a few words now about the series “Of Things to Come”. The first
broadcast this season took place on November 23, 1943. The first two broad-
casts consisted of dramatic sketches of important national issues devised to be
a sort of a build-up to the discussions that were to follow. On the first broad-
cast Dr. A. E. Corbett, Director of the Canadian Association for Adult Educa-
tion, introduced the series to listening groups organized by his Association. On
the second broadcast, Percy Philipps, speaking as a non-Canadian friendly to
our nation, gave a short address on the state of our country in war and in the
international field. Up to date, the following topics have been discussed:—

The New Demand—The Right to Work

Public and Private Enterprise

Social Security Plans

We Want to Know Why

The Right to be Healthy

The School Comes First

A Man’s Own Castle

The Constitutional Barrier

One People—Two Cultures

Canadians—World Citizens

Canada Within the British Empire

Canada and the Anglo-American World

The New Relationship with Soviet Russia

The Rise of Asia—Canada Faces the New Power of the East
Our Trade with the World—Canada in an International Economy

The following persons discussed those important problems, thereby giving
to the Canadian public their own opinion on these matters:—
James I. Simpson, President and General Manager of the Dunlop Tire
& Rubber Goods Company.
Russell Harvey, representative of the American Federation of Labor
in Canada.
P. M. Richards, Financial Editor of Saturday Night.
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Francis Hankin, economic and political writer of Francis Hankin & Co.,
Municipal Engmeers

Robert Haddow of the Machinists Union.

P. C. Armstrong, economic adviser of the C.P.R.

Miss Charlotte Whitton, C.B.E., and author of “Dawn of Ampler Life”.

Paul Martin, M.P. for Essex East and Parliamentary Assistant to the
Minister of Labour.

Frank Underhill, Professor of History, University of Toronto

Miss Margaret Boos an office worker.

Mr. Forest Telfer, an architect.

Mr. Jack Milne, an insurance man.

Hon. F. R. Davis, Minister of Health for Nova Scotia.

S. H. Prince, Professor of Sociology, King’s College, Chairman, Halifax
Housmg Committee.

Dr. Allan R. Morton, Health Commissioner for the city of Halifax.

Dr. Fletcher Peacock Director of Education of the Province of New
Brunswick and Vice-President of the Canada-Newfoundland
Education Association.

A. W. Trueman, Superintendent of Schools for the city of Saint John.

Keith Rogers, President and Manager of the Island Broadcasting Co.,
Charlottetown, and Vice-President of the Canadian Chamber of
Commerce.

L. S. Killaly of the Ottawa Branch of the Sun Life Assurance Company.

Professor John Bland, Director of the School of Architecture at MeGill
University.

J. L. E. Price, President of J. L. E. Price and Co., Montreal, Building
and Engineering Contractors.

Frank Scott, Professor of Constitutional Law at McGill University, and
National Chairman of the C.C.F.

Claude Prevost, Barrister of Montreal.

Madame Pierre Casgrain.

Edmond Turcotte, Editor of Le Canada.

Roland Michener, Progressive Conservative candidate.

Capt. R. G. Cavell of the Canadian Institute of International Affairs.

Dr. R. G. Trotter, Professor of History, Queen’s University, Kingston.

Rev. Dr. J. M. Endicott, former secretary to Madame Chiang Kai-Shek.

Aileen Garland, School Principal.

M. A. MacPherson, Barrister. |

A. R. M. Lower, United College, Winnipeg.

John Sydie, Investment Dealer.

A. Blair Paterson, Barrister.

Dr. George Hardy, University of Alberta. f‘

Leon Ladner, K.C. '

Nigel Morgan, International Woodworkers of America. !

Professor G. F. Drummond, University of B.C. 1.‘

Sir Robert Holland, Indian Civil Service for 30 years and member of
Secretary of State’s Council for India in London; also a judicial f
adviser to the Government of Siam. !

Miss Helen Chang, Chinese Canadian scientist and leader in C‘hinese i
community of Vancouver.

Darshan Singh Sangh, a Sikh from the Punjab; Member of the AlI i
India National Progress; at present a trade union official, B.C. ‘

Hon. J. G. Taggart, Minister of Agriculture, Saskatchewan.

Professor Vernon Fowke, Acting Head of Department of Economics,
University of Saskatchewan.

R. P. Sparks, Consulting Economist from Ottawa

This is proof that we are protecting free speech.
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C.B.C. NATIONAL NEWS SERVICE

Since its formation in 1941, our news service has been looked -upc')n as a

public trust. C.B.C. news bulletins, and particularly the national news summary

each night at 10.00 p.m. EDT, are heard in countless Canadian homes. The
dangers inherent in anything except complete impartiality in presenting political
news are obvious, and should very properly be a matter of public inquiry if
such impartiality is in doubt.

Before discussing this eriticism in a detailed way, it might be helpful if I
outlined, as briefly as possible, the way in which our news service was organized,
with particular regard to two things—our staff, and our policy in handling
political and controversial news.

Before January, 1941, the news bulletins carried on the C.B.C. network
were provided by The Canadian Press. After the outbreak of war, when our
service of bulletins was considerably extended, the Board of Governors and the
C.B.C. management decided that it would be in the public interest to follow
the example of the B.B.C. and the large American networks in setting up our
own service of news bulletins, which would be available to C.B.C. network
stations, and to independent stations, on a sustaining basis, free of any
commercial sponsorship. Arrangements were made with both The Canadian
Press and the British United Press for their full newspaper wire services, so
that C.B.C. editors would be in a position to select and summarize in a style
suited to radio, from the dispatches supplied by these services and by the
Associated Press, the United Press, Reuters News Agency, and other news
gathering organizations with which The Canadian Press and the British United
Press have affiliation. This gives our editors substantially the same service of
general news as the largest Canadian daily papers.

When our news service was organized, one of the basic policy directives
given to our editors for their guidance, was the following:—

Domestic political news must be treated with absolute impartiality
and in controversial stories, both sides of the issue must be given equal
emphasis.

During the three years that the C.B.C. news service has been in operation,
many additional directives have been issued outlining this policy in more
particular aspects. Copies of these directives, some printed in C.B.C. Internal
Rules and Regulations, and more recent ones mimeographed, are available to
the members of this committee.

It is true that more space is devoted to government news in C.B.C. bulletins,
than to Opposition eriticism. This is because stories dealing with official policy,
special statements from the many departments of government, such as the
Wartime Prices and Trade Board, etc., and announcements by the Prime
Minister and members of the Cabinet, have special news interest for listeners
quite apart from any political considerations. It is realized that any govern-
ment carries a heavy burden of responsibility, especially in wartime; we try to
present a fair picture of government activities and policies, apart from straight
political news. But because of this heavy preponderance of government news,
there is a special obligation to give reasonable space to Opposition criticism in
our bulletins.

In keeping with democratic practice, criticism of a government in power,
either provincial or federal, is the privilege of Opposition spokesmen or other
critics. As a non-partisan news service, it is recognized that C.B.C. bulletins
should give reasonable space to such ecriticism, when it comes from responsible
spokesmen for any important political group.
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C.B.C. editors have been instructed to be as careful to present the govern-
ment case, when it is given, as that of the Opposition in any controversy. If
at times certain spokesmen have been more active in presenting their views,
that is a matter outside the province of our editors to remedy. They select
and present the news, they do not make it.

C.B.C. editors exercise no political censorship over the news. Anything
that a political leader says, whether he is a government spokesman or a
representative of an Opposition party, is said on his own responsibility. His
remarks may be deeply offensive to some listeners. But it has not been con-
sidered the duty of C.B.C. editors to pass judgment on such statements, or
modify their meaning in any way, when they come from persons who are
recognized as responsible party spokesmen. It is, of course, the responsibility
of our editors, to see that such statements are presented accurately, without
special emphasis or comment.

Our policy in general has been to accept our Ottawa news through the
Ottawa Bureau of The Canadian Press, which serves papers of different political
affiliations.

As soon as the Session opens, the central newsroom at Toronto receives
from The Canadian Press Ottawa Bureau from two to five thousand words of
additional copy each day that the house is sitting. From an editor’s standpoint,
it is a much more difficult and exacting job to summarize these reports into
from five to eight hundred words for a radio bulletin, than to print them in full
as a newspaper can do. Our ten o’clock bulletin is a summary of the whole
day’s important news. It must cover all war fronts, news from London and
Washington and other capitals, any important Canadian news of a non-
political sort, official announcements of any important new policies from govern-
ment departments and agencies, as well as a report of parliamentary debates.
The amount of time that can be devoted to parliamentary debates is condi-
tioned by other news developments on that particular day.

The editor who handles the parliamentary reports is forced to make an
arbitrary selection. Even if the whole fifteen minute bulletin were devoted to
parliamentary news, this would still be the case. No matter how impartial an
editor may try to be, his selection will always be open to criticism. Our editors
are not infallible and they may, at times, make mistakes in judgment. In a
radio bulletin, where space is at a premium, a single item or even a single
quotation takes on an emphasis that may seem out of proportion to its news
value. Our editors are placed in a position which is always under the spotlight
of public criticism, and quite rightly so.

In past years, the editors who handled the general news for the national
news summary at 10.00 p.m., also edited the parliamentary copy. This year,
when parliament opened, we followed the same practice. But we soon found
that the volume of copy on parliamentary debates was too great, and the
problem of summarizing too difficult, to expect our editors to do justice to it
and, at the same time, handle all the war and other news. After the first
fortnight of the session, we made this a special full-time assignment for one of
our most experienced editors.

It is my contention that no fair appraisal can be made of our news bulletins,
without making a careful survey covering a period of at least several months.
A listener who may have very definite political views and hold these views with
great sincerity, will very naturally be disturbed if he hears a bulletin in which
views with which he violently disagrees, are given prominence. On another
occasion, a listener of quite opposite views might have the same unfavourable
reaction. It is an interesting fact that we have been criticized, at one time or
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another, by supporters of all of the different federal parties. We have even had
criticism from more than one party, over a single item, and for entirely opposite
reasons.

When the C.B.C. news service was first organized, it was subjected to
advance criticism from many sources on the score that it was merely a mouth-
piece for the government. It is our hope that the majority of listeners now
realize that this is entirely without foundation and that an honest effort is
being made to give Canadians a fair presentation of domestic political news.

I hope you will not hesitate to question anyone on our staff that you
may wish on that important matter. May 1 suggest in particular our
General Supervisor of Programs, Mr. Bushnell, and our Chief News Editor,
Mr. McArthur.

STAFF COUNCILS

The staff council organization is now over three years old. The third
annual meeting of staff council representatives was held last December, at
which time many important problems of administration were discussed with
them.

At that meeting staff councils set up a national executive to carry forward
all matters arising between annual meetings. Matters discussed have included
cost-of-living bonus, retiring leave, staff publication and job analysis.

A number of requests submitted by the councils have been approved. One
of them pertains to the cost-of-living bonus which is to be added to the regular
salary as of March 1, 1944. Although the corporation started to pay the bonus.
before it was required by law, the amount to be added to salaries was based
not on the bonus paid last year, but, with the approval of the National War
Labour Board, on the full rate. This increase to which we were not committed
by law has meant an additional $25,000 on our payroll for the year 1944-45.

Certain adjustments were made in the operation of regulations governing
retiring leave for employees. This was the subject of several discussions with
council representatives and the final decision was mutually satisfactory.

Our staff councils also submitted that it would be to the advantage of
the staff, and indeed cf the corporation, if they had their own publication which
would serve as a medium to inform the staff on C.B.C. affairs, which would
establish a closer contact between our widely distributed centres of operation,
and, so to speak, between each individual, the staff officials and the management.
The board has agreed to such a publication which will be paid for entirely by
the corporation, but edited and published exclusively by staff representatives. I
believe this will do much to promote the best possible staff-management relations.

In view of the development of the corporation, it is periodically necessary
to examine its job structure, to see that it operates efficiently, and remains
related to current needs. Such a job analysis is therefore projected. The plan
is being worked out with staff councils to promote maximum success.

Such, in brief, is a review of the relations of staff councils with manage-
ment in the promotion of the general welfare of the corporation. As I said,
we are about to start a complete job analysis of our entire staff. This will take
many months but we hope that with that information in hand, we will be in a
position, at the end of the coming fiscal year, to readjust our personnel both
as to occupation and salary. We do not expect there will be a material increase
in our payroll but we hope to devise some means of introducing in our mode
of payment certain factors that will make the personnel happy. We are trying
to secure the close co-operation of all those working for us and to that effect we
are most anxious to know their problems and to meet their requests more than
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half way. A careful study in New York of conditions that exist within the
great American networks has revealed that in certain fields of staff-management
relations we are well in advance whilst we are at least keeping pace with others
in our endeavour to treat our employees fairly.

We now have 807 employees divided as follows:—

Accounting Press & Information
Administration g Station Relations
Engineering - Commerecial
Program

This means that we will start the next fiscal year with a payroll of $1,850,000.

In addition to the above we have 108 employees who are on temporary
leave for military duty. Moreover, a number of employees have been lent to
the National Research Council, the Department of National Defence, British
Security Co-ordination, British Ministry of Information, ete.

I would like to take this opportunity to tell you that we have a highly
qualified and loyal staff. Without their enthusiasm it would have been
impossible for us to have achieved what we have during the last seven years.
The only trouble we have in that direction is that our personnel is too limited.
In fact, we are trying to do a $10,000,000 a year job with $5,000,000. This
situation will become even more acute when the war is over and we must adjust
ourselves to post-war standards. ’

PENSION FUND

Our pension fund is now fully operating. The corporation has unquestion-
ably been generous towards its employees. According to experts consulted, we
have a very excellent system which should work to the advantage of all
concerned. It consists in the purchase of annuities for each individual employed,
the first $1,200 being purchased from the government annuities branch, and the
remainder underwritten by a group of private insurance companies. It applies
retroactively to employees of long service; it takes care of employees who have
reached the age when they could not be expected to buy for themselves a
satisfactory annuity; it also takes care of employees who are now on active
service, and there is provision for death benefits.

We have distributed to members of the committee a booklet which was
printed for the information of our employees, and which contains full details
about the working of the scheme.

The CramrMan: The rest of the presentation, gentlemen, deals with the
technical features, power increases and the Havana agreement. I think we
might well break off here in the presentation and enter into a discussion of
what has been given and at a future meeting put on the record that part of
the report which has to do with power increases and the Havana agreement,

Mr. Ross: T think we should have that now. I think we should have it
so we can study it.
~ The Cuamrman: You have it before you. I am sorry; I beg your pardon,
it has not been distributed.

Mr. Ross: I think we should have the full report from the general manager.

Mr. Prcarp: Would it not be preferable if we waited until this afternoon
to start the discussion? Tt might give us time to study this. There is only
about twenty minutes left.

The CramrMaN: The part which has yet to be presented, power increases
and the Havana agreement, will take longer than the time between now and
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one o'clock. Is it the wish of the committee to adjourn now, and further is
it the wish of the committee to have the rest of the presentation which Dr.
Frigon has to make immediately following our convening at 3 o’clock?

Mr. DiereNBAKER: How long would the rest take?

The CuArMAN: It will take half an hour. _

Mr. Hanson: Let us have the rest of the presentation. I would suggest
we have the balance of the presentation before we start any discussion.

The CuamrMAN: Does the committee wish to enter into a discussion now,
or to adjourn now and have the rest of the presentation this afternoon?

Mr. CorpweLL: I think it would be wise to adjourn now rather than begin
a discussion of this, so that we may look it over. What Mr. Picard suggests is
a good thing. If the other part did not take half an hour I would suggest that
we continue. '

The Wirness: I am through with the policy part. Now I am coming to
the administration, technical features, and other things.

Mr. CoupwerL: The two matters are separate.

The Wrirness: It is quite separate.

Mr. CopweLL: Two separate fields. I think we should adjourn now.

Mr. Prcarp: I would move the adjournment now, Mr. Chairman.

The CuarMAN: Moved by Mr. Picard, seconded by Mr. Durocher that we
adjourn. Is that the wish of the meeting?

The meeting stands adjourned until 3 o’clock this afternoon.

The committee adjourned at 12.40 o’clock p.m. to meet again at 3 o’clock
p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The Cuatkman: Mrs. Casselman and gentlemen: this morning Dr. Frigon
covered a wide range of subjects in his report. The report is not entirely
submitted as yet. He has a number of matters to present, power increases of
broadeasting stations followed by a progress report on the shortwave station;
then the matter of network operation, the commercial department, financial
matters, and some notes on the technical side. What is the wish of the committee,
to defer that presentation until later and proceed this afternoon with a discussion
of what has been submitted this morning? Dr. Frigon is not prepared at the
present time to present all of the balance of his report, but part of it is ready
and could be presented if we want it.

Hon. Mr. LaFricue: Let us have what he has ready, if that would be
acceptable.

The CuAalRMAN: All right; is that the wish of the committee?

Mr. Ross: What did the minister say?

The Cuamrman: He said, “Let us have what he has ready”. He has ready
the matter of power increases and the Havana Agreement. That will take about
half an hour. That is all he has ready to present this afternoon. It is a question
of whether we want to break off there or break off now.

Mr. MatrHEWs;: Has he any preference himself?

The Witness: Up to now I have covered the policy side of my report.
There is a break now. I should like whenever you are ready to go into the
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technical, financial and commercial side. T could proceed with some twelve pages
1 have here. I am sorry I have no copies to distribute. I have copies of this
part. Iam at your disposal, of course.

Mr. DurocHER: When will the next sitting be?

The CHAIRMAN: Probably a week from to-day.

Mr. Ross: I think we ought to have what he has got now so that we will be
:able to study it.

The CmamrMaN: All right, we shall proceed with the presentation by
Doctor Frigon.

Dr. AuvcustiN Fricon, recalled.
The WirNESs:
Power Increases and Havana Agreement

At an early session of this committee, someone expressed uneasiness of the
fact that the C.B.C. had not yet recommended that fadio broadcasting stations
in Canada be permitted to increase the power under which they operate. Broad-
casters have _been told that it is our intention to do so in due time. The last
time any official representation was made was when Mr. Joseph Sedgwick and
Mr. Glen Bannerman appeared before the board on September 20, 1943, for the
one and only purpose of getting some news about this situation. They were told
that the priority for use of higher power on channels used in Canada is protected
by terms of the North American Regional Broadcasting Agreement for the
duration of the agreement. By resolution the board requested the Department
of Transport to advise to that effect all applicants for increase in power to their
stations. These two gentlemen representing the C.A.B. were also told that when
the time came each application for power increase would be considered on its
merits. They declared they were perfectly satisfied and left us smiling. The
next thing we heard was a public statement made by Mr. Bannerman to the
effect that the C.A.B. was not satisfied with our handling of the problem.

Our stand is fully justified and is supported by the views of those who know
the technical side of the business, and I include in this group most private
broadcasters and government officials in the United States. As a matter of fact,
the Federal Communications Commission issued a freezing order on February 24,
1942, which stated that no further grants for construction or changes in stations
will be granted. The F.C.C. have adhered strictly to that policy with the
possible exception of some 100- and 250-watt stations and of a very small
number of stations which already had the equipment required. In Canada, the
transport department with our concurrence has also issued new permits for low-
power stations but none of them have been able to find the equipment required.
One of the most active and prosperous broadcasters of Canada has been unable
to raise the power of some of his stations from 100 watts to 250 watts, although
he had agreed to do so in exchange for some concessions made to him. Had we
acceded quickly to requests for increases in power, the most influential stations
would have had their demand granted before we would have had a chance to
study the national problem as a whole and the position of all broadcasters across
Canada.

We, and the radio branch of the Department of Transport, know more
about the Havana Agreement and such questions than anybody else in Canada.
Indeed, we were in Havana; we participated in the framing of the agreement,.
After the United States we may well say that we were the most influential group
there, and even the drafting of the agreement was a good deal left in our hands,
We are in constant touch with F.C.C. officials and other big radio organizations

in the United States, Mexico and elsewhere, including broadcasters and
manufacturers. ‘
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The C.B.C. is fully justified in not recommending increase in power over
1,000 watts on the ground that there is no equipment available and that whatever
there is, if any, should be used for war purposes. But there is another and even
more important reason for our withholding recommendations. It is quite possible,
and even probable, that when the war is over, important changes will occur in
the method now used in broadecasting, when frequency modulation, television,
and possibly facsimile, will come definitely into the picture. A new North
. American agreement may be required. We know that frequency modulation
will most probably better cover certain areas with lower power than is now done |
by amplitude modulation. All parties interested are studying the problem. A
Radio Technical Planning Board in the U.S.A. has been organized on which all
important bodies in the United States are represented, including Washington
officials, manufacturers and broadcasters. The C.B.C. is represented on com-
mittees of the board. This board is studying the whole question of radio broad-
casting from the technical side and it is expected that its report, which will come
out in a few months, will influence considerably whatever decision is taken by
governments, with respect'to the future of broadcasting.

Private broadcasters of Canada were told by us that the board intends
to study each case on its merits and to recommend to the minister whatever
increase in power may be most appropriate to protect the interests of Canada
and improve the service to listeners. Our staff has studied the whole question
very thoroughly. I have, myself, had long discussions with United States
officials and I can assure you that private broadcasters have no reason to com-
plain; nobody is justified in saying that we have failed in our duties towards
them or towards the Canadian public. I do not think this committee should
take into consideration opinions which are not backed by facts. Someone
mentioned the other day in this room that the committee, last year, would have
expected an answer to Professor Bayly’s submission. Of coure, you will have
noticed that we did not have the opportunity to appear before you after the
C.A.B. representatives, including Mr. Bayly, submitted their case. We did
not intend to go back on Professor Bayly’s submission but in case theré
might be any doubt in your mind as to our position, may I be permitted to
make certain remarks on what Professor Bayly said? It is not going too far
to say that the whole of Mr. Bayly’s case is vitiated by his own concluding
words: I must apologize for my vagueness, but my memory after two years
is not too complete.”

Mr. Bayly’s first finding was “ that because of present limitations of power,
beyond those limitations contained in the Havana Agreement, Canada has
already lost permanently much possible radio coverage.” This as it stands
is not correct. A careful review of all existing Canadian broadcasting stations
shows that every station can still increase power to the maximum allowed under
the treaty.

May I give you some sort of demonstration on this matter of power? If
I could use a sort of image, suppose you decided to blow up two similar balloons
under five pounds pressure and having a diameter of three feet each, setting
their centre at two and a half feet. You can see the picture of two balloons
with their centre parts pressed against each other and having their pressure
and their size as stated.

In the process of doing so if you first inflate balloon No. 2 to the extent
of two pounds the balloon will take a round spherical shape. Then you put
the pressure on No. 1 balloon up to five pounds and immediately No. 1 balloon
will cut into the volume of No. 2 on account of the pressure of No. 1 balloon
being five pounds instead of two pounds. Therefore, you would have No. 2 .
balloon losing some of its territory, so to speak, but the moment you inflate
No. 2 balloon to five pounds it will push back No. 1 and they will both get to
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their place. That is what we have now with the situation whereby the United
States is using power which would make it come within our territory and
influence the coverage of some Canadian station, but whenever we can bring
the power of these Canadian stations up to what is authorized everything will
come back to normal as intended under the Havana Agreement. Therefore,
we do not lose anything by not inflating our balloons to five pounds right now.

Many of these stations would, it 1s true, require directional antennas but
these would have been required if the increase to maximum power had been
made when the agreement became effective. Any loss in “possible Canadian
radio coverage” occurred betwen December, 1937, and March, 1941. The
agreement was signed on the former date, but due to delay by Mexico in
ratifying the agreement, it did not become effective until March, 1941. The
delay was not in any way due either to the C.B.C. or to the Canadian government
who ratified in November, 1938. During that unfortunate interim old agree-
ments were in force, under which Canada’s share of the spectrum was limited
to a total of 30 channels altogether. Stations in the U.S.A. exploited the delay
to their full advantage, while Canada was in a quite different position. The
situation was in no way connected with a power freeze to a‘thousand watts on
Canadian private stations. As a matter of fact, even if new stations were
being built to-day, or had been built since April, 1941, up to a power which
might have meant a loss of coverage to us, those stations had to be built in
such a way as to protect us fully whenever the station which would interfere
is operating under the full power authorized under the Havana Agreement.

In other words, a new station which might have been built in the United
States since the agreement has been in force would have to be built and designed
in such a way as not to interfere with us when we are up to full power, so
we are protected under the Havana Agreement. Furthermore, as 1 state here,
between 1937 and 1941 there was an interim period during which we were
exactly as we were before the Havana Agreement, and because that was not
satisfactory we asked for a conference in Havana to correct the situation.
- The difficult position in~which we were up to 1937 continued until the time
when the agreement was actually put into force. Therefore, we are not responsible
for what happened before 1941; international agreements and conditions were
responsible for the state in which we were. Indeed, the loss of coverage which
we may have suffered in recent years is probably not as much as what we
have actually lost through the decrease in power which was made necessary
under war conditions and which nobody has noticed or criticized. I am sure
none of you noticed that the C.B.C. reduced its power by 20 per cent in May,
1942, and later a general order was issued in Canada to all private stations
to do the same. This was followed by a similar action on the part of the
F.C.C. in Washington. This simple procedure has doubled the life of certain
types of radio tubes used in transmitters. However, it can hardly be said
that the public has suffered very greatly by the change.

In other words, in 1942 we were having trouble in getting tubes and we
decided to reduce the power of our own stations by 20 per cent. A 50 kilowatt
station went down to 40 kilowatts. Nobody noticed the difference. There was
no criticism and no complaints; we just went on without any difficulty. Then
the Department of Transport in Canada issued an order to all stations to do
the same. Later on the F.C.C. issued orders to all American stations to reduce
by 20 per cent. That reduction meant more in the matter of coverage than
many of the difficulties we have had in applying the Havana Agreement, yet
nobody said anything about it.

The next finding was that “unless all increases in power possible under
the agreement are made as soon as conditions permit, Canada will lose a great
deal more of her potential radio coverage.” This is perfectly true, provided

that the_ suggestive word “more” is deleted and that we do not act at the
proper time. '
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Mr. Bayly is not very precise on the subject of channels. He states that
under the agreement two types of channels were assigned—clear channels and
shared channels. As a matter of fact all channels are shared channels under
the agreement. There is no such thing as an exclusive channel, although there
used to be under the old agreement between Canada and the U.S.A. There are
to-day three types of channels, clear, regional and local, all of which are shared
within specified technical limits. '

Mr. Bayly goes very far astray when he comes to deal with time limits
affecting the occupation of channels. He says that “you have a six month period
in normal times once you have filed an intent to occupy a channel, which
means that six months before the expiry of this treaty is the last date at which
the increased power can take place”. As a matter of fact the agreement definitely
states that changes must be actually consummated within one year (not six
months) of the date of notification of a proposed change or of an authorization
of a new station. And there is the further provision that in special cases where
circumstances beyond the control of the administration concerned have pre-
vented the completion of the change or the construction of the new station, the
twelve month term of the original notification may be extended for six months.
This is very different from Mr. Bayly’s statement. Actually if notification of
a change in assignment is given, the station can go into continuous operation
at the notified power on the last day on which the agreement is in effect. A
minimum of 12 months from the date of preliminary investigation is required
to get a 50 kw. transmitter into operation, so that plans for such a station would
have to be started not later than March 29th, 1945. An earlier date would be
necessary in some parts of Canada in order to take advantage of the summer
weather for construction. From an answer given to Mr. Ross last year (p. 213)
it appears that Mr. Bayly believes that if Canada is not fully occupying one
of her assigned channels on March 29th, 1946, any country, Mexico for example,
could put up a 50 kw. station on that frequency and nobody could say them
nay. The fact of the matter is that all other parties to the agreement would
have as much right to the empty channel as say Mexico. The agreement states
that “at the expiration of this agreement the other countries, parties thereto,
shall have the right, if they see fit, to withdraw the unused privileges from
such countries and to assign them to any or all of the other interested countries”.
The use of an unoccupied channel then will be assigned by agreement among
the contracting parties, and not “grabbed” by any one country. The use of
the words “if they see fit” in the agreement would suggest that the unused
channel might even, in some circumstances, be reassigned to the country which
had neglected to occupy it.

We could easily prove that Professor Bayly was wrong in his interpretation
of the fictitious example he gave and in his discussion of directional antennae
but I do not want to use too much of your time. '

Mr. Bayly believes that if a station is prevented from completing construe-
tion because of scarcity of war materials, the home administration can authorize
delays. This is wrong. * The agreement allows twelve months for the com-
pletion of construction or alteration; the contracting parties may agree to allow
a further six months. But no single administration may permit a delay beyond
eighteen months without the consent of all signatories to the agreement; no one
country can make assignments for the purpose of freezing channels for future
use. As a matter of fact cases are on record where both in Canada and the
U.S.A. special extensions of time have been granted by agreement among all the

contracting parties.
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By Mr. Durocher: : :
Q. Pardon me, Mr. Chairman; for the benefit of those who do not know
. Mr. Bayly will you kindly tell the-committee who he is?—A. Last year the
| (Canadian Association of Broadcasters had Professor Bayly appear before the
~ committee to give his views on the implementation of the Havana Agreement.
He appeared the day before the committee adjourned.

Q. Who is he?—A. He is a professor at the University of Toronto. He is
now in the United States acting in some capacity there; I do not know exactly
what.

Mr. Ross: He is employed by the British government at the present time.
The Wirness: Is he?

Mr. Ross: He is probably one of the outstanding engineers in Canada on
that subject. i}

The WirNess: The statements about CFPL London and a hypothetical
250-watt station in New York state are completely at variance with facts. The
power of CFPL may still be increased to 50 kilowatts with a directional antenna,
and the designs for this antenna are the same to-day as they would have been
when the 1-kilowatt transmitter was installed. The establishment of a 250-watt
station in New York state would neither prevent an increase in power at
London nor complicate the design of the directional antenna. If London went
to 50 kilowatts the New York station would have to limit its field intensity
contour so as to protect the London station in Canada.

We agree with Mr. Bayly when he mentions the difficulty of finding a
channel for a new 1,000-watt station. But it is misleading for him to say that
our possibilities have been encroached upon more and more.

I could show you many other discrepancies in Professor Bayly’s report that
I believe this will be enough to show you that if we did not insist on answering
him last year, it was not because we were confounded. We do not contest
Professor Bayly’s sincerity but it appears to us that he was not fully familiar
with the provisions of the North American agreement passed by all countries
after the Havana conference. If you want to go into technical details, our Mr.
MacKinnon will be at your disposal. He is one of the best radio engineers on
the North American continent, especially in respect to frequency allocation,
antenna design, field strength measurements, etc. Mr. MacKinnon has been
loaned to the National Research Council of Canada for the duration. I under-
stand that he had the greatest success in highly responsible and extremely
important war work. At Havana, he was one of the four or five experts who
actually worked out the technical details of the agreement. While he was away
with the research council, he kept in touch with us, but his assistant, Mr.
Richardson, who knows all that is to be known about the Havana Agreement
carried on very efficiently. Do not forget either the very capable experts, Mr.
Bain and others, of the Department of Transport, who after all are in charge of
this sort of work for the government.

While an issue is being raised in some quarters about discussion of power,
do not forget that what we are interested in is the most efficient use of whatever
technical facilities may exist to give the best service to as many people as
possible. We will not find a solution by simply raising power at random. In
fact, the effect of transmitter power on actual coverage has been over-emphasized.
As T said last year, an efficient antenna and many other factors are also of
primary importance although often neglected. Power of course, remains a pre-
dominant condition for wide coverage and strong signal, but the fact remains
that much of the increase in coverage which was obtained between 1936 and
1944, that is from 48-8 per cent to over 90 per cent (96 per cent of radio homes)
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was not due to more powerful stations but largely to the suppression of inter-
ference under the Havana Agreement; and history is repeating itself to-day.
Increased power does, however, permit a_ higher rate for the sale of time on
stations, more on account of the psychological effect than on actual increase in
coverage. _ b

" To show you that this problem cannot be taken lightly, I would like to close
my argument by giving you some illuminating figures. To implement the Havana
Agreement, with the minimum permissible we will have to build in Canada, before
March 29th, 1946, the following stations:

860 kc. Channel Power of present station increased from 10 to 50 kw.
990 ke. Channel Power of present station inereased from 15 to 50 kw.
1010 ke. Channel Power of present station increased from 10 to 50 kw.
1580 ke. Channel Power of present station inecreased from 1 to 50 kw.
1550 ke. Channel Power of present station increased from 1 to 10 kw.
1240 ke. Channel Power of present station increased from 0.05 to 1 kw.

In other words, if we allow the six stations to increase their power within
the limits indicated there in each case we are fully protected and we fully imple-
ment the requirements of the Havana agreement.

If this is done, Canada will have achieved the minimum expeeted under the
Havana Agreement and would not be threatened with the loss of anything when

~ North American countries meet again to revise the situation. If, however, we

were to take the fullest possible advantage of the Havana Agreement, we could
have in Canada the following stations:

22 50 kw. stations

37 5 kw. stations

30 0-25 kw. stations

That means that the private stations under the present assignment set-up
would have a total power of 882 kilowatts as against a present 90-85 kilowatts.
This would mean a total outlay which would run into many millions; the larger
stations only would cost upwards of $6,000,000.

We are fully aware of our responsibilities and you can rest assured that we
will not fail in our duty in submitting proper recommendations to the govern-
ment of Canada.

I have another document here but I have no copies to distribute, unfortun-
ately, as I did not expect that this would be brought up today .

NETWORK OPERATIONS

As our chairman has already told you we are now operating two networks
across the country; one, known as Trans-Canada, is in operation sixteen hours a
day—the other, known as Dominion, is gradually building up to what we believe
will be a minimum of three hours every evening starting next fall. Both are
sustained by the C.B.C., which means that we produce at our own expenses non-
commercial programs which are scheduled on these networks along with such
commercially sponsored programs as may be contracted for.

The Dominion network existed partly before January 1st last but it became
a real network because we made certain switches between stations, and mostly
because we started on that date to sustain the network one hour per day thereby
giving it its own identity.

May I call attention to the fact that our C.B.C. networks are composed of
privately owned and C.B.C. owned stations at present as follows: Basic Trans-
Canada Network (English)—25 stations, 19 privately owned and 6 C.B.C. Basic
Dominion Network—24 stations, 23 privately owned and one C.B.C. The Quebec
Network comprises 7 stations, four private and three C.B.C.
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There seems to be some misunderstanding in certain quarters as to how these
networks operate. May 1 be permitted to explain to you how this is done.

To establish a network, whether it is Trans-Canada or Dominion, the C.B.C.
must first list a number of privately owned and C.B.C. owned stations which,
when they operate simultaneously, will reach the greatest possible proportion of
listeners. The C.B.C pays for wire lines to connect the stations together in a
network for a number of hours a day—16 hours in the case of Trans-Canada.
Throughout the 16 hours the C.B.C. feeds that network with programs either com-
mercial or sustaining; the commercial, of eourse, being paid for by sponsors, and
the sustaining paid for by the C.B.C. Network stations may broadcast absolutely
free of charge any sustaining programs which are carried on the lines. This is
the contribution of the C.B.C. to the listeners of Canada. In exchange for that
free service of sustaining programs and also to make sure that its most important
programs will be heard by Canadian listeners, the C.B.C. requires that a certain
number of periods be placed at its disposal every day. At the present moment
these represent an average of 24 hours a day in evening hours, plus some day-time
periods for school broadcasts and other features of that kind.

Whenever a sponsor wants to buy time on the network he deals through
the C.B.C. commercial department, which handles all the commercial business
of the network. The commercial department negotiates with the sponsor and
in cooperation with the program department it accepts or rejects program
contents. The C.B.C. collects the fees which must be paid by the sponsor
for station time and for the use of the lines. A good deal of publicity is done
by the C.B.C. to impress the network on the minds of advertising agencies and
those interested in commercial broadcasting generally. The C.B.C.’s station
relations department handles all time clearances for sustaining broadcasts on
stations; our traffic department takes care of traffic on landlines. When a
commercial broadcast has taken place on the network—that is, after it has
been carried by stations on the network—each privately owned station receives
from the C.B.C. payment for time used on the station. Roughly this amount
is 50 per cent of the card rate of the station after frequency discounts. In
other words, if the card rate is $100, and a sponsor takes thirteen weeks,
twenty-six weeks or fifty-two weeks there are certain corresponding discounts
and those discounts are taken out of the $100 and half of the difference is paid
to the station. It is agreed generally that when a station can obtain about
50 per cent of their card rate as clear revenue they are doing a normal business,
and that percentage was accepted and is still accepted by all stations on our
network as being fair and what the trade could stand. The other 50 per cent
is partly used to pay commissions, discounts and all other costs; what is left
after this is kept by the C.B.C. as its commission for operating the network.

In other words, when you hear people say that we get 50 per cent of what
has been taken in that is not right. With that 50 per cent we pay commissions
to agencies, commissions to American networks; we pay regional discounts and
other such discounts so that when we have finished paying all that we are
supposed to pay out of the 50 per cent then there remains probably 10 per cent,
which goes against the cost of running our commercial department.

Of the $1,200,000 worth of commercial revenues reported for the fiscal
year 1942-43, $447000 was for the use of the lines, for which the C.B.C. had,
of course, to pay wire line companies. Therefore, although in the statement
the figure, $1,200,000 is mentioned that is not all going to broadcasting stations.
It is, as I say here, to the extent of $447,000 to pay for wire lines. Also as a
charge against that revenue must be included the direct cost of our commercial
department and a proper share of the cost of operating stations, studios and
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of general overhead. As a matter of fact, if all direct cost were to be charged
against commercial revenue the difference would be a deficit and not a profit
as people are usually inclined to think.

It is, of course, true that this commercial revenue is of great benefit to
the corporation as it helps keep the organization operating. For instance,
studios and broadcasting stations are required for our sustaining service. If
those facilities are used for commercial purposes for part of the day, it is so
much more relief to the corporation. It can therefore be said that although
commercial revenues are essential to the C.B.C. to carry on at its present
standard, they are not in a true sense profit producing revenues.

We get the best part of our clear commercial revenue through the sale of
time on our own stations, but here again it must be remarked that our com-
mercial activities are extremely limited and no privately owned station could
operate and survive financially if it restricted its commercials to our self-
imposed policy. As I said before, we do not, for instance, take commercial
spot advertising and hardly any local commercial business. The spot business
alone is absolutely essential to any commercial station. Without it none could
enjoy a profit; they would soon be bankrupt.

In other words, in our own stations such as those we have in Toronto we
carry network programs. Those programs are carried by all stations on the
network from coast to coast. We do not carry any local spot business in that
sense; we do not advertise local stores. We do not advertise the local store in
spot advertising, those few words you hear during the day, “Buy your shoes
on Sparks street and buy your hat on Queen street”. We do not carry that.

By Mr. Durocher:

Q. That is what you call spot business?—A. That is spot business locally.
There is another expression, “spot business,” which is business carried over
phonograph records across the country on different stations. Instead of buying
a line to do a network broadcast some companies will have records cut and
played across the country on different stations at different times. That is spot
business. We do have some of those records, but we do not carry local spot
and local advertising. We have very very little of that except in Chicoutimi
and Prince Rupert where we are the only station operating, and to accommodate
the local merchants we operate as private stations do. As a result we pay our
costs in Chicoutimi, but that is the only place where we do so.

By Hon. Mr. LaFléche:

Q. What do you do at Chicoutimi?—A. We run our Chicoutimi station
practically as a private station. We accept spot business and local business.

Q. Because there is no other station?—A. Because there is no other station
and no local advertiser has the advantage or possibility of advertising over the
radio except over our own station. The same applies to Prince Rupert. Chicou-
timi is the only station of our whole group which pays its direct cost. That is
very important because as I said here private stations could not live without
local spot business. That is the cream of the revenue. For instance, I was tpld
a little while ago that a certain gentleman who was an announcer on a station
had an arrangement by which he had a fixed salary plus 50 cents per spot. That
seemed quite reasonable because the spot was sold at the rate of about $2.50 per
spot, but he had forty spots per day so that he was making $20 per day. That
is pretty good going. Therefore, the point that we do not carry local commercials
is extremely important, and it is one of the principal factors to show that we
are not competing commercially with private stations.

PR S S RE
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Furthermore, we do not carry a number of broadcasts such as patent medi-
cines or other programs of that sort. That is left entirely to private stations.
There again there is a very good source of revenue which we completely disregard
because we do not want to load our stations with that sort of broadcasting. There
may be nothing wrong with it but the C.B.C. do not carry it.

You can readily see that if, on the one hand, we need private stations to
obtain the coverage we require for full national service, on the other hand, we
are extremely useful to private stations financially. It is truly a co-operative
enterprise, where both parties benefit by their association. No station affiliated
to our network has ever asked to be relieved of that responsibility; on the con-
trary, a number of stations are constantly asking to become affiliated and some
of them do not hesitate to accuse us of discrimination when we choose one of
their competitors as our outlet. That alone is an indisputable proof that we are
essential to private enterprise. Again, of course, the situation has to be con-
sidered not only in the two largest centres of Toronto and Montreal, but in the
other centres across Canada which benefit by the sponsors’ purchase of our Trans-
Canada network. In other words, when we discuss a network broadcast or
commercial broadeast you must not focus your opinion exclusively on Toronto
and Montreal. We are just as much interested in Moncton or Regina or Saint
John, N.B., as we are in Toronto or Montreal. You cannot therefore judge the
situation, talk about competition, talk about whatever you may wish to talk
about, by basing your arguments simply on Toronto and Montreal where you
have stations affiliated with American networks doing a good business. In fact,
some of the stations in Montreal and Toronto are not very anxious to get on our
network. They can earn better revenue just by fighting it out among themselves,
fed as they are by American programs both commercial and sustaining, but
outside of these big centres they all would like to be on the network because not
only do they get free sustaining program service but they actually get revenues
from us. Once they have agreed to be on the network all they have to do is wait
to receive a cheque for the use of their stations by network broadeasters. That
cheque means for some of them anywhere between $1,000 to $35,000 per year.
Only a very few stations—and those the most prosperous in Canada—seem to
have anything to say against our network operations; and they are located
where the cream of the market happens to be and are affiliated not to our net-
works, but to American networks. So please consider this network problem
not as a local problem, but as one which involves coast to coast operation at a
great number of centres. We have still many things to take care of. When the
one or two difficulties, for which the C.B.C. is not responsible, are ironed out, I
look forward to the continuance of very happy co-operation between the C.B.C.
and all private stations in Canada.

Canadian Commercial Continuity

I would like to make mention of the forward step that has been taken by
the corporation to clean up commercial copy, advertising patent medicines and
drugs, rgleased for broadcasting over Canadian stations.
~_ While the corporation does not accept such advertising on its own stations,
it does act as a clearing house for all patent medicines, drug and pure food radio
continuity, claims for which must be approved by the Department of Pensions
and National Health under C.B.C. Regulation No. 12. Again, we often hear
that the C.B.C. will not accept a certain patent medicine program. We have
nothing to do with it except to see that it is accepted or rejected by the Depart-
ment of Health. The C.B.C. clears an average of 2,000 pieces of such copy per
month. Dr. Heager@y of the Department of Pensions and National Health has
been most co-operative on such clearances but the approval of the department
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is for claims made for the products and does not deal with good taste acceptance.
-In other words, if you have a laxative program, the Department of Pensions and
National Health will pass on whether the laxative can be sold or not, but they do
not say anything about the good taste of the program dealing with the laxative.
That may be our job. :

_Previous parliamentary committees have brought up the subject of offensive
radio advertising for laxatives, patent medicines and the like and, consistent
with the suggestions that some action should be taken, the corporation early last
year embarked on a campaign to bring this type of advertising, over all stations
in Canada, into line with the good taste policy which had already been enunci-
ated for our own stations. In other words, we have tried in the past to set a
good example. We have controlled to a certain degree what was on private
stations in that respect. Last year we went one step further and tried to help
them in clearing the situation. Conferences were held with leading advertising
agencies in Montreal, Toronto, New York and Chicago and further representa-
tions were made through Canadian representatives of other American advertising
agencies of Hollywood, and other American cities. I can tell you the task was
not an easy one. In many instances it meant drastic changes in extensive
advertising campaigns and some alarm was expressed by agencies that our
requirements would reduce the merchandising value of their copy. Nevertheless,
our stand had been taken and we did not depart, from it. I must say that in the
majority of cases the agencies were most co-operative with us and others
soon realized that if they wished to continue advertising over Canadian stations
they had no alternative but to submit copy which could be approved for good
taste.

The private stations are firmly behind us in this campaign.

The CuamrMAN: That conecludes pretty well what Dr. Frigon is prepared
to present to-day. Now, if we want to enter into questioning or discussion of
what has been presented i order to cover the matter I think probably we should
start from the first of the presentation which had to do with general observations
and with programs. I may say that Dr. Frigon is prepared to answer any
questions that you may put or he will be glad to hear any observations which
any member of the committee cares to make.

By Mr. Coldwell :

Q. On the first page I notice—it may have no significance but if it has I
should like to know what significance—“I do not believe it was my duty . . . to
initiate any important changes which I might think advisable in our administra-
tion or mode of operation.” Had you some important changes in view when you
included that sentence in the report?—A. Well, every general manager knows
his business. It is quite possible that if I had been general manager I might
have made some changes which in my view I may have thought were important.
I cannot say that I would be prepared to recommend drastic- changes—far from
it—but any new man coming on a job wants to adjust things if he thinks things
should be done differently and, in his mind,-more efficiently. There is nothing
in that which implies any drastic changes.

Q. That is what I had in mind. With regard to programs I notice this:
“Even if I had wanted to change important program decisions it would have
been too late for me to do so. . . .” Has that any direct bearing on-program
arrangements?—A. Not necessarily, except that when you reach the month of
October your season is pretty well set up, some programs have been publicized
and you cannot keep on changing them; so if the manager of the C.B.C. had
planned his season it was not even possible for me to change that materially—
not that I think it should have been changed. This first page is meant simply
to emphasize the fact that there is no break in continuity between last April and
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this March. We followed the same practice, the same regulations, the same
procedure, the same everything, except that there is another man at the desk.
That was the purpose of this whole first picture.

Q. You have 807 employees now?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you know how their salaries compare with salaries paid by, let us
say, the National Broadcasting System of the United States?—A. Oh, well, 1
have no hesitation to say they are less.

Q. Have ydfu any knowledge of the salary schedules paid by those
organizations in the United States?—A. Yes, we have, but I would like to add
this; three years ago we made quite an extensive study of this matter and we
tried to bring our salary levels to that of the best paid in Canada. Now, times
are changed, but we are embarking on a job analysis of the whole system.
What that means I do npt know. I think it would mean probably some improve-
ment or adjustment in the way of pay—maybe in some cases introducing the
merit system—and just a few weeks ago we changed our system of paying
announcers: we allow them to participate, to share rather, in the fees we collect,
for their services. Now, these things are adjustments that are meant to satisfy
the staff and encourage them to the best possible service and to increase their
efficiency.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. How do these salaries compare with the private broadcasting stations
in Canada?—A. I submitted cases in bigger stations such as free lance
announcers. You may find the odd man who gets more than our average but
the over all picture is very much, I would say, in our favour, especially if you
consider the stations across Canada.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. Have you any objection to producing the salaries of the 800 odd
employees receiving over $2,500 a year?—A. We could give you a salary scale
and classification. We would be very willing to show you privately our payroll,
but we thought it was not right for us to make public the names and salaries
attached to names of the whole personnel.

Q. What is the reason for that?—A. The reason is that I do not think
the public is interested in knowing how much Mr. So and So in Winnipeg gets.
Your committee may want to investigate that, and if you want to come to our
office we will be only too pleased to show you that.

Q. Why do you say the public is not interested?—A. Not any more than

-any person would like to reveal to the public his salary payroll.

Q. Now, the answer was given in the house that it was not in the public
interest to furnish this information because of the fact that the employees
might object to it. Is that the point?—A. The employees and the corporation
as an institution. It is quite possible, for instance, that our salaries would
show to such-advantage over a great number of private stations that they may
not be very pleased.

Q. I am going to ask you to produce the record of those salaries and if
you say it is not in the public interest then I would like to make a motion, Mr.
Chairman, that the information be given to this committee. 1 point out this
fact that as time goes on various bodies are set up by parliament and we are
told that it is not in the public interest to give certain information when a
question is asked with regard to their internal operation. I think that is a very
serious trend, one that goes a long way toward establishing bodies which, although
created by parliament, are not answerable to parliament. I therefore make
this request to Dr. Frigon through the chairman to furnish this committee with
that information. :
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Mr. CorpweLL: Would not Mr. Diefenbaker’s purpose be served quite well

by having schedules brought down showing the positions and the salaries of
persons who occupy those positions. I think there is an objection to bringing
down long lists of names of persons with the salaries attached. It seems to
me the same purpose is served if you have the salary schedule for particular
positions. In that way you do not have John Jones of Regina mentioned and
all his friends discussing his particular salary. I know as a former public servant
that we always took the view that certainly our salaries should be accessible
to the public on a schedule but we felt we did not care to have our names
attached to individual salaries printed in newspapers and so on.

Mgr. DierenBAKER: If we can agree with that, as a matter of fact I will
make a motion that Dr. Frigon should furnish to this committee a list of the
various categories into which employment falls and the number in each category.

Mr. CorpweLL: That is better.

Mr. Picarp: That will be much more satisfactory, because the C.B.C. is
in competition with private companies, and you cannot force private companies
to divulge the names and salaries of their men; therefore, the second way is
more practicable and we can come to the conclusion that a salary attached to
a certain position is sufficient to serve our purpose. It might not be right to
force the C.B.C. to divulge certain things when we cannot force the private
companies to do so. I approve the second method.

Mr. DierenBAKER: I do that to this extent that out of consideration for
the feelings of those who receive those salaries I am prepared to ask at the
moment for the production only of the schedules of pay in the various categories.

The CuamrMAN: For all the employees? You said just those above $2,500.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I will take them all. Mr. Chairman, while T am accept-
ing the suggestion I think that we as members of this committee and as mem-
bers of parliament ought, in greater measure to assert the right of parliament
and of members of parliament to information with regard to public bodies
which have been set up by parliament.

Mr. Picarp: I agree with you as long as it does not impair the working
of that body. ;

Mr. MarTin: Dr. Frigon has said that the information is open to every-
body in this committee.

Mr. DierenBaker: He offered the access for personal information only
and that is not what the people whom we represent have a right to ask for. They
are paying the licence fees and they want to know whether or not proper utiliza-
tion is being made of them and whether proper expenditures are made of the
moneys which they advance through licence fees. For that reason I make this
motion.

Mr. Trrep: Is the motion necessary? Dr. Frigon has stated he would
give the information. ! :

The Cuamrman: The motion is not necessary. The general manager will
make a return at the next sitting with reference to the questions put by Mr.
Diefenbaker.

Mr. CorpweLL: May I ask if Dr. Frigon has a salary schedule of any of
the large Canadian broadecasting stations which would give us some yardstick
on which to measure our own salary schedule to see whether it is fair or other-
wise—particularly what is paid in some privately owned stations and in the
United States. J

Mr. DurocHERr: It is pretty hard to compare the United States with Canada.
l The Wirness: The committee may ask the private stations to produce
that.
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Mr. BertranD: To compare our lists with other broadcasting organizations
outside of this country would not serve a very good purpose. The amount of
money received by any one individual would have to be measured in the value
of the currency of that country in order to make a fair comparison; otherwise it
would serve no purpose and might induce the people to think they are not receiv-
ing fair treatment. So I would not go too far with that suggestion.

Mr. CoLpwrLL: Suppose I make this suggestion: there are two or three
large stations in Canada, now could we get the salary schedules from those
large stations and see how our own salaries compare with those of the private
stations?

The CuamrMAN: Do you mean the private stations?
Mr. CorpweLL: In Canada. Yes.

The CuamrMmaN: Yes, we could get them when the representatlves of the
C.A.B. appear before the commlttee we can ask for a return. But that informa-

tion is not in the possession of the C.B.C., and the general manager can hardly
be asked to get it.

Mr. CoupwrLL: I wonder if we have not the right as a committee to ask for
that information. My impression would be that the authority which has control
over these stations through the Act could ask for that information from the
private broadeasting stations, but I doubt whether we could get it.

The Wirness: I doubt if we have power to inquire into the financial set-up.
The CuairmaN: You mean the C.B.C.?
The WirNEss: Yes.

Mr. DurocHER: Have we authorlty to go into private business and ask them
what their salaries are? And if the committee has not that authority why has
the C.B.C. more authority than we have?

Mr. CopweLL: The C.B.C. has certain powers under an Act of parliament.
Hon. Mr. LaFLEcuHE: What are the terms of reference?

The CuARMAN: The terms of reference are: That a select committee be
appointed on radio broadeasting to consider the annual report of the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation and to review the policies and aims of the corpora-
tion and its regulations, revenues, expenditures and development. . .” That

does not give the right to inquire into the salaries of individuals in private
stations ,in my judgment.

Mr. Haxsern: Of course, the reason is that that could not be included in
the terms of reference; it would not be ethical, according to the best business
practices, to do that. On the other hand, I do not think there is anything to
prevent us from asking any witnesses of the private stations if they care to sub-
mit this information, and it will be up to them to decide whether or not they

desire to submit it or not. I do not think you can have that included in the
terms of reference.

Mr. DurocHEr: If we want to judge the salaries of other concerns we may
as well ask them for a statement of their affairs,—salaries according to turnover,
but not to a position held by a person. If a company is doing a $5,000,000 busi-
ness they can afford to pay so much salary and if a company is doing a
$15,000,000 or $20,000,000 business they can afford to be more generous.

Mr. CorpweLL: We do not know what the private stations are doing, and
there is so much talk about the unfairness of the C.B.C. with regard to private
broadcasting that I think it would be in the public interest to find out what the

private broadcasters are doing, what they are makmg, and what they are paying
their employees.
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Mr. DurocHEr: As far as the private concerns are concerned I do not
think that this is fair to them at all.

Mr. Picarp: Should the C.B.C. produce that?
Mr. CoLpweLL: I just suggest the schedules.
Mr. Bertranp: Of the most important stations?
Mr. CoupweLL: Yes; their salary schedules.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. May I ask this: how do the salaries of the corporation compare to the
salaries paid to civil servants ? Now, I know that you cannot make an accurate
comparison in respect to artists that are employed or the managers of studios
or writers, because in the civil service there are none of those people, but I am
asking with regard to ordinary occupations such as the stenographic staff—how
would they compare with the civil service?—A. We are trying to keep very
close to the civil service in our salaries for clerical staff. I think they are
comparable.

Q. Would you say you are endeavouring to come up to the civil service
salaries or come down to them? Because there is an important point there.
As far as I am concerned the ecivil service of Canada is the worst paid body
of people in the whole country. That is my view.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcaE: What is the answer?

The Wrirness: The answer is that we do not need to come up or down;
I think we are there.

Mr. Hansern: I suggest they are not paid enough.

Mr. DurocHErR: How many employees of those 807 mentioned will be
getting over $1,500?

The CuamrMAN: The return will show that.

The Witness: I would not like to say offhand.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Before we leave this point, I notice that on page 2 Dr. Frigon says
that they have 807 employees at the present time, and down a little further on
the page he says: “....some 700 or 800 artists are employed every week.”
Do you mean 700 or 800 radio artists are paid by the corporation?—A. Yes.

Q. Well, in that case perhaps the schedule that is called for would not
meet the requirements of Mr. Diefenbaker’s question.

Mr. CoupweLL: I think the artists are engaged on a fee basis.

The Wirness: We have an establishment of personnel and that is our
permanent personnel. That is what I mean. Now, we employ artists who are
paid on occasion. One artist may perform once a week or five times in one
week or every week for the whole year or three times a week for two months.
In the majority of cases there are union rates regulating what they are supposed
to receive. Those fluctuating artists represent a payroll of 800 people.

Mr. DurocHER: You do not consider them as employees?

The Wirness: They are not employees

Mr. DurocHER: The 807 are permanent employees?

The Wirness: Yes.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I was going to ask a question in connection with people on duty
overseas. In the event of death due to enemy action are they protected in
any way?—A. We have taken coverage in companies to protect us and in
turn that would protect the families of the men.
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Q. Would the pensions be comparable to the pensions of men serving
in the armed forces; the rank of captain is given to certain of our people
overseas; I think that is mentioned here?—A. Yes. They come under govern-
ment provisions for pension with the rank of captain.

Q. The family would get the regular pension?—A. Yes.

The CHAmrMAN: From whom? i

The Wrirness: From the government.

Mr. Martin: They are not really C.B.C. employees.

The Wirness: Yes, they are C.B.C. employees paid by us.

Mr. MArTIN: Are they not part of the armed services? i

The Wirness: No. _ |

Mr. CopweLL: Does the army assume the responsibility?

The Wirness: They come under the group of Canadians working in the
War zones.

Hon. Mr. LaFiicue: Do you not mean that the government has made
the provisions of the Pension Act applicable to these persons; is not that the
real answer? g

The Wrrness: They come under—I forget the name of the Act—under a
group of 'Canadians in foreign countries who may suffer through enemy action.

They are entitled to get pension under some government Act.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Is there a distinction made between the C.B.C. correspondents and
newspaper correspondents who serve newspapers in theatres of war?—A. I do
not think there is any difference.

Q. The correspondents who are with the Canadian Army are paid by
the Canadian Army, are they not?—A. No.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I think they are paid by the newspapers?—A. They receive pay and
they are transported and taken care of by the army.

Q. Are they protected under this Act too, do you know?—A. I think so.

Q. You had an employee killed while on the way to North Africa, did
you not? Was he protected under this?—A. I will not say he was an employee
until further notice. He was working for us. You are referring to Mr. Beaudry.

Q. Yes—A. That is a very involved case, involving legal difficulties.
Whether he was our employee or not we do not know ourselves. Under his
agreement with us and the way he was operating he was really a soldier in
the Belgium Army seconded part time to us as a war correspondent for the
C.B.C. Now, his actual status when he was killed has not yet been fully
determined—I mean his legal status. He was working—doing some work for
us, but whether legally he can be considered as an employee of the C.B.C. or
working for the C.B.C. under a certain fee is for lawyers to decide.

Q. If it is established that he was an employee of the C.B.C. he would
come under this, would he?—A. Yes. As a matter of fact, his widow has
obtained a pension, as mentioned before, as a person—well, I can give you
something next meeting; there is a legal point that I do not know.

Q. I read something about that case in the newspapers a little while ago
and that prompted my question this afternoon.—A. It is a rather involved
question, and there are a lot of legal points which I am not qualified to discuss.

Mr. Picarp: At the time he was on an assignment for the C.B.C. It is a
matter of deciding whether he was an employee or whether he was just performing
a part-time duty—occasional duty. ;

The Wirness: Exactly.
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By Hon. Mr. LaFleche: y

Q. That matter is before the courts now, is it not?>—A. It is before the courts.
He left London, where he was working for both us and the Belgian government,
under great secrecy for Africa without us in Canada even knowing about it
because they were not advertising the fact that we were invading Africa; and
we heard that he was killed, where, we do not legally know. That matter is before
the courts now; but may I add this: I would say that through this whole matter
the Board was extremely sympathetic to Mrs. Beaudry and did everything
possible to help her. '

Q. Under the authority that you have?—A. Yes.

Q. You have done all you can now under the authority you have?—A. No
question about it.

Mr. Prcarp: You are paying a pension to her?

The Wrrness: No, the government is.

Mr. MarraeEws: In the matter of commentators and newsecasts, is there any
special pay—any set scale of remuneration?

The WirnEss: No, there is no set scale, although we pay them on the same
basis. It may vary from $20 to $35; it may vary with the man and the broadecast.
In some cases we pay more.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: Dr. Frigon, what is the present situation with regard to
newscasts being available or heard by persons in the maritime provinces. You
know the 10 o’clock newscast?

The Wrrness: Yes.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicuE: Is that made available to maritime provinces?

The Wirness:, At 11 o’clock. :

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. I am going to ask a question with respect to salaries. It is not on page
2 but it comes in in connection with page 2 and it will follow in proper sequence.
I understand that the budget for this year with respect to the payroll is
$1,850,000; do I understand that that is the budget for the 807 employees, or does
that include—A. That includes them plus provision for new appointments, plus
provision for such employees who are now in uniformed services who may come
back. ‘

Q. It does not include the 700 or 800 radio artists?—A. No, there is a
budget for $1,000,000 for that.

Hon. Mr. LaFuicue: With regard to your 100 odd -employees who are now
in the armed forces, what provision are you making to give them employment
upon their return home? v

The Wirness: When they return home they are entitled to their job or a
‘similar job at the same salary, and further we have agreed to carry them on our
establishment or payroll from year to year as if they were still with us. In other
words, when they come back they will receive their salary plus natural increments
they would have been entitled to from year to year.

Q. And their contributions to the pension fund?—A. That is taken care of
fully.

By Mr. Picard:

Q. On page 2 the acting general manager has declared that the duties of
whoever i1s in charge of the organization have become quite considerable in
importance, complexity and responsibility. Later on he goes on to talk about
commercial dealings, technical activities, the handling of radio artists, the appli-
cation of international agreements, the struggle with controversial broadecasts. I
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should like to ask the witness this question. The minister and the chairman have
advocated the creation of the post of a full time chairman with a salary com-
mensurate with the importance of the task. Some people have expressed the
opinion that might bring us back to a marked division of authority at the head
" of the organization. Would Dr. Frigon care to express his views on that? Would
he say what he thinks about this objection raised by some people to that pro-
posal?>—A. It is hardly for me to give an opinion about what should be done. I
can say this, however, that our work can be divided, and is divided, in fact, in
two very clearly defined fields. There is the policy field and the administration
field. In the policy field you have all sorts of activities—interpretation, appli-
cation of the regulations, relations with private stations. All that deals with
the policy problems of the C.B.C. as a broadcasting organization and as the
* controlling body over radio broadcasting.

Q. Do you feel that such questions arise frequently enough to warrant the
creation of such a position?—A. Matters having to do with the regulations are
matters of daily occurrence and sometimes many times a day.

Q. Daily?—A. Yes, every day almost, and sometimes very {requently
during the day there are cases which must go to the top man to
interpret the regulations as they exist. It may be that an organization wants to
go on the network. Somebody has to determine whether that organization is
political in scope or not. There may be a speaker who wants to say something
which is a borderline case in respect to our regulations. There might be some
program offered by other networks and we have to decide whether we should
carry that under our regulations. There might be requests for certain broadecasts
from halls or meetings and somebody has to determine whether they are permis-
sible; almost every day, as I said, and at times many times a day these things
come up through our stations relations department and on up to the general
manager for decision. A great number of them are taken care of by the station
relations division we have now, but almost continuously there is a flow of cases
coming up to headquarters for decision.

Q. So you do not consider that dual authority has been detrimental to the
C.B.C. in the past?—A. Like any big organization where the scope is so vast as
it is in our own there is some separation between the different functions and the
different assignments to different people. In our case there is a distinet division
between the policy side and the administrative side. Policy deals with all these
matters. Up to this time the board and its chairman have decided on regulations
and the general manager has been the man who had the responsibility of inter-
preting the regulations. He is at the same time the man who runs the business
of broadcasting. I say there isa very distinct separation of authority and duties.

Q. So the duties of the full time chairman, according to you, would be to
interpret in these daily occurrences the regulations and the policy while the
general manager would be the executive arm of the C.B.C.?—A. Yes.

Q. How would you divide the two?—A. I am not thinking about chairman
or manager. I am thinking about responsibilities. The administrative part,
' that is, running the stations, studios, programs, and all that, should receive its
directions from the controlling body which is the Board of Governors and its
chairman. That body is the logical group to regulate all stations in Canada,
privately owned and C.B.C. stations, to see that all people who are broadeasting
in Canada are supervised by one single authority.

Q. Would you care to express your view on the idea of an independent
controlling board as compared to what you have just suggested with the C.B.C.
Board of Governors?—A. I do not know about that. I can only answer this way,
that if we have the proper individuals it does not seem to me there is any
trouble in the world to run broadeasting under the present system. That is my
candid opinion, ‘
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By Mr. Hansell :

Q. Might I ask Dr. Frigon this question? Do you agree under the new
proposal of a full-time chairman and general manager that both these men should
have an understanding and adequate knowledge of radio?—A. It would not
harm, but I would say that the main qualifications of the man on top, call him
what you want, call him chairman if you like, must be that he has a very wide
knowledge of Canadian affairs. He should know a good deal about Canadian
politics, national and international. It would be a very good thing if he knew
individuals, but he is decidedly a policy man. He does not need to know how
the broadcast transmitter is built or even how it operates, but he certainly should
be a public relations man, so to speak, more than a technical man. 1 do not
think that it is really essential that he should know exactly about broadecasting
properly speaking. ,

Q. You think that would be up to the general manager to run the operations?
—A. Yes. For instance, I hardly think that the presidents of some American
networks know much about music and yet they are presidents and they do a
good job.

Mr."CoLpweLL: That accounts for the kind of music we sometimes get.

The Wirness: I hardly think that Mr. Sarnoff in the United States is a
musician himself, although he may be, but he is president of the R.C.A., and the
affiliated body, the N.B.C., because he is a business man.

Mr. MartiN: The cook is not necessarily the best judge of good eating.

Mr. Hansenn: I am going to suggest, Mr. Chairman, that particularly in
the case of the general manager he has got to know something about radio, and
I am going to press the point I made the other day. I believe that such a person
can be found within the ranks of the C.B.C.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. While I am on that might I ask Dr. Frigon quite a general question in
respect to the matter of a system of promotion and seniority in the C.B.C.? Of
course, the C.B.C. is not a tremendously old institution, still in its infancy, but
has there been much attention paid to the matter of promotion?—A. Decidedly so.

Mr. HanserL: It seems just common sense to me, Mr. Chairman, that the
party who would know more about the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation and
its functioning in Canada would naturally be someone who is already in the
organization. It is just common sense to me.

Mr. CoLpwEeLL: Common sense to anybody.

Mr. Haxsenn: And I really think it would be an incentive in the matter of
public relations with the people.

Mr. Prcarp: Do you mean as chairman or as general manager?

Mr. HansernL: I stress general manager because I recognize that man will
have the running of the corporation in reality. It would be a matter of good
principle in public relations for the Canadian people to know that in their own
corporation there is a system of promotion, and that it is being run by men who
are thoroughly familiar with radio broadcasting in Canada.

Mr. MarTiN: Apart from the merits or demerits of Mr. Hansell’s observa-
tions it is hardly fair to put that kind of question to the acting general manager
who is an employee himself.

Mr. Hansern: I rather judged that, too. I do not want to impose on
Dr. Frigon.

The Wirness: If you count me out I can say this: I think all our- top
men have graduated from low ranks with very few exceptions, if any.
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Mr. HaxseLn: I will say this in passing, Mr. Chairman: I said the
other day I had moved around a little bit in the studios in Toronto, and had
met quite a few of the men in the C.B.C. there. As I said, they were very
courteous to me, and I must say this, that I was tremendously impressed with
the fact that these men seemed to not merely regard their positions as a job,
as a means of livelihood. I could not help being impressed with the fact that
they were radio men and their lives were simply wrapped up in their work.
There were some university men who were employed.

Mr. Copwern: I think that goes pretty well for our research council
and much of our civil service. I think that is why we have good men in these
places because they are interested in the job they are doing rather than in
the salary. :

The CHAIRMAN: Along the line Mr. Hansell has been speaking I would call
to your attention that Dr. Frigon has issued an invitation to the committee to
visit both the Toronto and Montreal studios. I think the committee should
turn that over in their own minds.

Mr. HanseLn: 1 was going to suggest that, because while there is a lot
that one will not understand in respect to the technical part of it, it will give
us a little broader idea of the functioning of the corporation in respect to the
staff, and what is really being done concerning the problems with which they
meet.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. On page 2 reference is made to the budget reaching $5,400,000 this year.
I should like to ask a few questions in regard to the policy of the board in
reference to the question of advertising. If I understand the situation right
some years ago the general conception in the operation of the C.B.C. was that
advertising would be restricted to an amount slightly over $500,000, I believe.
Am I right in that view?—A. Yes, except that nobody explained what the
$500,000 meant.

Q. Pardon?—A. Nobody explained what the $500,000 meant because as
I said this afternoon as to that figure of $1,200,000, if you take out $450,000
for lines then you have the remainder in real commercial broadcasting. In
other words, if you want to consider the strictly commercial end of broadcasting
our $1,200,000 comes down to $770,000 if you take out of the first figure the
cost of the lines. :

Q. I see. Are you now setting a ceiling beyond which you do not intend
to go in commercializing the C.B.C.?—A. In the way of scheduling I think the
ceiling will adjust itself whether we like it or not because we must have time
for sustaining programs, and we have reached the saturation point. By operating
a second network that may mean more revenue on the commercial side but it
will involve expenditures on the other side.

Q. Do you feel you have arrived at the ceiling on advertising revenues
beyond which you do not intend to increase?—A. I believe our schedule now
comprises about as many commercials as we can handle.

Q. About as many as you can possibly handle?—A. And still serve the
public as we would like to.

Q. Have you advertising solicitors acting for you?—A. No, we have our
own department, but we do not solicit in the usual way.

Q. What proportion of the advertising you put over comes through adver-
tising agencies?—A. About all of it; the largest part of it comes through
agencies.

Q. You do not get it direct from the sponsors?—A. Usually all these big

accounts come through the agencies. We do not have to solicit them. They
come to us. :




98 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Q. And does the amount of $1,200,000 represent the full amount that you
charged for advertising on your networks or the neét amount after deduction
of the commissions or allowances to the advertising agencies?—A. That is’ the
amount received after all commissions have been paid.

¢ By Mr. Martin:
Q. You pay the usual commission fee?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Diefenbaker: : x

Q. Is there any reason why we should not know the total amount you '
charge for advertising in the course of a year now?—A. As I said, in that business
we act for private stations. We sell network facilities and when we get the
money, one part goes to the private broadcasters and the rest goes to us for
time sold on our stations and network. In other words, when we sell the
network a good deal of the money goes to private stations.

Q. Then, what is the total amount that was realized last year before any
payments were made for advertising over the C.B.C.?—A. Realized by whom?

Q. The amount charged by you and ultimately divided up?—A. I will 3
give you that figure. I have not got the figure here.

Q. You will give us that figure?—A. Yes. Let me get this clear. You )
mean the total amount of business going through our office for commercial
programs?

Q. Yes—A. On private stations and our stations?

Q. Yes, that is correct, the total. ]

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I wonder if in the same connection you could give us a hvpothetlcal
break-down of $100 paid by an advertiser to the C.B.C. for a program, how is ‘
that divided?—A. Right. i

Q. What commissions are paid out of that $100 and who gets the residue
and in what amounts?—A. Right. |

Mr. CorpweLL: If we could get that it would give us the picture. |

Mr. DierenBAKER: It would give us the true picture because this statement
that $1,200,000 represents ‘advertising is in reality not the correct figure. It does
not show the extent in amounts of the expenditure for advertising in Canada over
the C.B.C.

The Wirness: That is what I want to know. Do you want the figures of
advertising in Canada over broadcasting stations affiliated with our network or
our own business of advertising? That is quite different. In other words, if we
did not have the network it would not prevent a sponsor from going and buying
time on a station, not network time, but this advertising body of sponsors might
yvet reach the public through private stations even if they did mot go through
our usual network business.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. That is perfectly true, but in order to get the true picture I have asked
that you give both, the total amount payable to the C.B.C. as such and the
amount that is payable as well in respect of the stations operated under the
C.B.C., or private stations.—A. We will give you a break-down of the whole
picture.

Q. Out of which this $1,200,000 ultimately comes to the C.B.C.—A. Right.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. May I ask a question in that connection? Would not the financial state-
ment and the yearly report show the gross income?—A. It is not broken down
the way Mr. Diefenbaker wants it.
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Q. It shows a percentage, anyway, how much is income and how much has
been paid out. I should like to see the financial report.—A. What I mean is
there is a lot of confusion in the minds of the people as to these figures. People
say that the C.B.C. makes $1,000,000 profit. Others say that the C.B.C. takes
50 per cent out of commercial business from private stations. That is all wrong.
Tt does not work that way at all. In some cases we put a program on the network
which comes to us from an American agency, a program already carried by an
American network. In that case we may have to give a commission to the
agency, a commission to the American network, plus all these things that I men-
tioned before. When you come to those figures you have to qualify them very
clearly. I would be pleased to give a break-down of whatever our business is on
the networks. '

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. I know it may be difficult, but the fact remains that the statement that
revenues are $1,200,000 does not show the extent to which advertising on the
radio is in existence in Canada to-day?—A. If I give you a break-down of
our network operations you will have no indication of what the private stations
do on their own. For instance, you have a figure of $1,200,000 commercial
revenues to the C.B.C. We have our total budget of $5,000,000. There is the
business of all the private stations in Canada. Even if you added them all
together you would not approach the $300,000,000 per year of broadcasting in
the United States. The business of broadcasting last year in the United States
reached a total of $300,000,000.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. We do not know what the total in Canada is?—A. We do not know and
we have no means of finding out.

Mr. CopweLL: We should have a means of finding out what the total
revenues are.

Mr. Tripp: Do these private stations not issue annual statements?
Mr. CorpwerL: I do not know.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. How is it they could find out in the United States and could not find out
here?—A. In the United States it is compiled by private firms, magazines, who
get reports from all the interested parties. It is nothing official but those figures
are recognized as reliable.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:
Q. There is another matter on page 2. It is this:
We encourage talent across the country.

There is a matter I wish to bring to the attention of the committee. A number
of complaints are received from time to time that in certain cities it is impossible
for talented young persons to receive an opportunity to be put on the network.
One place in respect of which I have heard complaints in that connection in this
dominion is Toronto. In Toronto musicians find it difficult to get the opportunity
to broadcast and to show whatever ability they may possess. I should like to
know from you, Dr. Frigon, who is in control in these various centres determining
the right of an individual to have the opportunity to receive a test or to go on
the network, and also whether or not when a decision by a regional board or
regional director is made there is any right of appeal of that person to some
central authority so that talent will not be unnecessarily restricted by local
considerations? This is a matter I spoke to Dr. Frigon about on one occasion.
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It is a matter in respect of which there is quite considerable interest. Would
you mind elucidating and giving us the picture?—A. I am sure Mr. Bushnell
could give you more details than I can myself, but generally speaking I could tell

you this, that the situation referred to as to remarks being made, is, I would say,
universal. Anywhere where artists are employed, either in theatres or broad-
casting or anywhere else, the discontented artist never admits it is because he
cannot perform properly. :

Mr. Hanson: They go to Hollywood.

The Wirness: The second thing is this, that we do give a lot of opportun- |

ities to qualified talent. The third point is that we cannot afford to broadecast
on the network a performer who is not qualified and will not be received outside
of his own city or village or town. Whoever performs on our programs has to
be a professionally matured artist. I should like to refer you to some figures
I have here which I submitted last year. I have no figures for this year but last
year I reported that on the French network alone we had, during the previous
twelve months, employed new talent at the rate of twenty-seven musical com-
posers, new composers tried on the network of stations, forty new singers, four
new choirs, six musical groups, twenty-one soloist musicians, twenty-one actors
and eighteen authors. I went on to say:
This means that one hundred and six Canadians and ten musical units
were given the opportunity to broadeast for the first time from C.B.C.
French network studios during the last twelve months.

These people are selected by the person in charge of programs. In other words,
you may have a number of shows at a studio where singers are required. Each
producer of a show makes his own choice, and if a singer or pianist or musician
is not engaged by one of these producers there may be an indication there is
something wrong with the artist himself.

By Mr. Diefenbaker: :

Q. The artist I have in mind is an artist with an international reputation.
I just want to find out from you who it is in the city of Toronto who determines
the right of a person to go on the network?—A. The person who decides is the
manager of the programs.

Q. Who would that be?—A. There are a number of these producers. I wish
you would question Mr. Bushnell on this point. He is much more familiar than
I am with the details in the program division.

By Mr. Hansell:
Q. Do you have any amateur hour in Canada? I do not mean children
particularly, but something comparable, we will say, with Major Bowes.—A.
No, we have none.

Q. I have noticed a program on Sunday afternoon, “Singing Stars of To-

morrow”. They have been able to locate some very fine talent.

Hon. Mr. LaFLicHE: York Knitting Mills.

Mr. Picarp: The private stations are doing the secouting for that. It is
better that it is not spread out on the national nmetwork before we know the
man is good.

Mr. BusaneLL: I am sorry; I should not interject, but it is not the private
stations that are doing that job. It is the auditioning panels of the C.B.C. who
have worked in close co-operation.

Mr. Picarp: I do not think you got what I said exactly. I said that the
scouting for talent on amateur hours should be done by private stations, not
your own scouting. I bow to your ability to do your own scouting.
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By Hon. Mr. LaFléche: .

Q. I have a similar question to ask Dr. Frigon. If he thinks it is not an
exhaustive step from the question put by Mr. Hansell would he be good enough
to tell us something about what the C.B.C. does as to seeking talent, searching
for talent?—A. Well, first of all, we never hesitate to give auditions to artists who
apply for positions when they suggest that they are qualified, and last summer we
had our director of music conduect quite an extensive set of auditions in the
western provinces. I do not know how many he auditioned—dozens, or maybe
hundreds—in an endeavour to find some talent; but I would like Mr. Bushnell
to report on his finding.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. I asked the supplementary question to bring out a little clearer some-
thing which you said a moment ago: you said your auditioning personnel heard
a very great number of presumably amateurs who came before them. Is there
any difficulty in their being heard, in their being given an audition?—A. None
at all. It is a routine matter.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. After the auditioning has taken place then the question as to whether
the person gets an opportunity to go on C.B.C. rests with one or more of the
producers, is that correet?—A. Yes.

Q. And that is where the complaint comes in, that there is more or less of
-a rarified atmosphere in which they move and persons outside cannot come in?
—A. Well, there is another point to be considered there. Most of these coming
artists—some of them, I should say—want to go on the air to show that they
are good artists, others try to make a living out of radio. Well, now, making
a living out of radio is almost an impossible thing. If you have a very good
artist appearing every week on the radio program during the season—say
twenty-six occasions—it. takes quite a good fee to make it a worthwhile pro-
fession. Now, all these artists have to earn their living by radio plus something
else, and we have constantly on the doorstep qualified artists known to have
a high reputation to whom we cannot give work and from them comes the
complaint that we give a chance to people who are not qualified. They will tell
you, “I have been fifteen years practising and I am well known. I have played
all over Europe, and I have to make my living with my music, and the first
thing you do is to take in a newcomer who has no art and is not qualified. It is
not fair to me, a professional artist.” However, Mr. Bushnell can cover that
point better than I can.

By Mr. Matthews:

Q. You made the observation that the corporation has cultural and educa-
tional responsibilities as well as those of pure entertainment and consequently
many of its programs will appeal only to limited audiences, though it is
encouraging to note that the size of those limited audiences is growing. I hope
you are right, I think you are, but I wonder how you estimate the size of those
listening audiences all over the country?—A. Oh, well, it is done a good deal
through personal contact with the public; people talk to us; we talk to people—
through surveys, listening surveys organized by firms—through different methods
such as mail response, people “writing in. It can be felt. You cannot give the
exact figure, but you can feel that the thing is growing or fading out.

4005—4
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Q. You have no regular system of reporting or anything like that?—A. No,
it is very difficult to design anything except when you want something on mass
listening for commercial purposes. :

Q. You can sense it pretty well?—A. Yes.

Mr. HanserL: There are commercial firms, though, who make a business of
it, are there not? :

The WiTnEss: Yes, they cover only telephone services in large cities.
Hon. Mr. LAFLEcHE: But they do operate in Canada, do they not?
The Wirness: There is a Canadian firm.

Hon. Mr. LaFLEcHE: Is it a Canadian firm?

The WrTnEss: Yes, it is a Canadian firm.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Did you ever consider having your own survey?—A. Oh, we have done
some surveys through mail response.

Q. No, but I was referring to setting up an organization for that purpose?—
A. I do not think it would pay us. I think it is cheaper for us to buy the services
of these other people because these people serve all stations and agencies, and
they are accepted by everybody whereas our own survey would probably be
accused of exaggeration or something like that, These organizations are looked
upon as unbiased organizations. .

By Hon. Mr. LaFléche:

Q. May I come back to the staff for a moment. Has the C.B.C. any plan
with regard to returned service personnel after the war is over or as demobiliza-
tion is carried out in addition to their employees who are now in the armed
forces; have you in mind that you favour those persons?—A. Well, I suspect
that our own employees coming back from the services will more than meet our
requirements,

Q. I see—A. We have not thought of any organized way of enrolling or
engaging people outside of our own employees.

Q. You have not anticipated that there will be vacancies?—A. I hope there
will not be because our staff is growing so fast that it would be a financial matter.

Q. With regard to your pension plan, how has that been accepted by the
members of the staff?—A. Very well. It has been submitted to all government
experts, it has been surveyed and studied and ‘we can’t find anything wrong
with it. The personnel is very pleased.

Q. I know something about the attention which was paid to that scheme
before it was approved because I had the honour of bringing it down; but you
say that the staff are satisfied with it?—A. Perfectly satisfied. I have not heard
anything said against the plan from the staff or from any other source.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I will ask a question based on page 2: “Problems arise all over the
country at the most unexpected moments which require a solution in a matter
of minutes. Most frequently these have to be submitted to the highest authority
of the corporation.” Who is the highest authority of the corporation?—A. I am
the unfortunate person at the present time.

Q. And if you had to refer it to any other person or authority ?—A. If some-
thing is contentious I will refer it to the whole board as I have on past occasions.

Q. And to no one else?—A. No one else.
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‘ By Hon. Mr. LaFléche:

Q. You mean, of course, that the board is your higher authority?—A. Of
course, but on the operation side, the person on whose desk these things come is
myself, but if I am not satisfied I do refer the matter to the board. Next
Monday, for instance, there is a case and I want the board to tell me what to do.
That is one of the examples. .

Q. What system do you use in determining the rates that you will charge
to those who rent your time?—A. That is pretty well set by the trade itself,
according to the size of the station, the territory covered. It is pretty much
standardized across Canada. :

Q. Last year we had quite an exposition given of the system used; has it
changed since the last year?—A. Not to talk about. There may be one or two
adjustments, but nothing much.

By Mr. Tripp: :

Q. On that point, you still give discounts to persons who use a large amount
of time?—A. Yes.

Q. And the larger companies get a discount over the smaller companies?—
A. If they buy a station for one occasion there is a rate; for 13 there is a
discount, on 26 there is a discount, or on 39 there is a discount, and so on.

Q. Is that fair to the smaller companies? Is it just the power of might?—
A. I do not think many companies are interested in using radio efficiently—

Q. Have you thought of considering a set fee for a set unit irrespective
of the amount of time a company or a person might use?—A. Well, I may say
that we are following the American practice.

Q. I have heard ecriticisms of the American practice, and that is the
reason I am bringing this up. For instance, if a small company wants, say,
15 minutes a day it is at a disadvantage as compared to another company
which wants to use an hour a day. Take your soap companies which were
mentioned by Mr. Coldwell some time ago. In that case the overall company
goes to the C.B.C. and rents an hour of its time and then awards that time for
15 minutes to this company and 15 minutes to another company, and the result
is that the manufacturer of a certain type of soap within that company gets
a cheaper rate of advertising than a manufacturer of soap who is not in the
combine. Do you get the point?

Mr. CoLpweLL: I get the point now.

The Wirness: We do not do that. We may have one company buying
one hour and breaking it down to 15 minutes to advertise different products,
but not different companies. They do not sell their time piecemeal.

Mr. Tripp: These soap companies do. There is an overall company that
goes and buys some time; they are a combination of four smaller groups
manufacturing different soaps.

Mr. DurocuEr: But they are owned and operated by the same people.

Mr. Trier: By the controlling company. Therefore, the smaller manufac-
turer who is only manufacturing one type of soap is at a disadvantage as
compared with the larger company who manufactures four types of soap.

The Wirness: Unfortunately would not that apply to all types—

Mr. Tripp: I am using that as an instance, therefore I claim that a small
company which is just manufacturing one article is at a disadvantage with a
company which controls, say, four different types.

Mr. DurocHEr: The very soap companies that my friend mentioned do
exactly the same thing. If I go to them for a case of soap I pay so much, if
I take ten cases I pay so much, and if I take a carload I get a larger discount.

Mr. Triep: I know that is true, but that type of merchandising leads to
certain wrong practises in the end. I just wonder if you are not following the
same wrong practices that these private corporations do in their own business.
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Mr. DurocHER: It is the law of supply and demand.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Take the case of Lever Brothers, for'instance, the makers
of Lux and Lifebuoy and several kinds of flakes—there are at least four
products—they make a contract for an hour and they divide the hour up into
four 15-minute periods for each one of those soaps; if the smaller manufacturer
making one soap comes along and wants 15 minutes he is at a disadvantage.
What you are doing is encouraging monopolistic enterprise in the control of
soaps. I would try to break up these monopolies. :

Mr. Trrpp: I have been fighting that sort of thing in my own business and I
know all about it.

Mr. Isxor: When you spoke of 13, 26, 39 and 52, what did you mean?
The Wirness: Period of weeks.

Mr. Isnor: You are carrying on the same principle with regard to your
advertising rates as do the newspapers in regard to their space. If I contract for
1,000 lines there is a certain rate and there is a different rate for 2,000 or 3,000
or 5,000 as the case may be; it is a matter of reduction in the rate, except in the
case of newspapers it is lines and yours is time?

The Wirxess: The same general principle of doing business.

. Mr. Triep: I know the principle is general, but I want to know whether
it is right or not. I do not think it is right, and that is the reason I am bringing
the matter up. I think it encourages the building up of monopolies and large
institutions to the disadvantage of the small people.

Mr. Isxor: Mr. Diefenbaker raised the question with regard to the com-
mercial revenue, $1,242553.08; am I to understand that there is a breakdown,
or rather the gross amount as received by the C.B.C. is going to be given to the
committee at some future date?

The Wrrness: It has been agreed that I submit to the committee a break-
down, a complete over-all picture of the commercial matter. "

By Mr. Isnor:

Q. What I tried to get and I think it is what Mr. Diefenbaker has in mind
is the gross amount you received for advertising and then take that gross amount
and break it down to see how much the private stations received for their part
in carrying those programs and the amount retained by the C.B.C. from the
gross amount?—A. The amount private stations received is not included in the
$1,200,000.

Q. No, no, but we have tried to get that in the past—the gross amount to
start with, and from that gross amount how much goes to the private broad-
casters, and from that amount there should be this amount retained, namely
$1,243,000?7—A. Well, we will give a breakdown. If you do not find in the
breakdown what you are looking for we will give you more.

Q. Could you give us the percentage—whether that is one-third or one-
half?—A. It is not more than half anyway.

Q. Would it represent one-third or two-thirds?—A. I do not know. I would
not like to guess.

Mr. CorpweLL: If you are making that breakdown could we get the net
after all the expenses are taken out of this advertising?

Now, Mr. Chairman, could we adjourn? We have been sitting for quite a
while and the air is very bad.

The CuamrmaNn: Very well. We will adjourn until one week from to-day
when we will hear Dr. Frigon again.

The committee adjourned to meet Wednesday, March 29th.
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APPENDIX A
APPOINTMENTS TO THE STAFF OF THE

CANADIAN BROADCASTING CORPORATION
SwereMBEr 15, 1943—MarcH 15, 1944

CBA Transmitter, Sackville— .
H. D. MacAuley, Broadcast Operator.
E. C. Hughes, o
- Broadcast Operator Apprentice.

Halifax Studios—
R. Fraser, Producer, Grade 2.
H. H. Dewar, Announcer, Grade 1.
F. G. Borgerhoff, Announcer, Grade 1.
M. D. Cox, Program Assistant, Grade 2.
W. B. Mounce, Stenographer, Grade 1.
H. M. Morrison, Stenographer, Grade 1.
G. Leahan, Stenographer, Grade 1.
J. R. Dunlop,
Switchboard Operator, Grade 1.
F. B. Parsons,
Broadcast Operator Apprentice.
CBJ, Chicoutimi—
L. Raymond, Announcer, Grade 1.
J. L. Gilbert,
Broadeast Operator Apprentice.

M. Vidal, Broadcast Operator Apprentice.

G. Voyer, Clerk, Grade 2.

F. Dufour, Stenographer, Grade 1.
CBV, Quebec—

C. Montreuil, Announcer, Grade 1.

R. Leliévre, Announcer, Grade 1.
Keefer Building, Montreal—

L. C. MacAdam,

Broadeast Operator Apprentice.
E. L. Martin, Clerk, Grade 2.

L. M. Roxburgh, Stenographer, Grade 1A.

L. Heninger, Stenographer, Grade 1A.
J. Brunet,

Stenographer, Grade 1 (teletypist).
A. Guindon, Office Boy.

Montreal Studios—
T. Bertrand, News Editor, Grade 2.
J. Y. Dangelzer, Producer, Grade 2.
J. J. Jasmin, Producer, Grade 3.
M. St. Clair Bigg,
Continuity Writer, Grade 3.
J. C. Chapais, Announcer, Grade 1.

R. Chaput, Stores Clerk.
P. H. Chagnon,

Broadcast Operator Apprentice.

F. Léniel, Broadeast Operator Apprentice.

J. L. Lepage,
Broadcast Operator Apprentice.

E. D. Mitchell, Stenographer, Grade 2.

G. Lafrance, Stenographer, Grade 1.
E. Robichon, Stenographer, Grade 1.
M. J. Leclaire, Stenographer, Grade 1.
M. A. Bélanger, Stenographer, Grade 1.
M. Bérubé, Stenographer, Grade 1.
J. Arsenault, Stenographer, Grade 1.
M. T. F. Noreau, Stenographer, Grade 1.
M. Lortie, Typist, Grade 1.
Y. St. Hilaire, Typist, Grade 1.
R. de Vaudreuil, Clerk, Grade 1.
G. Rivet, Clerk, Grade 1.
‘M. Quesnel, Clerk, Grade 1.
L. Therrien,

Switchboard Operator, Grade 1.

J. R. Landriault,
Switechboard Operator, Grade 1.
G. Tellier, Janitor
H. Rose, Janitor
C. Quintal, Janitor.
P. Gariepy, Office Boy.
M. J. A. Prendergast, Office Boy.
C. Cloutier, Office Boy.

Head Office, Ottawa—
D. G. Chandler, Stenographer, Grade 2.
B. B. Soubliére, Clerk, Grade 1.
C. A. Phillips, Clerk, Grade 1.
E. J. Milloy, Clerk, Grade 1.
A. M. Hodgins, Clerk, Grade 1.
B. E. McFarland, Clerk, Grade 1.
F. E. Hatton, Clerk, Grade 1.
J. T. Lloyd, Clerk, Grade 1.
H. M. Kelly, Clerk, Grade 1.
M. M. Gleason, Clerk, Grade 1.
D. Joanisse, Office Girl.
H. Finter, Office Boy.

CBO, Ottawa—

. L. S. Gross, Announcer, Grade 1.
W. R. Beatty, Announcer, Grade 1.
F. E. Rushton, Student Operator.
M. M. Armstrong, Clerk, Grade 2.

55 York Street, Toronto—
0. C. Wilson, Producer, Grade 3.
B. Hood, Clerk, Grade 3.
F. MacDonald, Clerk, Grade 3.
M. R. G. Henderson,
Stenographer, Grade 2.

E. T. Melvin, Clerk, Grade 1.
F. I. Reynolds, Clerk, Grade 1.
A. M. Woolley, Clerk, Grade 1.
R. H. Fisher, Clerk, Grade 1.
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H. Kerbel, Clerk Grade 1. R. V. Ferry,

S. B. Brown, Stenographer, Grade 1. Broadeast Operator Apprentice.

A. M. Wilson, Stenographer, Grade 1. R. J. Sloane,

M. H. McKee, Stenographer, Grade 1. Broadcast Operator Apprentice

D. A. Earls, Stenographer, Grade 1. W. Adshead, Student Operator.

R. Oswald, Stenographer, Grade 1. B. J. Gregson, Student Operator.

E. I. Woodgate, Stenographer, Grade 1. B. R. McClure, Clerk, Grade 2. -

R. M. Lusted, Stenographer, Grade 1. N. N. Walsh, Clerk, Grade 1.

G. Kinnunen, Stenographer, Grade 1. G. B. Cooper, Clerk, Grade 1.

H. E. Mears, Stenographer, Grade 1. J. J. Brisbois, Clerk, Grade 1.

A. L. Shirrif, Stenographer, Grade 1. D. M. Johnston, Clerk, Grade 1.

D. A. E. Wareham, Stenographer, Grade 1. A. J. Rutledge, Clerk, Grade 1.

E. G. Ellis, E. G. Leschuk, Clerk, Grade 1.
Switchboard Operator, Grade 1. B. M. Harding, Clerk, Grade 1.

A H M , I. McNaul, Clerk, Grade 1.

. H. McQuarrie,

Switchboard Operator, Grade 1.

Toronto Studios—

S. W. Caldwell, Station Manager, Grade 3.
R. B. Hamilton, News Editor, Grade 2.

L. E. Duffey, News Editor, Grade 2.

J. Annand, Producer, Grade 2.

T. Courtney, Announcer, Grade 1.

N. H. Hanbury, Announcer, Grade 1.

W. W. Lindsay, Announcer, Grade 1.

W. E. Cameron, Announcer, Grade 1.

J. E. Reany, Program Assistant, Grade 1.
A. Rosen, Program Assistant, Grade 1.
F. H. Brown, Program Assistant, Grade 1.
P. J. Murphy, Program Assistant, Grade 1.
E.

Assistant, Grade 1.

R. B. Allen, Broadcast Operator.
H. Wright, Broadcast Operator.
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Winnipeg Offices— 2

CBK Transmitter, Watrous—

A. Silvester, Press and Information CBR, Vancouver—

R. E. Gross, Stenographer, Grade 1.
J. H. Rose, Stenographer, Grade 1. T
H. 8. Starkman, Copy Clerk. :
G. M. Ackerley, Copy Clerk.
J. T. Komar, Office Boy.

E. Hewson, Office Girl.

R. E. Neilson, Office Girl.

H. Robson, News Editor, Grade 2.
P. Cosh, Stenographer, Grade 1.
J. E. Hayward, Stenographer, Grade 1.

A. D. Squires,
Broadcast Operator Apprentice.

T. J. Leveque,

Sound Effects Operator, Grade 2.
B. Frost, Switchboard Operator, Grade 1.
S. J. Kerr, Switchboard Operator, Grade 1.

;
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APPENDIX B
IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS TO STUDIOS
IN MONTREAL AND TORONTO
7 MoNTREAL STUDIOS
Year : : Improvements
1939-40.......... G g N RS L $ 255 51
o DR e d L e e A e R 22,022 37
0 TR Ry R B S S S IR SRR 1,807 19
b ot b SR G el S G o e 356 95
$24 442 02
ToroNTO STUDIOS |
Year Improvements .{
T e e R A e NG R S ) $11,633 28 :
RN el e e b Sl i L 9,632 52 ]
ADEIEAD T N ey e S Y N 2,340 88 17
R AL e SR S 9,879 77 |

$33,486 45

iz T PR S T e S e .. $57,928 47
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEeEDNESDAY, March 29, 1944.

(6)

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11.00 o’clock,
a.m. Mr. J. J. McCann, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Boucher, Coldwell, Diefen-
baker, Douglas (Queens), Durocher, Hansell, Hanson (Skeena), Isnor, LaFléche,
Laflamme, Macdonald (Brantford City), Martin, Matthews, McCann, Mullins,
Picard, Rennie, Ross (St. Paul’s), Tripp, and Veniot. (21).

On behalf of the Committee, Mr. Veniot voiced the good wishes of the
members on the occasion of the Chairman’s birthday. Mr. McCann thanked
Mr. Veniot for this kind expression.

The Chairman tabled the following information which was requested:
1. C.B.C. Commercial Broadcasting operations for the year ended March 31,
1943.
2. C.B.C. establishment of personnel showing classification, number of employees
and salary range.

Ordered,—That the above returns be printed as appendices (See Appendices
C and D to this day’s minutes of proceedings and evidence).

Dr. Augustin Frigon was recalled and further examined on C.B.C. matters.

In reply to a question from Hon. Mr. LaFléche, Dr. Frigon stated that
Major Paul Triquet recently decorated with the Vietoria Cross, was heard over
C.B.C. immediately after his disembarkation at Dorval Airport.

Before proceeding with his supplementary statement, the witness made the
following correction:

On page 84 of No. 2 of the minutes of proceedings and evidence the power
increase on the 1240 ke. channel should read from 0.05 to 0.1 kw., and not to
1 kilowatt, as printed.

The witness then commenced his statement and was questioned on the
following and other relevant questions.

1. Salaries

2. Commercial

3. Technical activities

The witness was asked to furnish the Committee with copies of special
maps and to table correspondence exchanged between the C.B.C. and the
Canadian Association of Broadecasters together with the C.A.B. brief presented
at the private stations convention in Quebec.

Reference was made to a letter dated March 17, 1944, addressed to the
Chairman by the President of the Men’s Musical Club of Winnipeg Limited.

The witness was retired.

The Committee decided to interrogate Dr. Frigon and to hear Mr. E. L.
Bushnell at its next meeting.

At 1.05 o’clock, on motion of Mr. Isnor, the Committee adjourned until
Wednesday, April 19, when two meetings will be held.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,

Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or COMMONS,
March 29, 1944,

The Special Committee on Radio Broadecasting met this day at 11 o’clock
am. The Chairman, Dr. J. J. MeCann, presided.

The CrARMAN: Order, please.

Mr. Vexior: Before the chairman calls the meeting to order I should like to
voice the expression of this meeting and extend te the chairman many happy
returns on his birthday.

Mr. Trrpe: I hope he has not had too many.

Hon. Mr. LaFricug: I think Doctor Veniot should complete that by saying
how many.

The CuarMaN: That is not a secret; that is on the record. Thank you,
Dr. Veniot, and the members of the committee, very much for your good wishes.
The only complaint I have is that they come too often.

The first business of the meeting this morning is to announce two returns
here. One is the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation commercial broadcasting
operations for the twelve months’ period ending the 31st of March, 1943. As
you have not this record I shall read this brief statement; revenue, gross billings,
was $2,489,224.01; deduct from that agency commission which amounts to
$457,980.45 and payments to private stations of $787,690.48. Both of those
added together make $1,245,670.93 which leaves the net of commercial revenue
to the CB.C. $1,243,553. That will appear in the next hansard of the
committee. The other return which is made this morning is the establishment
of personnel. That was asked for by Mr. Diefenbaker. There is a breakdown
here of the salary range of all of the officers of the C.B.C. I am sorry we have
not copies of both of these returns but they will be printed in the next hansard
of the committee. I should like to know if it is the wish of the committee that
this salary range should be given to the press, or is that a matter which it is not
in the public interest to make public?

(See appendices C and D to this day’s minutes of proceedings and evidence.)
Mr. CoLpweLL: I think it should be available to the press.

Mr. Isnor: So far as public interest is concerned to me it is a question as to
what good it is going to do making public the salaries of a lot of individuals. We
do not do it in our own business. I doubt very much if it is fair. That is the
only point I would make.

Mr. CorpweLL: I understand the individuals are not there.

The CHAIRMAN: The names of the individuals are not here. For instance,
we have secretary. Everybody can find out who the secretary is. His salary is
$4,500; assistant to the secretary, one employee, ‘and the range is from $3,240
to $3,960. Then there is one law clerk from $2,800 to $3,280, and so all along
the line. We have the treasurer’s division, elerical grades, engineering division,
purchasing and stores, program division, commercial division, press and informa-
tion, station relations, ete. The whole thing is here and it states, too, that the
cost-of-living bonus has been included in the basic rate of employees holding the
rank of foreman or below, and amounts to $19.93 a month for adult males and
18:4 per cent of the salary for male employees under twenty-one and female
employees who earn less than $100. _
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Mr. CorpweLL: If the secretary of this corporation is getting $4,500 a year
I think it would be in the interests of the corporation to have the salary list
published because there is an idea that the salary list of the corporation is very
much higher than is indicated by these figures. I think from what I know of
salary lists and salary schedules generally that the salaries you have read appear
to be very moderate, if I may put it that way, for the positions which are held.
I think it might even be in the interests of the corporation.

Hon. Mr. LaFricuE: It was understood, Mr. Chairman, at the last meeting
when Mr. Diefenbaker, shall I say, modified his question, that it would be a
matter of public information. T took it it was for the public.

Mr. DierenBaker: I deliberately withdrew any suggestion of wanting
individuals’ names, as General LaFléche says. The information being by
categories I can see no reason why it should not be made public.

Mr. Hansern: Did you say they were going to be printed in hansard?

The CHATRMAN:. Yes.

Mr. Hansern: If they are these reports go out all over the country. There
is no reason why the press should not have it.

The CrarMAN: Is that the wish of the committee that it be given to-day to
the press?

Mr. Haxserwn: I think so.

The CrARMAN: All right. Dr. Frigon says that when in the case of a salary
there is no range given, for instance, in the case of the salary of $4,500, that is
the minimum salary. It may range higher than that at the present time.

Mr. CoupwerL: With regard to the other return that was tabled the net t
the corporation is $1,200,000. {

The CrAIRMAN: $1,243,000.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I suggested we might get a break-down of say $100 worth
of advertising that is placed with the corporation to see what the actual net is to
the corporation after paying for the various lines of communication and all that
sort of thing which are expenditures beyond the commissions and the payments
to the actual stations. T think that presents a picture of what the corporation
really gets out of advertising.

The CaAIRMAN: Perhaps Dr. Frigon can answer the question.

Mr. CoupweLL: Because, as I understand it, the stations that are supplied
do not pay for that service. The corporation pays for that service so it is an
outlay, and that is hardly the net to the corporation.

Dr. AucusTin Fricon, Acting General Manager, Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation, recalled.

The Wirngss: I remember you asked for a break-down on a $1 basis. We
have not filed any figures on that because, very frankly, in the way it is figured
it is next to impossible to put it on a percentage basis, that is, on a $1 basis. It
is very intricate. There are charges for stations; there are frequency discounts;
there are line charges. There are all sorts of complicated figures which make it,
I would say, almost impossible to give the real picture.

Mr. CoupweLL: Would it not be possible to take that amount you call the
net at the moment and tell the committee what the corporation actually receives
itself after meeting all the charges that have to come out of that amount? That
is what I was interested in.

Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: He wants a percentage basis.

The Wirness: Should I bring this up when I talk about commercials this
morning?

Mr. CorpwerL: That will be all right. I do not mind when it comes.
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The Wrrness: I will bring that up later on.

Hon. Mr. LaFritcaE: In that connection could Dr. Frigon at the same time
give us a comparison with the practice in private business?

The Wirness: I will try to explain that, if I can, when I come to the com-
mercial department report. -

Mr. Ross: Do private stations pay the same rate for lines as the C.B.C. pays
when they have their own regional hookups?

The Wirness: We buy lines over the year, 365 days a year, 16 hours per
day; but the difficulty of breaking down the price is that we have rates which
are based on the basic service, plus charges when we extend the line over 16
hours, plus other charges when we have parallel lines, so we have no unit cost.
We buy wholesale and we retail on a basis which we think is quite justifiable
as compared to other charges by other companies. I will cover that point also
in my statement.

Mr. Hanson: I should like to have the names of the ground lines and the
amounts of rent we are paying for them?

The Wrrness: We have a basic contract with the C.N. telegraphs and C.P.
telegraphs. They give us the service of wire lines across Canada to points
mentioned in the basic contract. To these points we add as we go along,
according to a certain schedule of rates as set out in the basic contract.
If we want to take some other lines in a territory that the C.N.R. or C.P.R.
do not reach, we have the right to go to another company, obtain a price from
them, and, if the telegraph companies cannot meet that price, we are free
to make a contract with the local company. The C.N. and C.P. telegraphs,
who have the exclusive rights for our wire line service, must reach the minimum
price submitted to us wherever they have no lines themselves; so they go out
and they contract with different companies, telephone companies, government
telephone companies in the prairies, and other companies in the maritimes,
for instance, and they are responsible for buying the service we require and
selling it to us at the price we have agreed to. Therefore, when you come to
break that down to a unit cost it does not show the true picture; because if
you were to buy a line, say in the maritimes, you would not pay the same
rate as in British Columbia. But, as we are in the business of retailing wire lines,
we average the cost across the country.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Just as one example you use the C.N.R. main line to Prince George,
British Columbia?—A. To Prince George at the present time we use government
lines which have been built and are now under operation for the armed forces.

Q. But you have no connection or no ground line west of Prince George
providing the same service by either the C.N.R. or the government—A. No,
we have no line from Prince George to Prince Rupert.

Q. Some service is there but I suppose you have not made any contract
for that extension?—A. There is a matter of cost which is very material. At
the beginning there was the matter of using lines which were used and are still
used for war services. We could purchase a service from Prince George to Prince
Rupértdat a price which is probably too high at the present moment for us
to afford.

Q. But you are still considering the extension of that line?—A. Oh yes,
certainly.
By Mr. Isnor:

Q. You say that you cannot arrive at a cost. You have a contract with
the Canadian National Telegraphs and a contract with the Canadian Pacific
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Telegraphs. You know the total amount of those contracts. That cost in
relation to the revenue that you receive would help you establish a percentage
basis, would it not?—A. Well, for instance, we may be forced to buy a parallel
line over a considerable distance.

Q. It does not matter about a parallel line. You know what these lines
cost, what these contracts total, and their relation to your revenue would give
you a percentage cost of operation.—A. If you want an over-all figure, it will
not mean much.

Q. I think that is what Mr. Coldwell wants to start with—A. That is all
right. It is easy to give, and it will not mean very much because in that
figure we have to give our own services. v

Q. No, first of all, you start with that percentage cost of operation and
add to that your own cost. I think that is what Mr. Coldwell wants. That is
what I have wanted so as to make up your total costs against revenue.—A. The
total cost of lines.

Q. The total cost of lines and other factors which might enter—A. When
they are being used for commercial purposes—that is what it is difficult to
determine. I should like to repeat that we may have to put in a parallel line
to accommodate a sustaining program or commercial as the case may be during
a certain period. That extra line costs more than our basic over-the-year rate.
Now, do you charge the extra cost to commercial or to sustaining? Do you
break that down according to the region where it happens or do you average it
over the country?

Q. You can start as a basis and take the total cost, and then if that is not
satisfactory to us we can ask you to break it down.—A. We will give you some
more figures, and if what you want is not there, you will ask us for a further
breakdown.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I was going to ask you with regard to these advertising commissions.
It would seem to me to be a very large amount, $457,000, or thereabouts?
—A. Yes, $457,980.

: Q. On all programs placed with you through advertising agencies?
all of them.

Q. What about government programs?—A. They all go through agencies,
and in some cases the practice is to pay two commissions, one to an American
network, for instance, who may feed the program to Canada, and one to the
agency handling the program. In many cases we have to pay 30 per cent
commission.

A. Yes,

By Mr. Martin:

Q.-You would not object to an individual company going to you directly
other than through an advertising agency ?—A. No, but in all these big contracts
anybody who can afford a national network or a network usually has an agency
handling the business.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Why should the government do that? The C.B.C. is a government-
owned corporation, and the government departments are in close contact in
that sense with the C.B.C. Why should the government, the nation, pay an
advertising commission to a corporation to use its own government-owqed
facilities?—A. When it comes to that, you see, we are considered as broadcasting
stations among many others. If we were to give preferred treatment we would
be accused—and I think we have been accused in the past in certain circum-
stances—of giving favoured prices. In other words, if the government can
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~ buy a C.B.C. station in a certain district cheaper than a commercial station,
of course, the private broadcasters protest. They do not want us to compete
with them and we do not, on that basis. :
Q. It seems to me that the policy is essentially wrong.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. Has that policy always been followed?—A. Yes.
Q. Right from the commencement?—A. Yes. :

By Hon. Mr. LaFleche:

Q. Is that not in line with universal practice in regard to radio broad-
casting? You do not seek your clients, do you?—A. We have our commercial
managers who are in touch with them. We have—what shall I say—no high
pressure salesmen trying to get as much as we can.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. I understood you to say last week you do not solicit advertising?—
A. No, not in the sense which you would use that term in a commercial enter-
prise. We have no solicitors. We have managers who are there to inform
- sponsors and agencies of what we can do, show them the advantage of our
stations, the coverage we can give them, and any statistics.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I understood from what you said the other day you were getting more
requests for sponsored programs than you could satisfy on one network, and
you now have two networks and still you cannot satisfy the demand. That
surely would indicate you have not the need of an advertising agency to acquire
programs for you or to place programs with you? You could do that directly?
—A. The only answer I can give is that when we deal with commercial programs
we have to handle our own stations as if they were just commercial stations
on that particular occasion. Another thing is that radio appropriation, or
money spent on radio in big publicity campaigns, is only a small portion of
the total appropriation, and we are not expected, I think, to compete with
newspapers in supplying preferred rates to certain clients. If the victory loan
committee goes out and spends a lot of money on publicity I do not think
it would be proper for us to say, “ Come to us and we will do the work for
nothing,” and compete with them.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Is the commission above the cost of the program? In other words, if -

company A would come to you directly would they pay less to the C.B.C.
than in the case where they use an agent?—A. No.

Q. So there is no difference?—A. No, no difference to us. It is only a
case of the client having someone handle his business.

By Mr. Diefenbaker:

Q. What was the amount last year of government advertising, including
the victory loan and the like, which came to the broadcasting corporation and
upon that government amount for advertising how much was paid in commissions
to these advertising agencies?—A. The amount of business on our stations and
networks last year for various government publicity campaigns is approxi-
mately $250,000.

Q. Does that include the victory loan and everything in connection with
it?—A. Yes.

Q. And on that amount how much was paid in commission to the advertising
agencies?—A. The usual 15 per cent to the agencies handling the programs.
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By Mr. Martin:

Q. They were paid just as they would pay newspapers?—A. As you know,
the government, when they started early in the war, organized a group of agencies
to handle all these programs. We deal with those agencies, and they charge
15 per cent for their handling of government programs, which includes services
of a greatly varied nature. '

By Mr. Tripp: _
Q. I think the question arises why should the C.B.C. pay the commission
and not the company that is doing the advertising?—A. We do not pay the
commission.

By Mr. Boucher:

Q. It is the company which is doing the advertising that pays it.—A. The
company, instead of having a staff of its own for doing publicity work, hires
an agency to do that for them and they charge 15 per cent.

By Mr. Tripp:
Q. And the advertising company pays the commission and not the C.B.C.?
—A. Yes. s
Q. What is the objection?

Mr. MarTiN: Mr. Diefenbaker said that the government was doing adver-

tising and it was paying a commission fee to the advertising agent.
- Mr. DierenBaRER: I do not want an interpretation placed on my point
My point was this, there is no soljcitation necessary for this business. The
customer and the client are in reality the government of Canada. Why should
there be the necessity of an intermediary in the form of an advertising agency?

Mr. MarTiN: You could say why should the government pay newspaper
advertising agents for newspaper advertising.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Because the newspapers are owned by somebody else.

Hon. Mr. LAFLicHE: + Mr. Chairman, is it not a case that advertising agen-
cies exist because of the necessity for them, and that when the C.B.C. takes a
contract for the radio broadeasting of a program is it not the case that instead
of meeting the principal, that is the sponsor, the sponsor is represented by an
advertising agency? Is that not the case? In other words, the C.B.C. does not
set up an advertising agency to deal with the account of firm A; firm A hires
an advertising agency which approaches the corporation. It also approaches
newspapers if ads are to be placed in the newspapers.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Mr. Chairman, there will be no argument in the case
of newspapers as to advertising agencies necessarily being-in business, soliciting
business, placing it and being entitled to a commission, but did I understand you
to say it was 50 per cent? ;

The Wirness: Fifteen per cent. To handle publicity you need a staff;
whether it is your staff or whether you hire an agency to do the job for you at the
rate of 15 per cent commission is for the sponsor to decide.

Mr. Macponarp: In one instance it was stated that the advertising com-
pany paid the commission; in another instance it was stated that the radio
corporation paid the commission.

The Wirness: No.

Mr. CorpweLL: Dr. Frigon referred to the $457,000 paid by way of adver-
tising commission. I take that to be out of the gross amount the corporation
received?

The Wirness: Yes.
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Mr. MacoonaLp: I think it should be made clear who pays the commission.

The Wrrness: The sponsor.

Mr. MacpoNarp: So the C.B.C. do not pay a commission for obtamlng the
advertising?

The Wrirness: We bill the sponsors every year roughly $2,500,000; we
charge them that. Out of the money that we charge to them, there is 15 per
cent or in this case $457,000 going to commissions; and we pay the private station
so much for the use of the station. The rest is ours.

The CuamrMan: It boils down to this, does it not, you are the collecting
agency for those who are getting the commissions.

Mr. MacpoNnaLp: What is that, Mr. Chairman; I think you put it correctly.

The CHAIRMAN: I think it boils down'to this; that the C.B.C. acts as a
collecting agency for the commission people.

Mr. CorpweLL: What commission do they get for what they collect?

The CralrMAN: Order, please. I was going to suggest that when we started
out on broadcasting that it was agreed that we should receive Dr. Frigon’s
report in an orderly fashion. We have not come to commercial contracts.
We will come to them shortly. I think we ought to proceed this morning with
the rest of his submission and in due time we will come to discussion.

By Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. In connection with the matter you have been discussing there is one
question I would like to ask: does the advertising agency—take for instance
Borden’s—do they go to their advertising agency and say we want this done,
and the agency goes ahead and produces the show; that is really what it is,
they produce the show, they arrange for it to go on the air, they look after
everything in connection with it?—A. No, they pay the rates.

Q. And the advertising agency is paid by the sponsor to produce the show;
that is really what it amounts to?—A. One of the charges is what I have

mentioned here; they are entitled to, and authorized by the sponsor, to get
the 15 per cent.

By Hon. Mr. LaFléche:

Q. The newspapers tell us that Major Triquet, V.C., is coming to Canada;

may we know whether we shall have an opportunity of hearing him over the
C.B.C.?—A. We have heard him.

Q. When?—A. He was on the air this morning.

Q. Oh, I was not up!—A. Yes, we had him on the air this morning.
Mr. Marmin: He is in Canada now?

The Wirness: Yes, he arrived this morning.

The CuamrMmAN: If T remember correctly he was on the air two weeks ago.
The Wirness: He will be on again when the air force men get around to it.
Hon. Mr. LaAFLEcHE: Did you hear him this morning?

The Wrirness: No, I did not.

The CuamMmAN: He was on the air from England I think it was last
Sunday. Let us proceed now.

The Wirness: May I please add just one word there in connection with
commercial revenues; that figure of course merely covers the cost of the wire
service and the use of the station, it has nothmvJ to do with the artists’ fees;
we have nothing to do with them; the sum to whlch I referred relates strictly
to the facilities provided for puttmg the program on the air.
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Now before I continue with my statement I should like to deal briefly
with two matters.

First, I should like to make a correction to the record of the proceedings
of last Wednesday. On page 84 the power increase on the 1240 ke. channel
should read from 0-05 to 0-1 kw., and not to 1 kilowatt as it stands.

I was asked last week about the salaries we pay our employees. I am
not quite sure whether the suggestion behind the enquiry is that our salaries and
wages 